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THE LACLEDE GROUP
NYSE Symbol: LG

The Laclede Group, Inc. is a public utility holding company committed to providing reliable
natural gas service through its regulated core utility operations while engaging in non-
requlated activities that provide opportunities for sustainable growth. Its primary subsidiary—
Laclede Gas Company—is the largest natural gas distribution utility in Missouri, serving
approximately 630,000 residential, commercial and industrial customers in the City of St. Louis
and ten other counties in eastern Missouri. Its primary non-regutated subsidiary is Laclede
Energy Resources, Inc., a natural gas commodity service provider located in St. Louis, Missouri.

Common Stock

» 21,993,473 shares outstanding as of September 30, 2008

= Cash dividends paid since 1946
=« Dividends currently $1.54 per share (annualized)

= Dividends typically payable on the first business day of January, April, July and October

» Included in Standard & Poor's SmallCap 600 Index

Fiscal Year End
September 30

Analysts

» Berenson & Company; Edward J. Tirello, Jr.
= Brean Murray, Carret & Co.; Daniel Fidell

= Edward Jones; Paul Franzen

» Stifel, Nicolaus; Selman Akyol

Corporate History

» Founded in 1857 as The Laclede Gas Light Company
» Became Laclede Gas Company in 1950

» The Laclede Group became parent company in 2001

ABOUT THE COVER Pictured clockwise from top: Statue,
“The Apotheosis of St. Louis,” by Charles Henry Niehaus;

One Metropolitan Square; Busch Stadium; Statue of Lewis and
Clark, “The Captains’ Return,” by Harry Weber; Union Station;
The Donald Danforth Plant Science Center; The Gateway Arch
and 5t. Louis skyline; Edward A. Doisy Research Center of Saint
Louis University; Old Post Office; Edward Jones Dome; Balioon
Glow in Forest Park; Compressed Natural Gas Powered Shuttle.
All of the buildings are served by Laclede Gas Company.

THE LACLEDE GROUP SIGNAGE, fahricated and
installed by Engraphix Architectural Signage,
Inc. of 5t. Louis, is lit by energy efficient

Light Emitting Diode (LED) bulbs. In addition
to being environmentally friendly, LEDs are
durable, offering a longer life and requiring
less maintenance than other lighting sources.

Below: Engraphix President Ed Brimer, with
founder and father Marvin Brimer.



Earnings and Dividends
Income from Continuving Operations
Income from Discontinued Operations
Net Income

Basic Earnings Per Share of Common Stock:
Income from Continuing Operations
Income from Discontinued Operations
Net Income

Diluted Earnings Per Share of Common Stock:
Income from Continuing Operations
Income from Discontinued Operations
Net Income

Dividends Per Share of Common Stock

Operating Revenues
Regulated Gas Distribution
Non-Regulated Gas Marketing
Non-Requlated Other

Total Operating Revenues

Utility Sales and Customers
Therms Sold and Transported

Customers, End of Period

Shareholders
Common Shareholders of Record, End of Period

Employees
Total Laclede Gas Employees, End of Period

YTHE LACLEDE GROUP 2008 ANNUAL REPORT

HIGHLIGHTS

2008

5 57,526,000
20,396,000
5 77,922,000

$2.66
$0.94
$3.60

$2.64
50.94
53.58

$1.50

$1,128,287,000
1,075,845,000
4,841,000
$2,208,973,000

1,078,263,000
629,000

4,447

1,807

2007

S 45,744,000
4,027,000
S 49,771,000

$2.13
$0.19
$2.32

$2.12
50.19
$2.31

$1.46

$1,131,554,000
718,704,000
5,603,000
$1,855,861,000

1,119,808,000
632,000

5,538

1,835




DEAR FELLOW SHAREHOLDERS

AND EMPLOYEES

Even though, in many respects, 2008 was a year unlike any other, it was a successful

one for your Company, its shareholders and employees. The Laclede Group achieved

record earnings for the sixth consecutive year; positioned its primary business units—

Laclede Gas Company and Laclede Energy Resources, Inc. {LER}—for continued success

and growth; sold SM&P Utility Resources, Inc,, its underground facility locating and

marking subsidiary, for significantly more than it paid just six years ago and saw the

value of its stock move steadily upward. As we review 2008, | also want to share with

you some of our plans for 2009 and beyond, as we continue to dedicate ourselves to

growing and improving your Company.
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Sixth Consecutive Year

of Record Earnings

Our consolidated net income for fiscal 2008
was $77.9 million, an increase of $28.2 million
over 2007, Diluted earnings per share were
$3.58, compared to 52.31 per share for 2007.
The net effect of the one-time gain realized
on the sale of SM&P last March and the
impact of SM&P’s seasonal operating loss
for the period prior to the sale amounted

to $20.4 million of net income, contributing
$.94 to diluted earnings per share for 2008.
Importantly, our consolidated income from
the operations of Laclede Gas, LER and our
other continuing business lines for 2008
totaled 557.5 million, compared to $45.7
million last year, demonstrating solid year-
over-year growth. Diluted earnings per share
from these continuing operations were $2.64
per share for 2008, compared with $242 per
share for 2007.

President and

Douglas H. Yaeger
Chairman of the Board,

Laclede Gas Positioned

for the Future

As with any business, there are several
critical facets that must be successfully
addressed in order to move forward.

First, we made significant progress toward
establishing long-term supply agreements
that will enable us to purchase natural gas
from entities that have the expertise and
technological know-how to extract natural
gas from nontraditional sources. The ability
of these companies to produce natural

gas from shale formations in North Texas,
Qklahoma, Arkansas and Louisiana are
helping to: (i) lessen the negative impact of
access restrictions on off-shore and an-shore
drilling; (i) lower wholesale gas prices and
(iii} create an additional source of reliable
natural gas supplies. Our agreements with
these companies, which complement our
existing long-term gas supply arrangements,
allow us to access dependable supplies of
natural gas for our customers now and

into the future,

Chief Executive Officer
The Laclede Group




Second, we have made significant progress
toward strengthening and stabilizing our

core natural gas distribution business as part
of the strategic commitment we undertook
several years ago. We have implemented new
technology in many areas that has enabled
us to deliver better service to our customers,
to conduct our operations more efficiently
now and to build a platform for future
improvements. To that end, this past summer
we enlisted a group of employee leaders to
engage in an in-depth review of what we do,
why we do it and how we can do it better.
The objective of this continuous improvement
effort is focused in three areas: operational
efficiency, customer service and culture. Our
target is to begin phased-in implementation
beginning in mid-2009.

Third, in August, we negotiated and executed a
new four-year collective bargaining agreement
in which we addressed several key issues in
the areas of work rules, pensions, benefits and
wage rates. Company management and union
representatives worked together closely to
develop new policies and understandings that
will enable us simultanecusly to better control
operating costs and provide high-quality service
to our customers, while providing competitive
jobs and benefits to our employees for years
to come. This agreement, which evidences
creative solutions to today’s changing business
landscape, will serve as a foundation for
meeting tomorrow’s challenges.

Finally, during this past year, we focused

on how we could better share information
with our customers and make it easier and
more convenient for them to pay their bills
and manage their natural gas accounts and
usage. Customer Connection, which can be
reached from a link on www.lacledegas.com,
is our new website that enables customers
to pay their current bill online, view usage
data that is updated daily, research questions
regarding their service and view current
and past bills. The usage information, which
is available through our automated meter

reading {(AMR) system and database, enables
customers to see and manage their natural
gas consumption. The website alsc features

| 68 SeanETiey 90

a consumption analysis program that assists $50
customers in understanding their usage

patterns and how they can use natural gas 40

more efficiently. We also launched a quarterly

customer newsletter, The Pilot, that features L

conservation and safety tips, as well as
general information of interest to customers
about Laclede Gas and the natural gas
industry. With both of these projects, we have
received positive feedback from our customaers,
particularly regarding the information about
more efficient use of energy.

LER Continues Strong
Performance and Positions
Itself for Future Growth

LER continues to grow, both in volumes sold
and profitability. Our non-regulated natural
gas service provider reported earnings
totaling $19.3 million for fiscal 2008, which
were $5.9 million more than 2007, and the
result of both improved margins and higher
sales velumes. Increased sales volumes
were driven by both greater sales to existing
customers and the addition of new retail and
wholesale customers.

LER is a key component of Laclede Group's
future growth plans. As such, we are focused
on developing and executing a structured
expansion plan that will enable LER to grow
in both sales volumes and profitability. We are
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working to assemble the team, technology
and resources necessary for LER to expand
its geographic service area and the range

of services that it now provides, We believe
that LER is particularly well-positioned for
expansion due to the proximity of its current
service footprint to existing and planned gas
pipelines that will transport gas to expanding
markets, as well as the new natural gas
sources from shale that are being developed.

Sale of SM&P Results

in Significant Gain

In February, we entered into an agreement

to sell SM&P Utility Resources, Inc., our
underground facility locating and marking
subsidiary, for approximately $85 million,
subject to closing adjustments. We had
purchased SM&P in January 2002 for
approximately 543 million. During the slightly
more than six years that we owned SMEP, we
grew the revenue, developed and strengthened
SM&P’s management team and enhanced
technological competencies to the point that
it was a leader in its industry. We closed on
the sale on March 31, 2008 and used a portion
of the sale proceeds to redeem our Trust
Originated Preferred Securities ("TOPrS”), which
enabled us to reduce our outstanding long-
term debt and strengthen our balance sheet.

Disciplined Search for

Mew Growth Opportunities
During 2008, we continued our consideration
of non-regulated organic and external growth
opportunities. We take a disciplined approach
to reviewing and evaluating our options and
remain focused on a strategy of investing our
efforts and money only in opportunities to
which we believe we can add value and that
will, in turn, add value to your Company.

The Value of The Laclede
Group’'s Stock Grew Steadily
Amidst the volatility in the financial markets
that dominated 2008, we continue to focus
on building long-term shareholder value. Now,
more than ever, this is a challenging task but
one to which we remain committed.

Dividend Increased

In November 2008, the Board of Directors
increased the dividend on our stock from

37% cents per share, or $1.50 on an annualized
basis, to 38% cents per share, or 51.54 on an
annualized basis.

Personal Thoughts

and Appreciation

I betieve that any company is only as good

as the commitment, dedication and skill of
the people engaged in running the business.

I would like to express my personal thanks to
our employees and members of our Board of
Directors who have contributed so much to our
success through the years. Their commitment
to our shareholders, customers and the
communities we serve is the foundation of our
success. | also want to express my deepest
appreciation to you, our shareholders, for
believing in our opportunity for solid growth
and our ability to realize that opportunity.

We remain committed to working hard to
continually earn and reward your trust.

gt ey —

Douglas H. Yaeger

Chairman of the Board, President
and Chief Executive Officer
December 2008



"STAY COMMITTED TO YCOGUR DECISIONS,

—Thomas Robbins, author

COMMITMENT

BUT STAY FLEXIBLE IN YOUR APPROACH."

Natural Gas Supplies

In recent years, many natural gas distribution
companies, including Laclede Gas Company,
Missouri’s largest natural gas distribution
utility, have expressed increasing concerns
about the growing national demand for
natural gas as the fuel of choice for
generating electricity, and the resulting
impact on gas supply and deliverability,

as well as the upward pressure on prices.

To address these trends, Laclede Gas
sought opportunities to diversify its gas
supply portfolio by acquiring gas supplies
from companies investing in cutting edge
exploration and development activities.
During the last several years, a number

of such companies have begun investing
in technologies to produce natural gas
from alternative sources, such as the shale
depaosits that underlie a substantial portion

5 THE LACLEDE GROUP 2008

of the United 5States. These companies have
launched a drilling boom by leveraging
advances in horizontal drilling and other
techniques that enable the development of
natural gas fields located within shale that
had previously not been economically feasible
to pursue. Laclede Gas has entered into supply
contracts with several of these exploration and
development companies, thereby giving the
company and its customers access to these
new supplies of natural gas.

Sale of SM&P Results

in Significant Gain

In February, we entered into an agreement

to sell SM&P Utility Resources, Inc., one of

the country’'s major underground facility locating
and marking companies, for approximately

585 million, subject to closing adjustments, to
an affiliate of Kohlberg Management VI, LLC.

ANNUAL REPORT
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LEFT Drilling takes place on an unconventional gas
reservoir known as the Fayetteville Shale Play area,
located on the Arkansas side of the Arkansas Basin,

BELOW Major shale gas basins in the United States

Current advances in horizontatl driliing and
other techniques enable the development
of natural gas fields located within shale

that had previously not been economically

feasible to pursue.

The Lactede Group had purchased SM&P

in January 2002 for approximately $43
millian. During the slightly more than six
years that we owned SM&P, we grew the
revenue, developed and strengthened
SM&P’s management and technological
competencies and positioned the company
for long-term growth. In the course of
continually reassessing and evaluating our
corporate strategy, we determined that it was
the right time—for both Laclede Group and
SMBP—to seil the company to a new owner
that would continue to grow SM&P. We
closed on the sale on March 31, 2008 and
used a portion of the proceeds to strengthen
our balance sheet.

Management and Union
Leadership Come Together
This past summer, in the course of
negotiating and executing a new
bargaining unit agreement, Laclede Gas

management and union leaders came
together to address several difficult and
challenging issues. Management and
bargaining unit representatives worked
closely together for weeks to develop
various creative solutions, including

how to continue to offer competitive
wages, pension and healthcare benefits
while controlling funding costs. Union
leaders offered innovative proposals in
several areas, including changing certain
work rules, that were incorporated into
the final agreement. The new four-year
agreement will help enable us to provide
high-quality service to our customers
and control operating costs while we
continue to provide good-paying jobs
and benefits to our employees. The
success of this process also provided a
foundation that will enable management
and union leaders to join together to
address difficult issues in the future.




“INDIVIDUAL COMMITMENT 7O A GROUP EFFORT—THAT 15 WHAT MAKES A TEAM WORK,
A COMPANY WORK, A SOCIETY WORK, A CIVILIZATION WORK.”

—Vince Lombordi, foothall coach

This past summer, company and union leaders came together to address

l H
,isevéral difficult and [challenging issues that are facing our company. The

[
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Laclede Energy Resources
Continues to Grow

LER, The Laclede Group’s non-regulated
natural gas marketing subsidiary that offers
natural gas marketing services to large
retail and wholesale customers, experienced
another year of steady growth and strong
earnings. LER sold more gas and did it more
profitably. The increased sales volumes
were driven by both greater sales to
existing customers and the addition of new
retail and wholesate customers. Through

its retail operations, LER offers natural

gas marketing services to large industrial
customers from Michigan to Louisiana, while
its wholesale business consists of buying
from, and selling gas to, other marketers,
producers, local distribution companies
(LDCs), pipelines and municipalities. As

we anticipated in last year's report, the
dynamics of the natural gas business

have continued to change and evolve.

iresdlting four-year agreement will enable us to provide high-quality service
lto o:ur customers and control operating costs while we continue to provide

- }god!d-paying jobs and benefits to our employees.

More natural gas pipelines from the "new”
production areas into the marketplace
have gone into service as the use of
non-conventional production techniques
has expanded. LER has positioned itself

to capture some of the opportunities
presented by these changes.

The shale boom has provided opportunities
to LER throughout the gas supply chain.
Because many of the natural gas producers
and suppliers that are working on the
upstream production end of the gas stream
have not been active in the downstream
marketing of their gas supply, LER has
developed and cultivated a business that
provides such services for these companies.
LER is making the most of this opportunity
by negotiating long-term contracts with
companies such as Newfield Exploration
Company, 5t. Mary Land & Exploration
Company and PetroQuest Energy.

T THE LACLEDE GROUP 2008 ANNUAL REPORT



A Commitment to Safety

The safety of customers, employees and its
facilities is very important to Laclede Gas
Company. The utility engages in a broad
range of programs that are intended to
educate customers of every age about how
to use natural gas safely and efficiently.
One of its newer programs, Safe & Sure,
focuses on educating customers about

the proper and safe use of natural gas in
their homes and businesses. The Safe &
Sure brochure, which has been mailed to
each customer and is also available online,
includes tips on how to safely operate

and maintain natural gas appliances and
what to do if the odor of natural gas is
detected. It also highlights the importance
of a properly functioning carbon menoxide
detector and emphasizes the importance
of protecting the integrity of the natural
gas facilities in and around customers’
property, including service lines, meters
and fuel runs,

Douglas H. Yaeger and

St. Louis City Mayor Francis
Slay introduce the Safe & Sure
program at St. Louis City Hall.

Damage to underground facilities creates
dangerous conditions for excavators,
customers and the community, and can
result in significant damage to property and
the disruption of natural gas service. To
combat such damage, Laclede Gas' Damage
Prevention Department works closely with
Missouri One Call, excavation contractors
and property owners to encourage those
planning excavation activity to “call before
they dig” and request that all underground
utility facilities be located and marked before
breaking ground. When damage does occur,
the department investigates in order to
seek reimbursement when appropriate and,
more importantly, to identify excavators that
repeatedly damage Laclede’s facilities or
those who fail to request that the facilities
be located and marked prior to digging.
Since the creation of the department in
2001, Laclede Gas has experienced a 33%
reduction in the amount of excavation-
related damages.




"UNLESS COMMITMENT IS5 MADE,

—Peter F. Drucker, writer

Laclede Gas Company's efforts have been
acknowledged by the U.5. Environmental
Protection Agency (EPAJ. During fiscal
year 2008, the EPA recognized the
company as a Natural Gas STAR partner.
The program encourages companies
across the natural gas and oil industries
to adopt cost-effective technologies and
practices that improve operational
efficiencies and reduce methane gas
emissions, The EPA also selected Laclede
Gas as its Natural Gas STAR Rookie of the
Year for 2008. This past summer, the EPA
once again spotlighted Laclede’s efforts,
noting that the company was the “first
Natural Gas STAR distributicn partner

to formally report emission reductions
resulting from the implementation of

a damage prevention program.”

Environmental Stewardship
Natural gas is the cleanest of the fossil
fuels and emits far less greenhouse gases

THERE ARE ONLY PROMISES AND HOPES; BUT NO PLANS."

than coal or oil. That, along with its
convenience and reliability, makes natural
gas the right choice for approximately
630,000 customers in the St. Louis region.
Laclede Gas understands and embraces
its role as an environmental steward. In
addition to its nationally recognized damage
prevention program, the company takes -
appropriate steps to minimize its carbon
footprint and places high importance on
its environmental commitments to its
customers and the community.

Laclede Gas is a leader in the Green
Building Initiative (GBI}, The GBIl encourages
builders to construct homes that are
environmentally friendly while conserving
resources, energy and materials. The rating
and certification guidelines developed by
Laclede Gas have been adopted by the
National Association of Home Builders

for the assessment of whether a newly
constructed home meets its green building

9 THE LACLEDE GROUP 2008 ANNUAL REPORT
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standards. The company believes adoption
of these environmentally friendly building
practices is an important component of our
country’'s future environmental, conservation
and energy policies.

Laclede Gas’ position as a leader in the
green building movement offered it the
unique opportunity to shine a spotlight on
environmentally friendly building practices
on nationat television. In September 2008,
the company played a prominent role in the
production of an episode of ABC's Extreme
Makeover: Home Edition in which a very
deserving family within Laclede’s service
area received a brand new home that was
built in just five days. In addition to donating
time and resources to relocate the natural
gas service to the home and to install a
gas grill, Laclede Gas worked very closely
with the builders to certify the home as

GBI compliant. The home was certified at
the GBI “Silver” level.

10

The company also sponsors conferences
and seminars each year spotlighting
“green” topics and practices, such as

The Energy Component in Green Building
Design workshop, which was attended by
industry leaders from across the country.
Industry organizations, such as the
Southern Gas Association and National
Association of Home Builders, have also
recognized and spotlighted Laclede

Gas' environmental initiatives. Laclede

is a member of the National U.S. Green
Building Council (USGBC) and serves

on the board of the St. Louis Regional
Chapter of the USGBC, which promotes
leadership, energy and green building
design for commercial and residential
buildings through its Leadership in Energy
and Environmental Design {LEED) Program.
Laclede Gas is committed to ensuring that
credible and sustainable practices that
protect the environment are more than
just a fad.




“GREAT ORGANIZATIONS DEMAND A HIGH LEVEL OF COMMITMENT BY THE PEOPLE INVOLVED.”
—Bill Gates, business magnate

Laclede Group is committed to the continuous improvement and development of its
: core natural gas distribution business—Laclede Gas Company. We take very seriously
the obligation to provide safe, reliable and reasonably priced natural gas services to

our customers while growing value for our shareholders.

In May, Laclede Gas Company hosted a
seminar on hgw energy efficiency and
operation in r’tmmercial and industrial
building applications may be improved.

The speakers represented top professionals
in the industry. From left, Pau! Wilkinson,
American Gas Association; Douglas H, Yaeger,
Laclede Gas Company; JoAnn Brookes,

HOK 5t Louis; Neil Leslie, Gas Technology
Institute; Ellen Franconi, Architectural Energy
Corporation; Tim Gaidis, HOK St, Louis; and
Anne Murphy[Hill, Murphy Company.

| The Laclede Group's commitment to Commitment to the Core
environmental stewardship extends to Laclede Group is committed to the
the production of this report. For the past continuous improvement and development
eight years, this report has been produced of its core natural gas distribution business—

; by St. Louis’ first Forest Stewardship Council Laclede Gas Company. We take very seriously

| {FSC) certified printer. The FSC is an independent, the obligation to provide safe, reliable and
non-governmental, not-for-profit organization reasonably priced natural gas services to
established to promote responsible manage- our customers while growing value for our
ment of the world's forests. The certification shareholders. To that end, we enlisted a

| process is strictly controlled to assure group of employee leaders to engage in an

| consumers that its vendors use source in-depth review of what we do, why we do it

! materials from forests managed to meet the and how we can do it better. The objective

' social, economic and ecological needs of of this effort is tangible and significant
present and future generations. In addition, improvement in three areas: operational
the 10-K section of this report is printed on efficiency, customer service and culture. We
paper made from 100% recycled fiber; the anticipate we will discover numerous ways
front section uses 30% recycled content. that we can improve how we conduct our
The Laclede Group continues to take steps to business and we will act upon these findings.
reduce the number of copies printed each year The skills and discipline developed through
by offering shareholders the opportunity to this effort will allow us to repeat it with a
opt out of receiving the printed report, and focus on continuous improvement in other
to receive or view the report electronically. aspects of our business in the coming years.

1" THE LACLEDE GROUP 2008 ANNUAL REPORT



CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA

{Thousands, Except Per Share Amounts)

Fiscal Years Ended September 30

Summary of Operations
Operating Revenues:
Reguiated gas distribution
Non-requlated gas marketing
Other
Total operating revenues
COperating Expenses:
Regulated
Natural and propane gas
Other operation expenses
Maintenance
Depreciation and amaortization
Taxes, other than income taxes
Total requlated operating expenses
Non-regulated gas marketing
Other
Total operating expenses
Operating Income
Allowance for Funds Used During Construction
Other Income and {Income Deductions)—~Net
Interest Charges:
Interest on tong-term debt
Interest on tong-term debt to unconsolidated affiliate trust
Other interest charges
Total interest charges
Income from Continuing Operations Before income Taxes
and Dividends on Laclede Gas Redeemable Preferred Stock
Income Fax Expense
Dividends on Laclede Gas Redeemable Preferred Stock
Income from Continuing Operations
Income (Loss) from Discontinued Operations, Net of Income Tax
Net Income
Basic Earnings (Loss) Per Share of Commoan Stock:
Income from continuing operations
Income {loss) from discontinued operations
Net income
Diluted Earnings {Loss) Per Share of Common Stock:
Income from continuing operations
Income {loss} from discontinued operations
Net income
Dividends Declared - Common Stock
Dividends Declared Per Share of Cammon Stock
Utility Plant
Gross Plant—End of Period
Net Plant-End of Period
Capital Expenditures
Property Retirements
Non-Utility Property - End of Period
Other Investments - End of Period
Total Assets of Discontinued Operations - £nd of Period
Total Assets—End of Pericd
Capitalization—End of Period
Common Stock and Paid-In Capital
Retained Earnings
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)
Treasury Stock
Common stock equity
Laclede Gas Redeemable Preferred Stock
Long-Term Debt to Unconsolidated Affiliate Trust
Long-Term Debt - Laclede Gas
Total capitalization
Shares of Common Stock Qutstanding-End of Period
Book Value Per Share—-End of Period

2008 2007 2006
$1,128,287 $ 1,131,554 $1,141,011
1,075,845 718,704 689,572
4,841 5,603 4,445
2,208,973 1,855,861 1,835,028
770,097 797,924 821,721
144,611 131,798 128,180
25,827 24,306 21,198
35,303 34,080 30,904
69,023 68,361 71,038
1,044,861 1,056,469 1,073,041
1,048,162 698,962 662,391
4,603 5,376 5,024
2,097,626 1,760,807 1,740,456
111,347 95,054 94,572
{72} (17} (45}

1,953 6,830 5553
19,851 22,502 22,329

486 277 277

9,140 11,155 10,278
29,477 33,934 32,884
83,751 67,933 67,196
26,190 22,146 21,301

35 43 48

57,526 45744 45,847
20,396 4,027 3,142

S 77,922 S 49,771 S 48989
$2.66 $2.13 $2.16

0.94 0.19 0.15

$3.60 $2.32 $2.31
$2.64 $2.12 52.15

0.94 0.19 0.15

$3.58 $2.31 $2.30

S 32,776 S 31,505 S 30,045
$1.50 $1.46 $1.41
$1,229,174 $1,187.828 $ 1,149,104
823,197 793,794 763,827
55,304 56,434 57,925
15,629 16,331 22,588

) 3,793 S 4,065 S 4,263
$ 43,314 $ 43,635 S 41,354
s — $ 73,357 $ 76,353
$1,772,655 $ 1,641,153 $ 1,570,160
$ 169,234 $ 157,707 $ 148,487
312,808 268,751 250,495
4,437 1,857 3,655
486,479 428,325 402,637
467 627 787

— 45,400 486,400

389,181 309,122 349,041
_$ 876127 $ 784474 §__798865
21,993 21,646 21,362
$22.12 $19.79 $18.85

Note: Certaint pricr-period amounts have been reclassified to discontinued operations os o result of the sate of SM&P Utility Resources, Inc. {SM&P) on Morch 31, 2008.
Income {Loss} from Discontinued Operations does not include general corporate overhead expenses previously recorded by SMEP. Associoted assets ore classified separately.
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2005 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998

S 978,195 § B6B,905 S 774772 S 592,097  $ 923,242  $ 529,250  $ 473031 5 547,229
469,559 270,328 163,861 64,798 69,455 31,331 14,118 9,899
7800 6,848 11,529 4,228 9,412 5,547 4,169 4,715
1,455,554 1,146,081 950,162 661,123 1,002,109 566,128 491318 561,843
676,931 575,691 483,742 340,045 640,006 294,717 246,294 311,759
125,364 121,596 118,550 106,027 101,915 86,970 83,661 86,128
19,226 18,705 18,759 17,813 19,262 18,556 19,517 18,665
23,036 22,385 22,229 24,215 26,193 24,672 21,470 25,304
62,859 60,077 56,102 48,342 65,062 42,788 41,660 43,773
907,416 798,454 699,382 536,442 852,438 467,703 412,602 485,629
462,348 265,394 159,105 64,042 68,338 30,831 14,033 9,751
8.720 7,263 11,279 4,647 9,008 4,251 3,464 3,143
1,376,484 1,071,111 869,766 605,131 929,784 502,785 430,099 498,523
77,070 74,970 80,396 55992 72325 63,343 61,219 63,320
{100} {123) (107) (149] 749 397 739 609
1,706 3.757 1244 827 668 338 242] 674
22,835 22,010 20,169 20,820 18,372 15,164 13,966 14,797
277 277 219 — — — — —
4,141 3,234 3,752 4,201 10,067 8,844 6,627 6,473
27,253 25521 24,140 25,021 28,439 24,008 20,593 21,270
51,423 53,083 57,393 31,649 45,303 40,070 40,423 43,333
16,914 18,243 19,987 10,988 14,831 14,105 14,361 15,441

55 62 62 68 87 93 97 97

34454 34,778 37.334 20,593 30,385 25.872 25,965 27.795
5,616 1,278 {2,759) 1,723 — — — —

$ 40070 § 36056 5 134585 5 22316 $ 30385 S 25872 $ 25965 S 27,795
$1.63 $1.76 $1.97 $1.09 $1.61 $1.37 $1.43 $1.58
0.27 0.06 {0.15) 0.09 — — — —
$1.90 $1.82 5182 $1.18 5161 $137 $1.43 $1.58
$1.63 SL.76 $1.97 $1.09 $1.61 $1.37 $1.43 $1.58
0.27 0.06 {0.15) 0.09 — — — —
$1.90 $1.82 $1.82 5118 $1.61 S137 5143 $1.58

§ 29002 5 21183 § 25492 5§ 25311 § 25296 5 25.297 S 24,459 5 23,229
$1.375 $1.355 $1.34 $1.34 $134 $1.34 $1.34 $1.32
$1,105733  $1,070,522  $1,030,665 S 988,747  $ 949,775  $ 915998  $ 872527 S 833685
728,481 699,144 676,696 594,376 569,640 545,715 517,635 490,585
54,621 49,130 49,926 48,765 46,952 51,635 43,698 47,254
19,410 9,276 8,007 9,769 13,141 6.663 3,190 6,205

S 3899 S5 3993 S 3742 S 3913 $ 4133 § 7327 S 5894 $ 6,107
$ 36851 S 35357 $ 33487 $ 31,154 $ 28760 $ 22337 $ 21972 § 27,727
$ 67,206 $ 57070 S 54042 S 65931  $ — s - s - s —
$1,434,101  $1,317,564  $1,258247  $1,090,990 $ 975810  $ 931,740  $ 837664 S 777,291
$ 142,677 5 137,039 $ B7542 S 83588 $ 106590  $ 106579 5 106570 S 82,460
231,551 220,483 211,610 202,517 205,512 200,423 199,848 198,342
(7,703) (1,607) (80) (339} — - {77} —

— — — — {24,017) (24,017) (24.017) (24,017}
366,525 355915 299,072 285,766 288,085 282,985 282324 256,785
948 1,108 1,258 1.266 1,588 1,763 1,923 1,960
46,400 46,400 46,400 — — - — -
294,033 333,936 259,625 259,545 284,459 234,408 204,323 179,238

$ 707,006 25 737359 S5 606355 S 546577 S 574132 S 519,156 S 48B570 S 437983
21,172 20,981 19,082 18,921 18,878 18,878 18,878 17,628
$17.31 $16.96 $15.10 $15.26 $14.99 $14.96 $14.57

$15.67
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UTILITY STATISTICS

Fiscal Years Ended September 30 2008 2007 2006

Gas Distribution Operating Revenues {Thousands of Dollars):

Residential S 696,919 S 675756 S 689,347
Commercial and Industrial 267,639 271,872 284,174
Interruptible ‘ 4,704 3,771 5,644
Transportation 16,008 15,601 15,257
Off-System and Other Incentive 132,145 156,103 139,501
Provisions for Refunds and Other 10,872 8,451 7,088

Total utitity operating revenues 51,128,287 $1,131,554 $1,141,011

Therms Sold and Transported (Thousands}):

Residential 514,450 496,297 462,158
Cemmercial and Industrial 242,122 231,390 216,903
Interruptible 5,020 4,019 5,311
Transportation 172,985 175,191 182,610

System therms sold and transported 934,577 906,897 B66,982
Off-System 143,686 212911 156,591

Total therms sold ond transported 1,078,263 1,119,808 1,023,573

Customers — End of Period:

Residential 588,228 580,337 590,392
Commercial and Industrial 40,801 41,062 40,909
Interruptible 17 15 17
Transportation 144 145 148

Total customers 629,190 631,559 631,466

Average Use and Revenue (Based on Average Monthly Use}:
Use Per Customer - Therms:

fesidential, without heat 286 302 291

Residential, with heat 856 827 772
Revenue Per Customer;

Residential, without heat $ 54643 S 51454 S 530.05

Residential, with heat 1,159.80 1,125.65 1,150.70

Gas Statistics (Millions of Therms):

Produced ) 01 0.7 0.9
Natural Gas Purchased and Received for Transportation ] 982.2 940.8 901.7
Withdrawn from Storage 246.9 2298 219.7
Total system receipts 1,229.2 11713 11223
Less:
Used by Company 0.6 0.7 0.6
Delivered to Storage 2536 2389 2324
Unaccounted For 40.4 24.8 22.3
Systern therms sold ond transported 934.6 906.9 867.0
Peak Day System Sendout 8.5 9.0 9.0
Mean Temperature (F} on Peak Day 16° 12° 10°
Estimated System Sendout on Zero Day 11.0 11.0 11.0
Degree Days 4,645 4,349 4,114
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2005 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998

$ 586,227 $ 543,996 $ 502,071 S 387.594 $ 619,090 $ 346,159 $ 324,115 $ 365768
223,446 202,183 188,688 142,259 250,741 123,578 112,880 132,504
3,688 3,206 2,744 1,769 3,063 1,922 1,808 2,254
14,726 14,523 15,503 12,867 14,350 13,722 14,132 12,734
144,185 99,152 60,609 43,443 30,218 40,163 1¢,216 29,852
5,913 5,845 5157 4,165 5.780 3,706 3,870 4,117

$ 978,195 $ B68,905 $ 774,772 $ 592,097 $ 923,242 $ 529,250 $ 473,031 S 547,229
496,999 524,895 577,190 502,160 607,835 485,494 530,919 560,732
220,598 229,138 256,525 240,532 280,435 228,311 245,138 259,205
4,723 4,581 4,987 4,103 3,895 4,428 5,643 5,838
191,900 192,113 195,884 174,354 181,454 187,866 188,580 190,811
914,220 950,727 1,034,586 921,149 1,073,619 916,099 970,280 1,016,586
204,357 173,260 91,752 139,305 45,041 119,053 55,655 104,763
1,118,577 1,123,987 1,126,338 1,060,454 1,118,660 1,035,152 1025935 1,121,349
589,082 591,547 590,785 588,630 584,269 586,783 582,719 577,224
40,474 40,417 40,166 39,842 39,264 39,419 39,041 38,519
16 16 16 14 15 14 13 15

150 151 154 152 152 154 155 149
629,722 632,131 631,121 628,638 523,700 626,370 621,928 615,907
296 308 327 307 348 316 329 332

832 879 970 849 1,028 843 910 269

$ 45317 $ 42189 $ 39092 $ 33456 $ 45516 $ 316.63 $ 29435 $ 31379
980.60 910.41 842.72 654.68 1,044.98 587.51 554,53 630.64
0.2 9.5 103 0.1 103 0.2 2.6 0.3
936.5 978.1 1,059.5 949.5 1,116.0 939.1 1,003.0 10486
235.0 236.5 234.6 233.0 237.8 231.7 240.1 221.2
11717 1,224.1 1,304.4 11826 13641 11710 1.245.7 1,270.1
0.6 0.8 0.9 0.6 11 o7 0.9 09
237.7 2456 2427 238.3 253.6 234.0 250.0 2343
19.2 27.0 26.2 22.6 35.8 20.2 24.5 18.3
914.2 950.7 1,034.6 921.1 1,073.6 916.1 970.3 1,016.6
9.0 10.0 10.3 8.6 a8 8.4 10.5 8.8

16° 6° 4° 18° .8 21° 3¢ 14°

11.0 11.0 10.9 10.6 109 111 113 11.4
4,105 4,102 4,803 3,959 5,102 3,933 4,140 4,404
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Part1l
FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Certain matters discussed in this report, excluding historical information, include forward-looking statements. Certain
words, such as “may,” “anticipate,” “believe,” “estimate,” “expect,” “intend,” “plan,” “seek,” and similar words and
expressions identify forward-looking statements that involve uncertainties and risks. Future developments may not be in
accordance with our expectations or beliefs and the effect of future developments may not be those anticipated. Among
the factors that may cause results to differ materially from those contemplated in any forward-looking statement are:

+ weather conditions and catastrophic events, particularly severe weather in the natural gas
producing areas of the country;

s+ volatility in gas prices, particularly sudden and sustained spikes or declines in natural gas prices,
including the related impact on margin deposits associated with the use of natural gas financial
instruments;

» the impact of higher natural gas prices on our competitive position in relation to suppliers of
alternative heating sources, such as electricity;

» changes in gas supply and pipeline availability; particularly those changes that impact supply for
and access to our market area;

 legislative, regulatory and judicial mandates and decisions, some of which may be retroactive,
including those affecting
+ allowed rates of return
+ incentive regulation
* . industry structure
« purchased gas adjustment provisions
« rate design structure and implementation
» franchise renewals
» environmental or safety matters
+  taxes
« pension and other postretirement benefit liabilities and funding obligations
« accounting standards;

» the results of litigation;

« retention of, ability to attract, ability to collect from, and conservation efforts of, customers;

« capital and energy commodity market conditions, including the ability to obtain funds with
reasonable terms for necessary capital expenditures and general operations and the terms and
conditions imposed for obtaining sufficient gas supply;

-+ discovery of material weakness in internal controls; and

+ employee workforce issues.

Readers are urged to consider the risks, uncertainties, and other factors that could affect our business as described in this
report. All forward-looking statements made in this report rely upon the safe harbor protections provided under the
Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. We do not, by including this statement, assume any obltgatlon 1o
review or revise any particular forward-looking statement in light of future events.

[tem 1. Business
Overview

The Laclede Group, Inc. (Laclede Group or the Company) is a public utility holding company formed through a corporate
restructuring that became effective October 1, 2001. Laclede Group is commitied 1o providing reliable natural gas service
through its regulated core utility operations while engaging in non-regulated activities that provide sustainable growth.
All of Laclede Group’s subsidiaries are wholly owned. The Regulated Gas Distribution segment includes Laclede Gas
Company (Laclede Gas or the Utility), Laclede Group’s largest subsidiary and.core business unit. Laclede Gas is a public
utility engaged in the retail distribution and sale of natural gas. Laclede Gas is the largest natural gas distribution utility in
Missouri, serving approximately 630,000 residential, commercial, and industrial customers in the City of St. Louis and
parts of ten other counties in eastern Missouri. The Non-Regulated Gas Marketing segment includes Laclede Energy
Resources, Inc. (LER), a wholly-owned subsidiary engaged in the non-regulated marketing of natural gas and related
activities. LER markets natural gas to both on-system Utility transportation customers and customers outside of Laclede
Gas’ traditional service territory, including large retail and wholesale customers, As such, LER’s operations and customer
base are subject to fluctuations in market conditions. Other subsidiaries provide less than 10% of consolidated revenues.



On March 31,'2008, the Company completed the sale of 100% of its interest in its wholly-owned subsidiary SM&P.
Utility Resources, Inc. (SM&P) to Stripe Acquisition, Inc. (an affiliate of Kohlberg Management VI, LLC) for $85
million in cash, subject to certain closing and post-closing adjustments, SM&P is an underground facilities locating and
marking business that comprised Laclede Group’s Non-Regulated Services operating segment. The sales agreement
inciuded representations, warranties, and indemnification provisions customary for such transactions and was filed as an
exhibit to the March 31, 2008 Form 10-Q. In accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, the results of
operations for SM&P are reported as discontinued operations in the Consolidated Statements of Income and its associated
assets and liabilities are classified separately in the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Operating Revenues (from continuing operations) contributed by each segment for the last three fiscal years are presented
below. For more detailed financial information regarding the segments, see Note 14 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements. "

(Thousands) 2008 2007 2006

Regulated Gas Distribution § 1,128,287 $ 1,131,554 $ 1,141,011
" Non-Regulated Gas Marketing 1,075,845 718,704 689,572

Other 4,841 5,603 4,445

Total Operating Revenues $ 2,208,973 $ 1,855,861 $ 1,835,028

The Consolidated Financial Statements included in this report present the consolidated financial position, results of
operations, and cash flows of Laclede Group. The financial statements, notes to financial statements, and management’s
discussion and analysis for Laciede Gas are included in this report as Exhibit 99.1.

The foliowing chart illustrates the organization structure of The Laclede Group, Inc. at September 30, 2008:

Organization Structure

The Laclede
Group, Inc.
I
[ | | I
Laclede Laclede Laclede
Laclede Gas Investment Development Pipeline
Company LLIC Complany Company
Laclede
Energy Laclede
Resources, Venture Corp.
]ncl:.
Laclede Gas
Family
Services,
Inc.

Laclede Group common stock is listed on The New York Stock Exchange and trades under the ticker symbal “LG”.
Laclede Gas continues to pay dividends on all serial preferred stock issued.




During fiscal year 2008, Laclede Group issued 106,436 shares of common stock under its Dividend Reinvestment and
Stock Purchase Plan and 241,400 shares of common stock (including 62,650 shares of restricted stock) under its Equity
Incentive Plan. During fiscal year 2007, Laclede Group issued 116,973 shares of common stock under its Dividend
Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan and 167,025 shares of common stock (including 59,000 shares of restricted stock)
under its Equity Incentive Plan.

The information we file or fumnish to the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC), including annual reports on Form
10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, and current reports on Form 8-K and their amendments, are available on our
website, www.thelacledegroup.com, in the Investor Services section under SEC Filings as soon as rzasonably practical
after the information is filed or furnished to the SEC.. .

REGULATED GAS DISTRIBUTION
NATURAL GAS SUPPLY

The Ut111ty f‘ocuses its gas supply portfolio around a number of farge natural gas suppliers with equity ownership or
control of assets strategically situated to complement Laclede’s regionally diverse firm transportation arrangements.’

Laclede Gas® fundamental gas supply strategy is to meet the two-fold objective of 1) ensuring that the gas supplies it
acquires are dependable and will be delivered when needed and, 2) insofar as is compatible with that dependability,
purchasing gas that is economically priced. In structuring its natural gas supply portfolio, Laclede Gas continues to focus
on natural gas assets that are strategically positioned to meet the Utility’s primary objectives. Laclede Gas utilizes both
Mid-Continent and Guif Coast gas sources to provide a leve! of supply diversity that facilitates the optimization of pricing
differentials as well as protecting against the potential of regional supply disruptions.

In fiscal 2008, Laclede Gas purchased natural gas from 27 different suppliers to meet current gas sales and storage
injection requirements. In addition to working with major producers, the Utility has entered into agreements with
suppliers that are taking advantage of improved drilling techniques and advancing technologies, which allow Laclede Gas
to be flexible in meeting the needs of its customers. Natural gas purchased by Laclede Gas for delivery to our Utility
service area through the Mississippi River Transmission Corporation (MRT) system totaled 60.9 billion cubic feet (Bef).
The Utility also holds firm transportation on several other interstate pipeline systems that provide access to gas supplies
upstream of MRT. In addition to deliveries from MRT, 10.6 Bef of gas was purchased on the Panhandle Eastern Pipe

Line Company system, and 11.1 Bcf on the Southern Star Central Pipeline system. Some of the Utility’s commercial and

industrial customers continued to purchase their own gas and delivered to Lactede Gas 17.3 Bcf for transportation to them
through the Utility’s distribution system.

The fiscal 2008 peak day sendout of natural gas to Utility customers, including transportation customers, occurred on
January 2, 2008, when the average temperature was 16 degrees Fahrenheit. On that day, our customers consumed 0.846
Bef of natural gas. About 81% of this peak day demand was met with natural gas transported to St. Louis through the
MRT, Panhandle, and Southern Star transportation systems, and the other 19% was met from the Utility's on—syslem
storage and peak shaving resources.

UNDERGROUND NATURAL GAS STORAGE

Laclede Gas has a contractual right to store approximately 23.1 Bef of gas in MRT’s storage facility located in
Unionville, Louisiana. MRT’s tariffs allow injections into storage from May 16 through November 15 and require the
withdrawal from storage of all but 2.2 Bef from November 16 through May 15.

In addition, Laclede Gas supplements flowing pipeline gas with natural gas withdrawn from its own underground storage
field located in St. Louis and St. Charles Counties in Missouri. The field is designed to provide 0.357 Bef of natural gas
withdrawals on a peak day and annual withdrawals of approximately 5.5 Bcf of gas based on the inventory level that
Laclede plans to maintain.



REGULATORY MATTERS

There were several significant regulatory developments over the past year. For more details, please see the Regulatory
Matters discussion in the Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations, on
page 31 of this Form 10-K.

OTHER PERTINENT MATTERS

* The business of Laclede Gas has monopoly characteristics in that it is the only distributor of natural gas within its
franchised service area. The principal competition is the local electric company. Other competitors in Laclede Gas’
service area include suppliers of fuel oil, ceal, propane in outlying areas, natural gas pipelines which can directly connect
to large volume customers, and in a portion of downtown St. Louis, a district steam system.

Laclede Gas’ residential, commercial, and small industrial markets represent more than 85% of the Utility’s revenue.
Given the current adequate level of natural gas supply and market conditions, Laclede believes that the relative
comparison of natural gas equipment and operating costs with those of competitive fuels will not change significantly in
the foreseeable future, and that these markets will continue to be supplied by natural gas. In the new multi-family and
commercial rental markets, Laclede Gas® competitive exposure is presently limited to space and water heating
applications. Certain alternative heating systems can be cost competitive in traditional markets, but the performance and
reliability of natural gas systems have contained the growth of these alternatives.

Coal is price competitive as a fuel source for very large boiler plant loads, but environmental requirements for coal have
shifted the economic advantage to natural gas. Oil and propane can be used to fuel boiler loads and certain direct-fired
process applications, but these fuels require on-site storage, thus limiting their competitiveness. In certain cases, district
steam has been competitive with gas for downtown St. Louis area heating users, Laclede Gas offers gas transportation
service to its large user industrial'and commercial customers, The tariff approved for that type of service produces a *
margin similar to that which Laclede Gas would have received under its regular sales rates.

R R

Laclede Gas is subject to various environmental laws and regulations that, to date, have not materially affected the
Company’s financial position and results of operations. For a detailed dlscusswn of environmental matters, see Note 15 to
the Consolidated Financial Statements on page 77.

LLE L L]

Laclede Gas has a labor agreement with Locals 11-6 and 11-194 of the United Steel, Paper and Forestry, Rubber,-
Manufacturing, Energy, Allied-Industrial and Service Workers [nternational Union (Union), which represent
approximately 65% of Laclede Gas’ employees. On August 4, 2008, Laclede Gas and Union representatives reached a
new four-year tabor agreement, replacing the prior agreement that expired at midnight, July 31, 2008. The new contract
will expire at midnight on July 31, 2012. The new contract includes revisions to the defined benefit plan pension formula,
changes in wage rates and work rules, and other modifications ‘that enable the Utility to provide high quality service to its
customers and conirol operating costs while continuing to provide competitive wages, pension, and healthcare benefits to
its employees.

The Missouri Natural Division of Laclede Gas has a labor agreement with Local | 1-884 of the United Steel, Paper and

Forestry, Rubber, Manufacturing, Energy, Allied-Industrial and Service Workers International Union, which represents
approximately 5% of Laclede Gas’ employees. The agreement expires on April 15, 2009.

LEL L L]

As of September 30, 2008, Laclede Gas had 1,807 employees, including 12 part-time employees.

FTIT T

The business of Laclede Gas is subject to seasonal fluctuations with the peak period occurring in the winter season.




Revenues and customers of Laclede Gas for the last three fiscal years are as follows:

Regulated Gas Distribution Operating Revenues

(Thousands) . 2008 - 2007 2006
Residential $ 696919 S 675756 § 689,347
Commercial & Industrial 267,639 271,872 284,174
Interruptible 4,704 3,771 5,644
Transportation 16,008 15,601 15,257
Off-System and Capacity Release 132,145 156,103 139,501
Provision for Refunds and Other 10,872 8,451 7,088
Total $ 1,128,287 § 1,131,554 § 1,141,011

Regulated Gas Distribution Customers (End of Period)

2008 2007 2006
Residential 588,228 590,337 590,392
Commercial & Industrial 40,801 41,062 40,909
Interruptible 17 i5 17
Transportation . 144 145 148
Total Customers 629,190 631,559 631,466
EPTTTS

Laclede Gas has franchises in the more than 90 communities where it provides service with initial terms varying from five
years 1o an indefinite duration. Generally, a franchise allows Laclede Gas, among other things, to install pipes and
construct other facilities in the community. The Utility has franchises for all but one of the communities in which it
serves. All of the franchises are free from unduly burdensome restrictions and are adequate for the conduct of Laclede
Gas’ current public utility business in the State of Missouri. The Utility is currently working with the affected community
to renew its expired franchise and does not anticipate any interruption in service to this community.

NON-REGULATED GAS MARKETING

LER, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Laclede Investment, LLC, is engaged in the non-regulated marketing of natural gas
and other services to both on-system Utility transportation customers and customers outside of Laclede Gas’ traditional
service area, and related activities. LER currently utilizes 12 interstate pipelines and 60 suppliers to market natural gas to
its customers, including large retail and wholesale customers in the Midwest. LER currently serves more than 100 retail
customers and approximately 60 wholesale customers. Through its retail operations, LER offers natural gas marketing
services to large industrial customers, while its wholesale business consists of buying and selling natural gas to other
marketers, producers, local distribution companies, pipelines, and municipalities. LER’s wholesale business, which
continues to grow, currently represents approximately 85% of LERs revenues. In fiscal year 2008, LER reported a 15%
increase in natural gas sales volumes compared to fiscal year 2007. In fiscal year 2007, it reported a 30% increase in sales
volumes compared to the previous fiscal year. These increases were primarily attributable to higher wholesale sales
volumes. LER has recently negotiated several long-term supply, sales, and transportation contracts to facititate the growth
of its business. LER reported operating revenues of $1.1 billion in fiscal year 2008 and $0.7 billion per year in fiscal years
2007 and 2006.



OTHER SUBSIDIARIES

Laclede Pipeline Company, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Laclede Group, operates a pipeline under Federal Energy
Regulatory Commission (FERC} jurisdiction that connects the propane storage and vaporization facilities of Laclede Gas
to third-party propane supply terminal facilities located in illinois. Laclede Gas vaporizes the propane to supplement its
natural gas supply and meet peak demands on its distribution system.

Laclede Investment LLC, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Laclede Group, invests in other enterprises and has made loans to
several joint ventures engaged in real estate development.

Laclede Gas Family Services, Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary of Laclede Energy Resources, Inc., is a registered
insurance agency in the State of Missouri. .

Laclede Development Company, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Laclede Group, participates in real estate 'development,
primarily through joint ventures.

Laclede Venture Corp., a wholly-owned subsidiary of Laclede Development Company, offers services for the
compression of natural gas to third parties who desire to use or to sell compressed natural gas for use in vehicles.

The lines of business that constitute the Other activities of the corporate family are not considered separately reportable
operating segments as defined by current accounting standards.
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Item 1A. Risk Factors

Laclede Group’s business and financial results are subject to a number of risks and uncertainties, including those set forth
below. The risks described below are those the Company considers to be the most material.

RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES THAT RELATE TO THE BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL RESULTS OF
LACLEDE GROUP AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES -

As a holding company, Laclede Group depends on its eperating subsidiaries to meet its financial ebligations.

Laclede Group is a holding company with no significant assets other than cash investments and the stock of its operating
subsidiaries. Laclede Group, and Laclede Gas prior to Laclede Group’s formation, have paid dividends continuously since
1946. However, Laclede Group relies exclusively on dividends from its subsidiaries, on intercompany loans from its
non-regulated subsidiaries, and on the repayments of principal and interest from intercompany loans made to its
subsidiaries for its cash flows. Laclede Group’s ability to pay dividends to its shareholders is dependent on the ability of
its subsidiaries, particularly Laclede Gas, to generate sufficient net income and cash flows to pay upstream dividends and
make loans or loan repayments to Laclede Group. Laclede Group’s cash flows for fiscal 2008 included proceeds from the
sale of its wholly-owned subsidiary, SM&P.

A downgrade in Laclede Group’s credit rating could negatively affect its ability to access capital.

Currently, Laclede Group’s corporate rating is A by Standard & Poor’s and A- by Fitch. Laclede Group has working

capital lines of credit to meet the short-term liquidity needs of its subsidiaries. If the rating agencies lowered Laclede
Group’s credit rating, particularly below investment grade, it might significantly limit its ability to borrow and would
increase its costs of borrowing. Laclede Group’s ability to borrow and costs of borrowing have a direct impact on its

subsidiaries’ ability to execute operating strategies. .

Risk of unexpected losses may adversely affect Laclede Group’s financial position and results of operations.

As with most businesses, there are operations and business risks inherent in the activities of Lacleds Group’s subsidiaries.
If, in the normal course of business, Laclede Group becomes a party to litigation, such litigation could result in substantial
monetary judgments, fines, or penalties or be resolved on unfavorable terms. In accordance with customary practice,
Laclede Group and its subsidiaries maintain insurance against a significant portion of, but not all, risks and losses. To the

“extent a loss is not fully covered by insurance, that loss could adversely affect the Company’s financial position and

results of operations.

RISKS THAT RELATE TO THE REGULATED GAS DISTRIBUTION SEGMENT
Risks related to the regulation of the Utility business could impact rates it is able to charge,.costs, and profitability.

The Missouri Public Service Commission (MoPSC or Commission) regulates many aspects of its clistribution operations,
including construction and maintenance of facilities, operations, safety, the rates that the Utility may charge customers,
the terms of service to its customers, and the rate of return that it is allowed to realize; as well as the accounting treatment
for certain aspects of its operations. For further discussion of these accounting matters, see Critical Accounting Policies
pertaining to Laclede Gas, beginning on page 28. Laclede Gas’ ability to obtain rate increases and rate supplements to
maintain the current rate of return depends upon regulatory discretion. There can be no assurance that it will be able to
obtain rate increases or rate supplements or continue earning the current authorized rates of return. In addition, the FERC
regulates the interstate transportation of natural gas from the wellhead to the Utility’s city gate and establishes the terms
and conditions under which it may use interstate gas pipeline and storage capacity to purchase, store, and transport natural
gas.
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Laclede Gas’ liquidity and, in certain circumstances, its results of operations could be adversely affected by the
cost of purchasing natural gas during periods in which natural gas prices are rising significantly.

Laclede Gas’ tariff rate schedules contain Purchased Gas Adjustment (PGA) Clauses that permit the Utility to file for rate
adjustments to recover the cost of purchased gas. Changes in the cost of purchased gas are flowed through to customers
and may affect uncollectible amounts and cash flows and can therefore impact the amount of capital resources. Currently,
Laclede Gas is aliowed to adjust the gas cost component of its rates up to four times each year. The Utility must make a
mandatory gas cost adjustment at the beginning of the winter, in November, and during the next twelve months it may
make up to three additional discretionary gas cost adjustments, so long as each of these adjustments is separated by at
least two months. :

The MoPSC typically approves the Utility’s PGA changes on an interim basis, subject to refund and the outcome of a
subsequent audit and prudence review. Due to such review process, there is a risk of a disallowance of full recovery of
these costs. Any material disallowance of purchased gas costs would adversely affect revenues. Increases in the prices the
Utility charges for gas may also adversely affect revenues because they could lead customers to reduce usage and cause
some customers 1o have trouble paying the resulting higher bills. These higher prices may increase bad debt expenses and
ultimately reduce earnings. Laclede Gas has used short-term borrowings in the past to finance storage inventories and
purchased gas costs, and expects to do so in the future.

Laclede Gas may be adversely affected by economic conditions.

Periods of slowed economic activity, such as that currently being experienced, generally result in decreased energy
consumption, particularly by industrial and large commercial companies. As a consequence, national or regional
recessions or other downturns in economic activity could adversely affect Laclede Gas’ revenues and cash flows or
restrict its future growth. Economic conditions in its service territory may also adversely impact the Utility’s ability to
collect its accounts receivable resulling in an increase to bad debt expenses.

Hedging procedures may not fully protect Laclede Gas sales and results of operations from volatility, and the use
of derivative contracts.in the normal course of business could result in financial losses.

To lower financial exposure to commodity price fluctuations, Laclede Gas enters into contracts to hedge the forward
commodity price of its natural gas supplies. As part of this strategy, the Utility may use fixed-price, forward, physical
purchase contracts, futures, and option contracts traded on the New York Mercantile Exchange. However, the Utitity does

not hedge the entire exposure of energy assets or positions to market price volatility, and the coverage will vary over time.

Any costs, gains, or losses experienced through hedging procedures, including carrying costs, generally flow through the
PGA Clause, thereby limiting the Utility’s exposure to earnings volatility. However, variations in the timing of
collections of such gas costs under the PGA Clause and the effect of cash payments for margin deposits associated with
the Utility’s use of natural gas financial instruments may cause short-term cash requirements to vary. These procedures
remain subject to prudence review by the-MoPSC, '

Laclede Gas is depeﬁdent on bank lines of credit and continued access to capital markets to successfully execute its
operating strategies.

In addition to longer term debt that is issued to the public by the Utility under its mortgage and deed of trust dated
February 1, 1945, Laclede Gas has relied, and continues to rely, upon shorter term bank borrowings or commercial paper
supported by bank lines of credit to finance the execution of a portion of its operating strategies. The Utility is dependent
on these capital sources to purchase its natural gas supply and maintain its properties. The availability and cost of these
credit sources is cyclical and these capital sources may not remain available to the Utility, or it may not be able to obtain
funds at a reasonable cost in the future. Laclede Gas’ ability to borrow under its existing lines of credit depends on its
compliance with the Utility’s obligations under the lines of credit. Laclede Gas’ ability to issue commercial paper
supported by its lines of credit, to issue long-term bonds, or to obtain new lines of credit also depends on current
conditions in the credit markets.
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A downgrade in the Utility’s credit rating could negatively affect its ability to access capital.
Standard & Poor’s rating group, Moody’s Investors Service, and Fitch.Ratings from time to time implement new
requirements for various ratings levels. To maintain its current credit ratings in light of any new requirements, Laclede

Gas may find it necessary to take steps to change its business plans in ways that may affect its results of operations.

The following table shows the current ratings assigned by S&P, Moody’s, and Fitch to certain of our outstanding debt:

Type of Facility : ' S&P Moody’s Fitch

Laclede Gas First Mortgage Bonds A Al At
Laclede Gas Commercial Paper A-l P-2 Fl

If the rating agencies lowered the Utility’s ratings, particularly below investment grade, it could significantly limit its
access to the commercial paper market and would increase its costs of borrowing. In addition, Laciede Gas would likely
be required to pay a higher interest rate in future financings and the Utility’s potential pool of investors and funding
sources would likely decrease. Credit ratings are an independent assessment of the Utility’s ability to pay its obligations.
Consequently, real or anticipated changes in credit ratings will generally affect the market value of the specific debt
instruments that are rated.

Transporting, distributing, and storing natural gas invelves numerous risks that may result in accidents and other
operating risks and costs. i

There are inherent in gas distribution activities a variety of hazards and operations risks, such as leaks, accidental
explosions, and mechanical problems, that could cause substantial financial losses. In addition, these risks could result in
loss of human life, significant damage to property, environmental pollution, impairment of operations, and substantial
losses to Laclede Gas. The location of pipelines and storage facilities near populated areas, including residential areas,
commercial business centers, and industrial sites, could increase the level of damages resulting from these risks. These
activities may subject the Utility to litigation or administrative proceedings from time to time. Such litigation or
proceedings could result in substantial monetary judgments, fines, or penalties against the Ulility or be resolved on
unfavorable terms. In accordance with customary industry practices, Laclede Gas maintains insurance against a
significant portion, but not all, of these risks and losses. To the extent that the occurrence of any of these events is not
fully covered by insurance, it could adversely affect the Utility’s financial position and results of operations.

Increases in the wholesale costs of purchased natural gas supplies may adversely impact the Utility’s competitive
position compared with alternative energy sources. '

Laclede Gas is the only distributor of natural gas within its franchised service area. Nevertheless, rising wholesale natural
gas prices compared with prices for electricity, fuel oil, coal, propane, or other energy sources may affect the Utility’s
retention of natural gas customers and adversely impact its financial position and results of operations.

Significantly warmer-than-normal weather conditions, the effects of global warming and climate change, and
other factors that influence customer usage may affect the Utility’s sale of heating energy and adversely impact its
financial position and results of operations.

Laclede Gas’ earnings are primarily generated by the sale of heating energy. The Utility has a weather mitigation rate
design, approved by the MoPSC, that provides better assurance of the recovery of the Utility’s fixed costs and margins
during winter months despite variations in sales volumes due to the impacts of weather and other factors that affect
customer usage. However, significantly warmer-than-normal weather conditions in the Utility’s service area and other
factors may result in reduced profitability and decreased cash flows attributable to lower gas sales levels. Furthermore,
continuation of the weather mitigation rate design is subject to regulatory discretion. '
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Regional supply/demand fluctuations and changes in national pipeline infrastructere may, as well as regulatory
discretion, adversely affect Laclede Gas’ ability to profit from off-system sales and capacity release.

Laclede Gas’ income from off-system sales and capacity release is subject to fluctuations in market conditions and
changing supply and demand conditions in areas the Utility holds pipeline capacity rights. Specific factors impacting the
Utility’s income from off-system sales and capacity release include the availability of attractively-priced natural gas
supply, availability of pipeline capacity, and market demand. Income from off-system sales and capacity release is shared
with customers. Effective October 1, 2007, the Utility is allowed to retain 15% to 25% of the first $6 million in annual
income earned (depending on the level of income earned) and 30% of income exceeding $6 million annually, The
Utility’s ability to retain such income in the future is subject to regulatory discretion in a base rate proceeding.

Workforce risks could affect Laclede Gas’ financial results.

Laclede Gas is subject to various workforce risks, including but not limited to, the risk that it will be unable to attract and
retain qualified personnel; that it will be unable to effectively transfer the knowledge and expertise of an aging workforce
to new personnel as those workers retire; and that it will be unable to reach collective bargaining arrangements with the
unions that represent certain of its workers, which could result in work stoppages.

Catastrophic events could adversely affect Laclede Gas’ facilities and operations.

Catastrophic events such as fires, earthquakes, explosions, floods, tornados, terrorists acts, or other similar occurrences
could adversely aftect Laclede Gas’ facilities, operations, financial condition, and results of operations.

RISKS THAT RELATE TO THE NON-REGULATED GAS MARKETING SEGMENT

Risks of increased competition, regional fluctuations in natural gas commodity prices, and new national pipeline
infrastructure projects may adversely impact LER’s future profitability.

Competition in the marketplace and regional fluctuations in natural gas commodity prices have a direct impact on LER’s
business. Changing market conditions caused by new pipeline infrastructure may adversely impact LER’s sales margins
or affect LER’s ability to serve certain wholesale customers, thereby increasing certain credit requirements and/or
reducing wholesale sales volumes and profitability. The FERC regulates the interstate transportation of natural gas and
establishes the terms and conditions under which LER may use interstate gas pipeline capacity to purchase and transport
natural gas. :

Risks of reduced access to credit and/or capital markets may prevent LER from executing operating strategies.

In addition to its cash flows, LER relies on parental guarantees and Joans to cover the lag between when it purchases
natural gas and when its customers pay for that gas. Although LER’s uncollectible amounts are closely monitored and
have not been significant, increased uncollectible amounts from customers are possible and may result in financial losses
and/or capital limitations. Typically, a major portion of LER’s receivables are from customers in the energy industry.

Risk mam-agement policies and the use of cash flow hedging may not fully protect LER’s sales and results of
operations from volatility and may result in financial losses.

LER manages the price risk associated with fixed-price commitments for the purchase or sale of natural gas by either
closely matching the offsetting physical purchase or sale of natural gas at fixed prices or through the use of exchange-
traded futures contracts to lock in margins. However, market conditions and regional price changes may cause ineffective
portions of matched positions to result in financial losses.




Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

None.

Item 2. Properties

The principal utility properties of Laclede Gas consist of more than 16,000 miles of gas main and related service pipes,
meters, and regulators. Other physical properties include regional office buildings and holder stations. Extensive
underground natural gas and propane storage facilities and equipment are located in an area in North St. Louis County
extending under the Missouri River into St. Charles County. Substantially all of Laclede Gas’ utility plant is subject to the
liens of its morigage.

All of the utility properties of Laclede Gas are held in fee or by easement or under lease agreements. The principal lease
agreements include underground storage rights that are of indefinite duration and the headquarters cffice building. The
current lease on the headquarters office building extends through February 2010 with options to renew for up to 10
additional years. .

For further information on Laclede Gas’ leases see Note 15 to the Consolidated Financial Statements on page 77.

Other properties of Laclede Group, including LER, do mot constitute a significant portion of its properties.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

For a description of environmental matters, see Note 15 to the Consolidated Financial Statements on page 77. Fora
description of pending regulatory matters of Laclede Gas, see the Regulatory Matters discussion in the Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations, on page 31.

Laclede Group and its subsidiaries are involved in litigation, claims, and investigations arising in the normal course of
business. While the results of such litigation cannot be predicted with certainty, management, after discussion with
counsel, believes the final outcome will not have a material adverse effect on the consolidated financial position or results
of operations reflected in the consolidated financial statements presented herein.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

There were no matters submiited to a vote of security holders during the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2008.



EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF REGISTRANTS - Listed below are executive officers as defined by the SEC for
Laclede Group..Their ages, at September 30, 2008, and positions are listed below along with their business experience
during the past five years.

Name, Age, and Position with Company * Appeinted (1)

D. H. Yaeger, Age 59

Laclede Group
Chairman, President-and Chief Executive Officer October 2000

Laclede Gas
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer January 1999

LER .
President January 1999

K. J. Neises, Age 67

Laclede Gas _

Executive Vice President October 2007
Executive Vice President — Energy and Administrative Services January 2002
LER

Vice President February 2002

M. D. Waltermire, Age 50

Laclede Group

Chief Financial Officer October 2007
Laclede Gas

Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer October 2007
Vice President — Operations & Marketing April 2003
LER '

Vice President October 2007

M. C. Darrell, Age 50

Laclede Group

General Counsel (2) ' May 2004
Laclede Gas

Senior Vice President and General Counsel October 2007
General Counsel May 2004

R. A. Skau, Age 51

Laclede Gas

Senior Vice President — Human Resources October 2007

Vice President — Human Resources February 2004

Assistant Vice President — Human Resources September 2001
M. R. Spotanski, Age 48

Laclede Gas

Senior Vice President — Operations and Marketing October 2007

Vice President — Finance January 2001
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M. C. Kullman, Age 48

Laclede Group
Chief Governance QOfficer and Corporate Secretary
Corporate Secretary

Laclede Gas
Chief Governance Officer and Corporate Secretary
Secretary and Associate General Counsel

LER
Secretary

D. P. Abernathy, Age 47

Laclede Gas
Vice President -- Industrial Relations and Claims Management (3)
Vice President — Associate General Counsel

M. C. Geiselhart, Age 49

Laclede Group

Vice President - Strategic Development and Planning (4)

Laclede Gas
Vice President — Strategic Development and Planning

S. F. Mathews, Age 50

Laclede Gas
Vice President — Gas Suppty

M. C. Pendergast, Age 52

Laclede Gas
Vice President — Associate General Counsel

J. A. Fallert, Age 53

Laclede Gas
Controller

S. E. Jaskowiak, Age 46
LER

Vice President and General Manager
Managing Director
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February 2004
October 2000

February 2004
February 2001

February 1998

October 2007
September 2004

August 2006

August 2006

February 2003

January 2002

February 1998

February 2005
May 2003



* The information provided relates to the Company and its principal subsidiaries. Many of the

executive officers have served or currently serve as officers or directors for other subsidiaries of
the Company.

(1)  Officers of Laclede are normally reappointed at the Annual Meeting of the Board of
Directors in January of each year to serve at the pleasure of the Board of Directors for the
ensuing year and until their successors are elected and qualify.

(2)  Mr. Darrell served as Assistant General Counsel for NiSource, Inc. since 2002,

(3)  Mr. Abernathy served as Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary for American
Water Works Company — Central Region since 2002.

{4) Mr. Geiselhart served as the Corporate Finance Consultant for Callaway Partners, LLC
since 2003. During that time, he also served as Chief Financial Officer for both
TowerLink Corporation, Inc. and Transcender Telecom Acquisition Corporation, Inc.
Prior to that he was the founding Chief Financial Officer and Consultant for private equity
firms for Quiet Water Associates, LLC from 2002 through 2003 and Vice President,
Finance and Corporate Development for Evolution Networks, inc. from 2000 through
2002.
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Part I1

Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters, and Issuer Purchases of Equity
Securities

Laclede Group’s comimon stock trades on The New York Stock Exchange under the symbol “LG”. The high and the low
sales price for the common stock for each quarter in the two most recent fiscal years are:

Fiscal 2008 ' Fiscal 2007
High Low . High Low
1st Quarter 35.72 31.48 37.51 31.60 .
2nd Quarter 3645 31.86 36.03 29.32
3rd Quarter 41.96 . 3536 3324 29.29
4th Quarter 50.88 37.78 3447 28.84

The number of holders of record as of September 30, 2008 was 4,447

Dividends declared on the common stock for the two most recent fiscal years were:

Fiscal 2008 Fiscal 2007
Ist Quarter $0.375 $0.365
2nd Quarter -$0.375 $0.365
3rd Quarter $0.375 $0.365
4th Quarter $0.375 $0.365

Disclosures relating to securities authorized for issuance under equity compensatioh plans is incorporated by reference
from the discussion in our 2008 proxy statement under the heading “Other Matters.”

Laclede Group periodically purchases commoen stock of Laclede Gas with the price set at the book value of Laclede Gas
common stock as of the most recently completed fiscal quarter. The details on sales of common stock of Laclede Gas to
Laclede Group during the past three fiscal years are set forth below:

Aggregate
Purchase Price  Number
. of
Date of Sale . (millions) Shares
FY 2006
December 15, 2005 ) b 1.0 30
February 21, 2006 . 0.9 . 26
May 24, 2006 09 25
August 15, 2006 0.9 27
FY 2007
March 23, 2007 1.9 55
May 21, 2007 1.0 27
August 10, 2007 1.0 28
FY 2008
December 20, 2007 1.0 30
February 14, 2008 1.0 28
May 12, 2008 0.9 26
August 18, 2008 09 25

The proceeds from Laclede Gas’ sales of stock were used to reduce its short-term borrowings. Exemption from
registration was claimed under Section 4(2) of the Securities Act of 1933,

For details related to Laclede Group’s purchase of Laclede Gas’ common stock subsequent to September 30, 2008, see
[tem 9B., Other Information, of this Form 10-K.
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The Laclede Group, Inc.

Fiscal Years Ended September 30

{Thousands, Except Per Share Amounts) 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
Summary of Operations
Operating Revenues:
Regulated Gas Distribution $ 1,128,287 § 1,131,554 §$ 1,141,011  § 978,195 § 868,905
Non-Regulated Gas Marketing 1,075,845 718,704 689,572 469,559 270,328
Other 4,841 5,603 4,445 7,800 6,848
Total Operating Revenues - 2,208,973 1,855,861 1,835,028 1.455.554 1,146,081
Operating Expenses:
Regulated
Natural and propane gas 770,097 797,924 821,721 676.931 575,691
Other operation expenses 144,611 131,798 128,180 125,364 121,596
Maintenance 25827 24,306 21,198 19,226 18,705
Depreciation and amortization 35,303 34,080 30,904 23,036 22,385
Taxes, other than income taxes 69,023 68,361 71,038 62.859 60,077
Total Regulated Operating Expenses 1,044,861 1,056,469 1,073,041 907,416 798,454
Non-Regulated Gas Marketing 1,048,162 698,962 662,391 462,348 265,394
Qther 4,603 5,376 5,024 8,720 7,263
Total Operating Expenses 2,097,626 1,760,807 1,740,456 1,378,484 1,071,111
Operating Income 111,347 95,054 94,572 77,070 74,970
Allowance for Funds Used During Construction (72) {7 (45) (1003 (123)
Other Income and (Income Deductions) - Net 1,953 6,830 5,553 1,706 3,757
Interest Charges:
Interest on long-term debt 19,851 22,502 22,329 22,835 22010
Interest on long-term debt to unconsolidated o .
affiliate trust 486 277 27 277 17
Other interest charges 9,140 11,155 10,278 4,141 3,234
Total Interest Charges 29,477 33,934 32,884 27,253 25,521
Income frem Continuing Operations Before Income
Taxes and Dividends en Laclede Gas Redeemable
Preferred Stock 83,751 67,933 67,196 51,423 53,083
Income Tax Expensc 26,190 22,146 21,301 16914 18,243
Dividends on Laclede Gas Redeemable
Preferred Stock 35 43 48 55 62
Income from Continuing Operations 57,526 45,744 45,847 34,454 34,778
Income from Discontinued Operations, Net
of Income Tax 20,396 4,027 3,142 5,616 1,278
Net Income $ 77922 % 49,771 & 48,989 % 40,070 8 36,056
Basic Earnings Per Share of Common Stock:
Income from Continuing Operations $ 266 8§ - 213§ - 216 S 163 § 1.76
Income from Discontinued Operations 0.94 0.19 0.15 0.27 0.06
Net Income $ 360 3§ 232§ 231§ 190§ 1.82
Diluted Earnings Per Share of Commeon Stock:
Income from Continuing Operations $ 264 % 212§ 215  §$ 163 § 1.76
[ncome from Discontinued Operations 0.94 0.19 0.15 0.27 i 0.06
Net Income $ 358 % 231§ 230 % 150 % .82
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. Item 6. Selected Financial Data (continued)

The Laclede Group, Inc.

Fiscal Years Ended September 30
(Thousands, Except Per Share Amounts) 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

Dividends Declared —

Common Stock 3 12776 § 31,505 % 30,045 % 29,002 § 27,183
Dividends Declared Per ) ’ :

Share of Commeon Stock $ 150§ 146 § 141 8§ 1.375 8§ 1.355
Utility Plant

Gross Plant - End of Period $ 0229174 3 1,187,828 § 1,149,104 § 1,105,733  § 1,070,522

Net Plant — End of Period 823,197 793,794 763,827 728,481 699,144

Capital Expenditures 55,304 56,434 57,925 54,621 49,130

Property Retirements 15,629 16,331 22,588 19,410 9,276
Non-Utility Property 3,793 4,065 4,263 3,899 3,993
Other Investments 43314 43,635 41,354 36,851 35,357
Total Assets of Discontinued Operations = 73,357 © 76,353 67,206 57,070
Total Assets — End of Period - . 1,772,655 1,641,153 1,570,160 1,434,101 1,317,564

Capitalization — End of Period .
Common Stock and Paid-In Capital $ 169,234 % 157,707 § 148487 § 142,677 8§ 137,039

Retained Earnings 312,808 268,761 250,495 235,551 220,483
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) 4,437 1,857 3,655 (7,703) (1,607)
Common Stock Equity 486,479 428,325 402,637 366,525 355,915
Laclede Gas Redeemable Prefirred Stock 467 627 787 948 1,108
Long-Term Debt to Unconsolidated Affiliate Trust = 46,400 46,400 46,400 46,400
Long-Term Debt — Laclede Gas 389,181 309,122 349,041 194,033 333,936
Total Capitalization 3 876,127 § 784,474 § 798,865 § 707,906 % 737,359

Shares of Common Stock .
Quistanding — End of Period 21,993 21,646 21,362 21,172 20,981

Book Value Per Share — End of Period 3 2212 ¢ 1979 § 1885 § 1731 § 16.96
Note: Certain prior-period amounts have been reclassified to discontinued operations as a result of the sale of SM&P Uhility Resources, Inc. (SM&P)

on March 31, 2008. Income (Loss) from Discontinued Operations does not include general corporate overhead expenses previeusly recorded
by SM&P. Associated assets are classified separately.

Laclede Gas Company’s Selected Financial Data is included in Exhibit 99.1.
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS
OF OPERATIONS '

THE LACLEDE GROUP, INC.
INTRODUCTION

This management’s discussion analyzes the financial condition and results of operations of The Laclede Group, Inc.
{Laclede Group or the Company) and its subsidiaries. [t includes management’s view of factors that affect its business,
explanations of past financial results including changes in earnings and costs from the prior year periods, and their effects
on overall financial condition and liquidity.

The Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations shouid be read in
conjunction with the Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements and the Notes thereto.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Laclede Group’s earnings are primarily derived from the regulated activities of its largest subsidiary, Laclede Gas
Company (Laclede Gas or the Utility), Missouri’s largest natural gas distribution company. Laclede Gas is regulated by
the Missouri Public Service Commission (MoPSC or Commission) and serves the City of St. Louis and parts of ten other
counties in eastern Missouri. Laclede Gas delivers natural gas to retail customers at rates and in accordance with tariffs
authorized by the MoPSC. The Utility’s earnings are primarily generated by the sale of heating energy. The Utility’s
innovative weather mitigation rate design lessens the impact of weather volatitity on Laclede Gas customers during cold
winters arid stabilizes the Utility’s earnings by recovering fixed costs more evenly during the heating season. Due to the
seasonal nature of the business of Laclede Gas, Laclede Group’s earnings are seasonal in nature and are typically
concentrated in the November through April period, which generally corresponds with the heating season.

On March 31, 2008, the Company completed the sale of 100% of its interest in its wholly-owned subsidiary SM&P
Utility Resources, Inc. (SM&P) to Stripe Acquisition, Inc. (an affiliate of Kohlberg Management VI, LLC) for $85
million in cash, subject to certain closing and post-closing adjustments. SM&P is an underground facilities locating and
marking business that formerly comprised Laclede Group’s Non-Regulated Services operating segment. The sales
agreement included representations, warranties, and indemnification provisions customary for such transactions and was
filed as an exhibit to the March 31, 2008 Form 10-Q. In accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, the
results of operations for SM&P are reported as discontinued operations in the Consolidated Statements of Income and its
associated assets and liabilities are classified separately in the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Laclede Energy Resources, Inc. (LER) is engaged in the marketing of natural gas and related activities on a non-reguiated
basis. LER markets natural gas to both on-systern Utility transportation customers and customers outside of Laclede Gas’
traditional service territory, including large retail and wholesale customers. As such, LER’s operations and customer base
are subject to fluctuations in market conditions.

Other subsidiaries provide less than 10% of consolidated revenues.
Laclede Group’s strategy continues to include efforts to stabilize and improve the performance of its core Utility, while

developing non-regulated businesses and taking a measured approach in the pursuit of additional growth opportunities
that complement the Utility business.
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As for the Utility, mitigating the impact of weather fluctuations on Laclede Gas customers while improving the ability to
recover its authorized distribution costs and return continues to be a fundamental component of Laclede Group’s strategy.
The Utility’s distribution costs are the essential, primarily fixed expenditures it must incur to operate and maintain a more
than 16,000 mile natural as distribution system and related storage facilities. With regard to the storage facilities owned
by Laclede Gas, management is currently undertaking an evaluation of the Utility’s natural gas storage field, which was
developed more than 50 years ago, to assess the field’s current and future capabilities. In addition, Laclede Gas is
working to continually improve its ability to provide reliable natural gas service at a reasonable cost, while maintaining
and building a secure and dependable infrastructure. The settlement of the Utility’s 2007 rate case resulted in
enhancements to the Utility’s weather mitigation rate design that better ensure the recovery of its fixed costs and margins
despite variations in sales volumes due to the impacts of weather and other factors that affect customer usage. The
Utility’s income from off-systern sales remains subject to fluctuations in market cenditions. In conjunction with the
settlement of the 2005 rate case, effective October 1, 2005, the Utility retained all pre-tax income from off-system sales
and capacity release revenues up to $12 million annually. Pre-tax amounts in excess of $12 million were shared with
customers, with the Utility retaining 50% of amounts exceeding that threshold. The Stipulation & Agreement approved by
the MoPSC in the Utility’s 2007 rate case increases the portion of pre-tax income from off-system sales and capacity
release revenues that is shared with customers. Effective October 1, 2007, the Utility is allowed to retain 15% to 25% of
the first $6 million in annual income earned (depending on the level of income earned) and 30% of income exceeding $6
million annually. Some of the factors impacting the level of off-system sales include the availability and cost of the

- Utility’s natural gas supply, the weather in its service area, and the weather in other markets. When Laclede Gas’ service

area experiences warmer-than-normal weather while other markets experience colder weather or supply constraints, some
of the Utility’s natural gas supply is available for off-system sales and there may be a demand for such supply in other
markets. '

Laclede Gas continues to work actively to reduce the impact of higher costs associated with wholesale natural gas prices
by strategically structuring its natural gas supply portfolio and through the use of financial instruments. Nevertheless, the
overall cost of purchased gas remains subject to fluctuations in market conditions. The Utility’s Purchased Gas
Adjustment (PGA) Clause allows Laclede Gas to flow through to customers, subject to prudence review, the cost of
purchased gas supplies, including costs, cost reductions, and related carrying costs associated with the use of financial
instruments to hedge the purchase price of natural gas, as well as gas inventory carrying costs. The Utility believes it will
continue to be able to obtain sufficient gas supply. The generally higher price levels, relative to historical levels, may
continue to affect sales volumes (due to the conservation efforts of customers) and cash flows (associated with the timing .
of collection of gas costs and related accounts receivable from customers).

Laclede Group continues to develop its other subsidiaries. LER continues to focus on growing its markets on a long-term
and sustainable basis by providing both on-system Utility transportation customers and customers outside of Laclede Gas’
traditional service area with another choice in non-regulated natural gas suppliers. LER is working to assemble the team,
technology, and resources necessary to expand its geographic service area and the range of services that it now provides.
Nevertheless, income from LER s operations is subject to fluctuations in market conditions. LER reported record earnings
during fiscal year 2006 as a result of higher margins, caused by Gulf Coast market volatility, as well as higher wholesale
sales volumes. During fiscal 2008, LER repotted new record earnings, exceeding fiscal 2006, primarily due to improved
margins on sales of natural gas and higher wholesale sales volumes. '
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EARNINGS

Overview — Net Income by Operating Segment

{Millions, After-tax )

Years Ended September 30 2008 2007 2006

Regulated Gas Distribution $ 39.1 $ 321 $ 288

Non-Regulated Gas Marketing 19.3 13.3 17.1

Other : 09y 0.4

Income from Continuing Operations 575 458 459

Income from Discontinued Operations 20.4 4.0. ’ 3.1
§ 49.0

Net Income § 779 S 498

Laclede Group’s consolidated net income was $77.9 million in fiscal year 2008, compared with $49.8 million in fiscal
year 2007, and $49.0 million in fiscal year 2006. Net income increased $28.1 million, or 56.4%, in fiscal year 2008
(compared with fiscal year 2007) largely due to the net effect of the one-time gain realized on the sale of Laciede Group’s
wholly-owned subsidiary, SM&P, on March 31, 2008 and the impact of SM&P’s seasonal operating loss for the period
prior to the sale. Earnings results reported by both Laclede Group’s Regulated Gas Distribution segment and its Non-
Regulated Gas Marketing segment also increased over fiscal year 2007. Net income increased $0.8 million, or 1.6%, in
fiscal year 2007 (compared with fiscal year 2006) primarily due to improved results reported by Laclede Group’s
Regulated Gas Distribution segment and the effect of SM&P’s increased operating income (reported as discontinued
operations), partially offset by lower earnings recorded by Laclede Group’s Non-Regulated Gas Marketing segment.

Basic and diluted earnings per share were $3.60 and $3.58, respectively, for fiscal year 2008 compared with basic and
diluted earnings per share of $2.32 and $2.31, respectively, for fiscal year 2007, and $2.31 and $2.30, respectively for
fiscal year 2006. The year-to-year increases in earnings per share were primarily due to the effect of higher net income in
each period.

Income from Continuing Operations

Laclede Group’s income from continuing operations was $57.5 million in fiscal year 2008, compared with $45.8 miilion
in fiscal year 2007, and $45.9 million in fiscal year 2006. Income from Continuing Operations increased $11.7 million, or
25.5%, in fiscal year 2008 (compared with fiscal year 2007) primarily due to improved results reported by both Laclede
Group’s Regulated Gas Distribution segment and its Non-Regulaied Gas Marketing segment. Income from Continuing

_ Operations decreased $0.1 million in fiscal year 2007 (compared with fiscal year 2006) primarily due to lower earnings
recorded by Laclede Group’s Non-Regulated Marketing Segment, largely offset by improved results reported by Laclede
Group’s Regulated Gas Distribution segment,

Basic and diluted earnings per share from continuing operations were $2.66 and $2.64, respectivetly, for fiscal year 2008,
compared with basic and diluted earnings per share of $2.13 and $2.12, respectively, for fiscal year 2007, and $2.16 and
$2.15, respectively, for fiscal year 2006, Variations in income from continuing operations were primarily attributable to
the factors described below.

2008 vs. 2007

Regulated Gas Distribution net income increased by $7.0 million in 2008, compared with 2007. The increase in net
income was primarily due to the following factors, quantified on a pre-tax basis:

+  the benefit of the general rate increase, effective August 1, 2007, totaling $32.9 million;

+  the recognition of previously unrecognized tax beénefits and the reversal of related expenses, totaling $1.6
million; and,

»  the effect of higher system gas sales volumes and other variations totaling $1.1 miltion.
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These factors were partially offset by:

+  lower income from off-system sales and capacity release, totaling $10.2 million, primarily due to a reduction
in the Utility’s share of such income (pursuant to the 2007 rate case);

- increases in operation and maintenance expenses, excluding the provision for uncollectible accounts, totaling
$8.3 million; and,

+  anincrease in the provision for uncollectible accounts, totaling $6.0 million.

The Non-Regulated Gas Marketing segment reported earnings totaling $19.3 million for fiscal year 2008, an increase in
earnings of $6.0 million compared with fiscal year 2007. The increased carnings were primarily due to improved margins
on sales of natural gas by LER, 15% higher sales volumes, and the effect of a reversal of tax-related expenses during
fiscal year 2008.

2007 vs. 2006

Regulated Gas Distribution net income increased by $3.3 million in 2007, compared with 2006. The increase in net
income was primarily due to the following factors, quantified on a pre-tax basis:

«  the effect of higher system gas sales volumes, primarily due to colder weather and other variations totaling $6.7
million; :

« the benefit of the general rate increase, effective August 1, 2007, totaling $5.3 million; and,

«  higher Infrastructure System Replacement Surcharge (ISRS) revenues totaling $2.6 million.

These factors were partially offset by:

«  increases in operation and maintenance expenses totaling $6.7 million; and,
= higher depreciation and amortization expense totaling $3.2 million resulting from the implementation of new
depreciation rates effective January 1, 2006, as authorized by the MoPSC, and additional depreciable property.

The Non-Regulated Gas Marketing segment reported earnings totaling $13.3 million for fiscal 2007, a decrease in
earnings of $3.8 million compared with 2006. While LER achieved increased sales volumes in fiscal year 2007 over fiscal
year 2006, margins in fiscal year 2007 were reduced as volatility in Gulf Coast markets stabilized. LER’s sales volumes
increased 30% over the same period last year, principally as a result of increased interstate pipeline wholesale
transactions. :

Regulated Gas Distribution Operating Revenues
2008 vs. 2007

Regulated Gas Distribution Operating Revenues for fiscal year 2008 decreased $3.3 million compared to fiscal year 2007
due in part to lower wholesale gas costs. Temperatures experienced in the Utility’s service area during 2008 were 6.8%
colder than the same period last year, but 1.1% warmer than normal. Total system therms sold and transported were 0.93
billion for fiscal year 2008 compared with 0.91 billion for fiscal year 2007. Total off-system therms sold and transported
were 0.14 billion for fiscal year 2008 compared with 0.21 billion for fiscal year 2007. The decrease in Regulated Gas
Distribution Operating Fevenues was primarily attributable to the following factors:

(Millions)
Lower off-system sales volumes (reflecting less favorable market conditions as described in greater detail

in the Results of Operations) ' $ 419
Lower wholesale gas costs passed on to Utility customers (subject to prudence review by the MoPSC) '(38.2)
General rate increase, effective August 1, 2007 . ' 329
Higher system sales volumes, primarily due to colder weather and other variations 27.3
Higher prices charged for off-system sales 24.0
Lower ISRS revenues (4

Total Variation $ (3.3)
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2007 vs. 2006

Regulated Gas Distribution Operating Revenues for fiscal year 2007 decreased $9.5 million compared to fiscal year 2006
due in part to lower wholesale gas costs. Temperatures experienced in the Utility’s service area during 2007 were 5.7%
colder than fiscal year 2006, but 7.4% warmer than normal. Total system therms sold and transported were 0.91 billion
for fiscal year 2007 compared with 0.87 billion for fiscal year 2006. Total off-system therms sold and transported were
0.21 billion for fiscal year 2007 compared with 0.16 billion for fiscal year 2006, The decrease in Regulated Gas
Distribution Qperating Revenues was primarily attributable to the following factors:

(Millions)
Lower wholesale gas costs passed on to Utility customers {subject to prudence review by the MoPSC) 3 (11L6)
Higher system sales volumes, primarily due to colder weather and other variations 80.6
Higher off-system sales volumes 48.1
Lower prices charged for off-system sales (34.5)
General rate increase, effective August 1, 2007 © 53
Higher ISRS revenues implemented June 15, 2006, January 2, 2007, and June 16, 2007 2.6
Total Variation $ {9.5)

Regulated Operating Expenses
2008 vs. 2007

Regulated Operating Expenses in fiscal year 2008 decreased $11.6 million, or 1.1%, from fiscal year 2007. Natural and
propane gas expense decreased $27.8 million from last year’s level, primarily attributable to lower rates charged by our
suppliers and lower off-system gas expense, partially offset by higher system volumes purchased for sendout. Other
operation and maintenance expenses increased $14.3 million, or 9.2%, primarily due to a higher provision for
uncollectible accounts, increased maintenance and distribution expenses, increased wage rates, higher legal fees,
increased pension costs, and the effect of a gain on the disposal of assets recorded last year. Depreciation and
amortization expense increased $1.2 million, or 3.6%, primarily due to additional depreciable property.

2007 vs. 2006

Regulated Operating Expenses in fiscal year 2007 decreased $16.6 million, or 1.5%, from fiscal year 2006. Natural and
propane gas expense decreased $23.8 million from fiscal year 2006, primarily attributable to lower rates charged by our
suppliers, which was partially offset by higher system volumes purchased for sendout and increased off-system gas
expense. Other operation and maintenance expenses increased $6.7 million, or 4.5%, primarily due to increased
maintenance and distribution charges, increased group insurance charges, higher wage rates, and a higher provision for
uncollectible accounts. These factors were partially offset by decreased injuries and damages expense as well as a gain on
the disposal of assets. Depreciation and amortization expense increased $3.2 million, or 10.3%, primarily due to higher
rates authorized in the 2005 rate case effective January 1, 2006 and additional depreciable property. Taxes, other than
income taxes, decreased $2.7 million, or 3.8%, primarily due to lower property taxes and decreased gross receipts taxes
(attributable to the decreased revenues).

Non-Regulated Gas Marketing Operating Revenues and Operating Expenses

Non-Regulated Gas Marketing Operating Revenues increased $357.1 million in fiscal year 2008 from those revenues for
fiscal year 2007 primarily due to higher per unit gas sales prices charged by LER and increased sales volumes. The
increase in Non-Regulated Gas Marketing Operating Expenses of $349.2 million was primarily associated with higher
prices charged by suppliers and increased volumes purchased.

Non-Regulated Gas Marketing Operating Revenues increased $29.1 million in fiscal year 2007 from those revenues for

fiscal year 2006 primarily due to increased sales volumes by LER, partially offset by lower per unit gas sales prices. The
increase in Non-Regulated Gas Marketing Operating Expenses of $36.6 million was primarily associated with increased
gas expense related to increased volumes purchased, partially offset by lower prices.
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Other Income and (Income Deductions)-Net

Other Income and {Income Deductions)-Net decreased $4.9 million in fiscal year 2008 (compared to fiscal year 2007),
due to higher investment losses, a loss on the redemption of long-term debt (primarily unamortized issuance costs), lower
income associated with carrying costs applied to under-recoveries of gas costs, and increased charitable donations. These
factors were partially offset by a reversal of tax-related expenses and additional proceeds related to the Company’s
interest, as a policyholder, in the sale of a mutual insurance company. Carrying costs on under-recoveries of gas costs are
recovered through the Utility’s PGA Clause.

The $1.3 million increase in Other Income and (Income Deductions)-Net in fiscal year 2007 from fiscal year 2006 was
primarily due to increased investment income, higher interest income, and other minor variations, partially offset by lower
income associated with carrying costs applied to under-recoveries of gas costs.

Interest Charges

The $4.5 million decrease in interest charges in fiscal year 2008 was primarily due to a reduction in interest on long-term
debt resulting from the November 2007 maturity of $40 million principal amount of 7 1/2% First Morigage Bonds, lower
interest on short-term debt, and the reversal of tax-related expenses. The $1.1 million increase in interest charges in fiscal
year 2007 (over fiscal year 2006) was primarily due to higher interest on short-term debt and other minor variations.
Average short-term interest rates were 4.1% this year compared with 5.4% in fiscal year 2007 and 4.7% in fiscal year
2006. Average short-term borrowings were $180.7 million, $156.2 million, and $172.4 million for fiscal years 2008,

2007, and 2006, respectively,

Income Taxes

The $4.0 million increase in income taxes in fiscal year 2008 was primarily due to higher pre-tax income, partially offset
by the recognition of previously unrecognized tax benefits recorded pursuant to Financial Accounting Standards Board
Interpretation No. (FIN) 48,

The $0.8 million increase in income tax expense for fiscal year 2007 was primarily due to higher pre-tax income and the
effect of lower income tax expense in fiscal year 2006 associated with a change in estimated tax depreciation and other .

property-related deductions.

Income from Discontinued Operations

. The sale of SM&P on March 31, 2008 resulted in after-tax earnings of $25.4 million, net of associated costs of disposal. -

Income from discontinued operations for fiscal year 2008 was $20.4 million, consisting of the net effect of the sale and
SM&P’s seasonal operating loss through the March 31 sale date. Income from discontinued operations for fiscal years
2007 and 2006 were $4.0 million and $3.1 million, respectively, reflecting SM&P’s operating income for those periods.

Basic and diluted earnings.per share from discontinued operations were $0.94 for fiscal year 2008, $0.19 for fiscal year _
2007, and 80.15 for fiscal year 2006. '

Labor Agreement

Laclede Gas has a labor agreement with Locals 11-6 and 11-194 of the United Steel, Paper and Forestry, Rubber,
Manufacturing, Energy, Allied-Industrial and Service Workers International Union (Union), whick: represents
approximately 65% of Laclede Gas’ employees. On August 4, 2008, Laclede Gas and Union representatives reached a
new four-year labor agreement, replacing the prior agreement that expired at midnight, July 31, 2008. The new contract
will expire at midnight on July 31, 2012. The new contract includes revisions to the defined benefit plan pension formula,
changes in wage rates and work rules, and other modifications that enable the Utility to provide high quality service to its
customers and control operating costs while continuing to provide competitive wages, pension, and healthcare benefits to
its employees.

The Missouri Natura! Division of Laclede Gas has a labor agreement with Local 11-884 of the United Steel, Paper and

Forestry, Rubber, Manufacturing, Energy, Allied-Industrial and Service Workers International Union, which represents
approximately 5% of Laclede Gas’ employees. The agreement expires on April 15, 2009.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Our discussion and analysis of our financial condition, results of operations, liquidity, and capital resources is based upon
our consolidated financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America. Generally accepted accounting principles require that we make estimates and
Jjudgments that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses, and related disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities. We evaluate our estimates on an ongoing basis. We base our estimates on historical
experience and on various other assumptions that we believe are reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which
form the basis for making judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates. We believe the following represent the more significant
items requiring the use of judgment and estimates in preparing our consolidated financial statements:

Aliowances for Doubtful Accounts — Estimates of the collectibility of trade accounts receivable are based on
historical trends, age of receivables, economic conditions, credit risk of specific customers, and other factors.
The Utility’s provision for uncollectible accounts is dependent on the regulatory treatment provided for such
costs. As approved by the MoPSC, the Utility was ailowed to defer for future recovery uncollectible expenses
associated with amendments to the Cold Weather Rule for fiscal years 2006 and 2007.

Employee Benefits and Postretirement Obligations — Pension and postretirement obligations are calculated
by actuarial consultants that utilize several statistical factors and other assumptions provided by Management
related to future events, such as discount rates, returns on plan assets, compensation increases, and mortality
rates. For the Utility, the amount of expense recognized and the amounts reflected in other comprehensive
income are dependent upon the regulatory treatment provided for such costs, as discussed further below.,
Certain liabilities related to group medical benefits and workers’ compensation claims, portions of which are
self-insured and/or contain “stop-loss™ coverage with third-party insurers to limit exposure, are established
based on historical trends.
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The table below reflects the sensitivity of Laclede’s plans to potential changes in key assumptions:

Pension Plan Benefits:

Estimated Estimated
Increase/ Increase/
(Decrease) to (Decrease) to
Projected Annual
Benefit Net Pension .
Increase/ Obligation Cost*
Actuarial Assumptions {Decrease) (Thousands) (Thousands)
Discount Rate 025% § {(7,610) & o a7h
(0.25) 7,820 160
Rat¢ of Future Compensation .
[ncrease 0.25% 5,900 750
(0.25) (5,700) {730)
Expected Retumn on Plan Assets 0.25% —_ (630)
(0.25) _ 630
Postretirement Benefits:
Estimated Estimated
Increase/ Increase/
(Decrease) to (Decrease) to
Projected Annual Net
Postretirement Postretirement
Benefit Benefit
Increase/ Obligation Cost*
Actuarial Assumptions (Decrease) (Thousands) {Thousands)
Discount Rate 0.25% §$ (1,500) % (101)
(0.25) 1,540 - 101
Expected Return on Plan Assets 0.25% ' — (67)
- ' (0.25) — 67
Annual Medical Cost Trend 1.00% 3,570 (790)
(1.00) (3,240) 700

* Excludes the impact of regulatory deferral mechanism. See Note 3, Pension Plans and
Other Postretirement Benefits, of the Notes to Consclidated Financial Statements for
information regarding the regulatory treatment of these costs.
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Regulated Operations — Laclede Gas accounts for its regulated operations in accordance with Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 71, “Accounting for the Effects of Certain Types of Regulation.” This Statement sets
forth the application of accounting principles generalty accepted in the United States of America for those companies
whose rates are established by or are subject to approval by an independent third-party regulator. The provisions of SFAS
No. 71 require, among other things, that financial statements of a regulated enterprise reflect the actions of regulators,
where appropriate. These actions may result in the recognition of revenues and expenses in time periods that are different
than non-regulated enterprises. When this occurs, costs are deferred as assets in the balance sheet (regulatory assets) and
recorded as expenses when those amounts are reflected in rates. Also, regulators can impose liabilities upon a regulated
company for amounts previously collected from customers and for recovery of costs that are expected to be incurred in
the future (regulatory liabilities). Management believes that the current regulatory environment supports the continued use
of SFAS No. 71 and that all regulatory assets and regulatory liabilities are recoverable or refundable through the
regulatory pracess. Management believes the following represent the more significant items recorded through the
application of SFAS No. 71:

The Utility’s PGA Clause allows Laclede Gas to flow through to customers, subject to prudence review, the
cost of purchased gas supplies, including the costs, cost reductions, and related carrying costs associated with
the Utility’s use of natural gas financial instruments to hedge the purchase price of natural gas. The difference
between actual costs incurred and costs recovered through the application of the PGA are recorded as
regulatory assets and regulatory liabilities that are recovered or refunded in a subsequent period. The PGA
Clause also authorizes the Utility to recover costs it incurs to finance its investment in gas supplies that are
purchased during the storage injection season for sale during the heating season. The PGA Clause also permits
the application of carrying costs to all over- or under-recoveries of gas costs, including costs and cost
reductions associated with the use of financial instruments. Effective Qctober 1, 2007, the PGA Clause also
provides for a portion of income from off-system sales and capacity release revenues to be flowed through to
customers. )

The Company records deferred tax liabilities and assets measured by enacted tax rates for the net tax effect of
all temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes, and the amounts used for income tax purposes. Changes in enacted tax rates, if any, and certain
property basis differences will be reflected by entries to regulatory asset or regulatory liability accounts for
regulated companies, and will be reflected as income or loss for non-regulated companies. Pursuant to the
direction of the MoPSC, Laclede Gas’ provision for income tax expense for financial reporting purposes
reflects an open-ended method of tax depreciation. Laclede Gas’ provision for income tax expense also
records the income tax effect associated with the difference between overheads capitalized to construction for
financial reporting purposes and those recognized for tax purposes without recording an offsetting deferred
income tax expense. These two methods are consistent with the regulatory treatment prescribed by the
MoPSC.

Asset retirement obligations are recorded in accordance with SFAS No, 143, “Accounting for Asset
Retirement-Obligations™ and FIN 47, “Accounting for Conditional Asset Retirement Obligations.” Asset
retirement obligations-are calculated using various assumptions related to the timing, method of seitlement,
inflation, and profit margins that third parties would demand to settle the future obligations. These
assumptions require the use of judgment and estimates and may change in future periods as circumstances
dictate. As authorized by the MoPSC, Laclede Gas accrues future removal costs associated with its property,
plant and equipment through its depreciation rates, even if a legal obligation does not exist as defined by
SFAS No. 143 and FIN 47. The difference between removal costs recognized in depreciation rates and the
accretion expense and depreciation expense recognizable under SFAS No. 143 and FIN 47 is a timing
difference between the recovery of these costs in rates and their recognition for financial reporting purposes.
Accordingly, consistent with SFAS No. 71, these differences are deferred as regulatory liabilities.
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The amount of net periodic pension and other postretirement benefit cost recognized in the financial
statements related to the Utility’s qualified pension plans and other postretirement benefit plans is based upon
allowances, as approved by the MoPSC, which have been established in the rate-making process for the
recovery of these costs from customers. The differences between these amounts and actual pension and other
postretirement benefit costs incurred for financial reporting purposes are deferred as regulatory assets or
regulatory liabilities. SFAS No. 158, “Employers” Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other
Postretirernent Plans,” requires that changes that affect the funded status of pension and other postretirement
benefit plans, but that are not yet required to be recognized as components of pension and other postretirement
benefit cost, be reflected in other comprehensive income. For the Utility’s qualified pension plans and other
postretirement benefit plans, amounts that would otherwise be reflected in other comprehensive income are
deferred with entries to regulatory assets or regulatory liabilities.

For further discussion of significant accounting policies, see Note 1 to the Consohdated Financial Statements included on
page 48.

REGULATORY MATTERS
There have been several significant regulatory developments afiecting Laclede Gas.

During fiscal 2006, the MoPSC approved permanent modifications to the Cold Weather Rule affecting the disconnection
and reconnection practices of utilities during the winter heating season. Those modifications included provisions to allow
the Utility to obtain accounting authorizations and defer for future recovery certain costs incurred with the modifications.
During fiscal 2007, the Utility deferred for future recovery $2.7 million of costs associated with the fiscal 2007 heating
season. On October 31, 2007, the Utility filed for determination and subsequent recovery of the deferred amount. On
November 16, 2007, the MoPSC directed the MoPSC Staff and the Missouri Office of Public Counse! (Public Counsel} to
submit their positions regarding the Utility’s filing by February 28, 2008. On February 28, 2008, thz Utility and the
MoPSC Staff filed a Non-Unanimous Stipulation & Agreement in which these parties agreed to a recovery of $2.5
million of costs. The Non-Unanimous Stipulation & Agreement was opposed by Public Counsel, and a hearing in this
matter was held before the Commission on March 31, 2008. On April 17, 2008, the Commission issued its Report and
Order approving the $2.5 million cost recovery recommended by the Utility and the MoPSC Staft. Consistent with the
approved amount, the Utility recorded a reduction in its deferral totaling $0.2 million during the quarter ended

March 31, 2008, On May 29, 2008, Public Counsel appealed the MoPSC’s April 17 Order to the Cale County, Missouri
Circuit Court. Laclede Gas believes that Public Counsel’s appeal is without merit and is vigorously opposing the appeal.

On November 9, 2007, the Utility made an ISRS filing with the Commission designed to increase revenues by $1.6
million annually. On January 15, 2008, the Commission approved implementation of the surcharge to be effective
January 18, 2008. On April 25, 2008, the Utility made an ISRS filing with the Commission designed to increase revenues
by $1.9 million annually. On June 24, 2008, the Commission approved implementation of the surcharge in the full
amount requested, effective June 30, 2608,

On December 28, 2006, the MoPSC Staff proposed a disallowance of $7.2 million related to Laclede Gas’ recovery of its
purchased gas costs applicable to fiscal 2005. On September 14, 2007, the Staff withdrew its pursuit of $5.5 million of the
disallowance it had originally proposed. Laclede Gas believes that the remaining $1.7 million of the M6PSC Staff’s
proposed disallowance lacks merit and is vigorously opposing the adjustment in proceedings before the MoPSC.

On December 31, 2007, the MoPSC Staff proposed a disallowance of $2.8 million related to Laclede Gas’ recovery of its
purchased gas costs applicable to fiscal 2006. Laclede Gas believes that the MoPSC Staff’s positicn lacks merit and is
vigorously opposing the adjustment in proceedings before the MoPSC. In addition, the MoPSC’s Staff raised questions
regarding whether certain sales and capacity release transactions, subject to the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission
(FERC)’s oversight, were consistent with the FERC’s regulations and policies regarding capacity release. The Company
commenced an internal review of the questions raised by the MoPSC Staff and notified the FERC Staft that it tock this
action, Subsequently, as a result of the internal review, the Company has provided the FERC Staff with a report regarding
compliance of sales and capacity release activities with the FERC’s regulations and policies. On July 23, 2008, the FERC
Staff requested additional information, which the Company provided on August 22, 2008 and September 2, 2008.
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On July 9, 2008, Laclede Gas made a tariff filing with the MoPSC that would make the payment provisions for the
restoration of gas service under the Utility’s Cold Weather Rule available to customers in the summer of 2008 and enable
the Utility to increase or decrease its PGA rates to correct for any shortfall or surplus created by the difference between
the gas cost portion of the Utility’s actual net bad debt write-offs and the amount of such cost that is embedded in its
existing rates. The MoPSC suspended the tariff on August 5, 2008 arid established a procedural schedule to consider the
Utility’s filing. Hearings are scheduied for December 8, 2008. As a result, the Cold Weather Rule portion of the filing is
now moot, but the remainder of the filing is pending before the MoPSC.

ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

The Company has evaluated or is in the process of evaluating the impact that recently issued accounting standards will
have on the Company’s financial position or results of operations upon adoption. For disclosures related to the adoption
of new accounting standards, see the New Accounting Standards section of Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements. '

INFLATION

The accompanying consolidated financial statements reflect the historical costs of events and transactions, regardless of
the purchasing power of the dollar at the time. Due to the capital-intensive nature of the business of Laclede Gas, the most
significant impact of inflation is on the depreciation of utility plant. Rate regulation, to which Laclede Gas is subject,
allows recovery through its rates of only the historical cost of utility plant as depreciation. While no plans exist to
undertake replacements of plant in service other than normal replacements and those under existing replacement
programs, Laclede Gas believes that any higher costs experienced upon replacement of existing facilities would be
recovered through the normal regulatory process.

CREDIT RATINGS

Current credit ratings for Laclede Group and Laclede Gas issues are as follows:

Type of Facility : S&Pp Moody’s Fitch
Laclede Group Issuer Rating A A-
Laclede Gas First Mortgage Bonds A A3 At
Laclede Gas Commercial Paper A-1 P-2 Fl

The Company has investment grade ratings and believes that it will have adequate access to the financial markets to meet
its capital requirements. These ratings remain subject to review and change by the rating agencies.

CASH FLOWS

The Company’s short-term borrowing requirements typically peak during colder months when Laclede Gas borrows
money to cover the lag between when it purchases its natural gas and when its customers pay for that gas. Changes in the
wholesale cost of natural gas (including cash payments for margin deposits associated with the Utility’s use of natural gas
financial instruments), variations in the timing of collections of gas cost under the Utility’s PGA Clause, and the
utilization of storage gas inventories cause short-term cash requirements to vary during the year and from year to year,
and can cause significant variations in the Utility’s cash provided by or used in operating activities.

Net cash used in operating activities for fiscal year 2008 was $36.5 million. Net cash provided by operating activities for
fiscal year 2007 was $81.3 million. Net cash used in operating activities was $8.3 million for fiscal year 2006. The year-
to-year variations are primarily attributable to the timing of the Utility’s cash receipts and payments related to accounts
payable, accounts receivable, deferred purchased gas cost (including variations in cash payments for margin deposits
associated with the use of natural gas financial instruments), and the cost of natural gas storage inventories, all of which
were impacted by year-to-year changes in the wholesale cost of natural gas.
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Net cash provided by investing activities was $26.9 million for fiscal year 2008. Net cash used in investing activities for
fiscal years 2007 and 2006 were $58.7 million and $72.4 million, respectively. Net cash provided by investing activities
in fiscal year 2008 is primarily attributable to the proceeds from the sale of SM&P, partially offset by capital
expenditures. Net cash used in investing activities in fiscal years 2007 and 2006 primarily reflected capital expenditures
and an acquisition by SM&P in fiscal 2006.

Net cash used in financing activities for fiscal years 2008 and 2007 was $28.3 million and $20.6 million, respectivety. Net
cash provided by financing activities was $125.5 million for fiscal year 2006. The variation in net cash used in financing
activities in fiscal year 2008 (over fiscal year 2007) was primarily attributable to the redemption of the Company’s long-
term debt to an unconsolidated affiliate trust and the maturity of long-term debt, partially offset by the issuance of
additional long-term debt. The Company used a portion of the proceeds from the aforementioned sale of SM&P to fund
the redemption of the long-term debt to the unconsolidated affiliate trust. The variation in net cash used in financing
activities in fiscal year 2007 compared with net cash provided by financing activities in fiscal year 2006 was primarily
attributable to the level of short-term debt required in each year as a result of fluctuations in cash provided by operating
activities associated with the effect of changes in natural gas prices described previously.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
Short-term Debt

As indicated above, the Company’s short-term borrowing requirements typically peak during the colder months. These
short-term cash requirements have traditionally been met through the sale of commercial paper supported by lines of
credit with banks. Laclede Gas has a line of credit in place of $320 million from 10 banks, with the largest portion
provided by a single bank being 17.5%. During the second quarter of fiscal 2008, the expiration of this line was extended
one year to December 2011 from December 2010. In November 2007, the Utility established a seasonal line of credit of
$40 million, which expired in March 2008. Subsequent to the end of fiscal year 2008, Laclede Gas cstablished a seasonal
line of credit of $75 million, which will expire in March 2009. Including both lines of credit, the largest portion provided
by a single bank is 26.8%. Due to unfavorable terms in the commercial paper markets near the end of fiscal year 2008,
Laclede Gas utilized its line of credit as a more economical source of short-term financing. Short-term commercial paper
borrowings outstanding at September 30, 2008 were $61.7 million, while outstanding bank line advances were $154.2
million. The weighted average interest rate on these short-term borrowings was 4.0% per annum at September 30, 2008.
Based on total short-term borrowings at September 30, 2008, a change in interest rate of 100 basis points would increase
or decrease pre-tax earnings and cash flows of Laclede Group by approximately $2.2 million on an annual basis. Portions
of such increases or decreases may be offset through the application of PGA carrying costs. In addition, Laclede Gas had
borrowings from Laclede Group totaling $89.2 million at September 30, 2008. The Utility had short-term borrowings
(including borrowings from Laclede Group) aggregating to a maximum of $328.8 million at any one time during the
fiscal year. Excluding borrowmgs from Laclede Group, the Utility’s maximum borrowings for the vear were $304.5
million.

Laclede Gas’ lines of credit include covenants limiting total debt, including short-term debt, to no more than 70% of total
capitalization and requiring earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization (EBITDA) to be at least 2.25
times interest expense. On September 30, 2008, total debt was 66% of total capitalization. For the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2008, EBITDA was 3.97 times interest expense.

Short-term cash requirements outside of Laclede Gas have generally been met with internally-generated funds. However,
Lactede Group has $50 million in working capital lines of credit, $40 million of which expires in August 2009 and $10
million of which expires in October 2009, to meet short-term liquidity needs of its subsidiaries. These lines of credit have
covenants limiting the total debt of the consolidated Laclede Group to no more than 70% of the Company’s total
capitalization. This ratio stood at 55% on September 30, 2008. These lines were previously used to provide letters of
credit on behalf of SM&P, and have been used to provide for seasonal funding needs of various other subsidiaries from
time to time. Just prior to the SM&P sale, the letters of credit provided on behalf of SM&P totaled $2.8 million. Such
letters have been released and extinguished. There were no borrowings under Laclede Group’s lines during the fiscal year.
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Long-term Debt

On November 1, 2007, Laclede Gas paid at maturity $40 million principal amount of 7 1/2% First Mortgage Bonds. This
maturity was funded through shori-term borrowings.

On September 23, 2008, Laclede Gas issued $80 million of First Mortgage Bonds, due October 15, 2038, at an interest
rate of 6.35%. The bonds are callable at par at the Utility’s option on or after October 13, 2013.

At September 30, 2008, Laclede Gas had fixed-rate long-term debt totaling $390 million. While these long-term debt
issues are fixed-rate, they are subject to changes in fair value as market interest rates change. However, increases or
decreases in fair value would impact earnings and cash flows only if Lactede Gas were to reacquire any of these issues in
the open market prior to maturity.

On May 5, 2008, Laclede Group redeemed in full its $46.4 million subordinated debentures, which also triggered the
redemption of all of the Laclede Capital Trust I {Trust) common and preferred securities on the same date. Interest on the
debentures and distributions on the Trust securities ceased on and after the redemption date. Upon redemption, Laclede
Group recognized a pre-tax loss of $1.4 million, primarily attributable to unamortized issuance costs. A portion of the
proceeds received from the sale of SM&P was used to fund the redemption. The Trust was dissolved on June 16, 2008.

Shelf Registrations

Laclede Gas has on file with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) an effective shelf registration on Form $-3
for issuance of $350 million of securities, of which $270 million remains available to Laclede Gas at this time. The Utility
has authority from the MoPSC to issue up to $500 million in First Mortgage Bonds, unsecured debt; and equity securities,
of which $412.4 million remained available under this authorization as of September 30, 2008, and $372.4 million
remains available as of November 20, 2008. During fiscal year 2008, pursuant to this authority, the Utility sold 109 shares
of its common stock to Laclede Group for $3.8 million. On November 20, 2008, the Utility sold 1,161 shares of its
‘common stock to Laclede Group for $40.0 million. The amount, timing, and type of additional financing to be issued will
depend on cash requirements and market conditions,

Laclede Group has on file a shelf registration on Form S-3 with the SEC that allows for the issuance of equity securities,
other than preferred stock, and debt securities. Of the $500 million of securities originally registered under this Form $-3,
$362.4 million remain registered and unissued as of September 30, 2008. The amount, timing, and type of additional
financing to be issued under this shelf registration will depend on cash requirements and market conditions.

Guarantees

Laclede Gas has several operating leases for the rental of vehicles that contain provisions requiring Laclede Gas to
guarantee certain amounts related to the residual value of the leased property. These leases have various terms, the longest
of which extends through 2014. At September 30, 2008, the maximum guarantees under these leases were $1.8 million.
However, the Utility estimates that the residual value of the leased vehicles will be adequate to satisfy most of the
guaranteed amounts. At September 30, 2008, the carrying value of the liability recognized for these guarantees was $0.3
million. . |

Laciede Group had guarantees totaling $57.5 million for performance and payment of certain wholesale gas supply

. purchases by LER, as of September 30, 2008. Since that date, total guarantees issued by Laclede Group on behalf of LER
increased by $10.0 million bringing the total to $67.5 million in guarantees outstanding at November 20, 2008. No
amounts have been recorded for these guarantees in the financial statements.

Other
Utility capital expenditures were $55.3 million in fiscal year 2008, compared with $56.4 mitlion and $57.9 million for
fiscal years 2007 and 2006, respectively. Utility capital expenditures are expected to be approximately $59 million in

fiscal year 2009. Non-utility capital expenditures for fiscal year 2008 were $1.3 miilion compared with $2.5 million in
fiscal year 2007 and $5.5 million in fiscal year 2006, and are estimated to be approximately $1 million in fiscal year 2009.
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Consolidated capitalization at September 30, 2008, excluding current obligations of preferred stock, consisted of 55.5%
Laclede Group common stock equity, 0.1% Laclede Gas preferred stock equity, and 44.4% Laclede Gas long-term debt.

Laclede Group’s ratio of earnings (from continuing operations) to fixed charges was 3.7 for fiscal year 2008, 2.9 for fiscal
year 2007, and 3.0 for fiscal year 2006.

It is management’s view that the Company has adequate access to capital markets and will have sufficient capital
resources, both internal and external, to meet anticipated capital requirements.

CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS

As of September 30, 2008, Laclede Group had contractual obligations with payments due as summarized
below (in millions);

Payments due by period -
More
Less than 13 35 _ than
Contractual Obligations Total 1 Year Years Years 5 Years

Principal Payments on Long-Term Debt $ 390 $§ ° — § 250 $ 250 $ 3400
[nterest Payments on Long-Term Debt 5339 245 48.3 45.1 416.0
Operating Leases (a) 11.2 4.8 5.3 1.1 —
Purchase Obligations — Natural Gas {b) 2,061.7 789.8 8725 3714 34.0
Purchase Obligations — Other (c) 113.9 16.1 25.3 17.5 55.0
Total (d} § 31167 $§ 8352 § 9764 3§ 460.1 § 8450

(a)  Operating lease obligations are primarily for office space, vehicles, and power operated equipment in the
gas distribution segment. Additional payments will be incurred if renewal options are exercised under the
provisions of certain agreements.

(b)  These purchase obligations represent the minimum payments required under existing natural gas
transportation and storage contracts and natural gas supply agreements in the utility gas distribution and
non-reguiated gas marketing segments. These amounts reflect fixed obligations as well as obligations to
purchase natural gas at future market prices, calculated using September 30, 2008 New York Mercantile
Exchange futures prices. Laclede Gas recovers the costs related to its purchases, transportation, and
storage of natural gas through the operation of its PGA Clause, subject to ptudence review; however,
variations in the timing of coltections of gas costs from customers affect short-term cash requirements.
Additional contractual commitments are generally entered into prior to or during the heating season.

(c)  These purchase obligations reflect miscellaneous agreements for the purchase of materials and the
procurement of services necessary for normal operations.

(d) The categories of Capital Leases and Other Long-Term Liabilities have been excluded from the table
above because there are no applicable amounts of contractual obligations under these categories. Also,
commitments related to pension and postretirement benefit plans have been excluded from the table
above. The Company expects to make contributions to its qualified, trusteed pension plans lotaling $2.2
million in fiscal year 2009, Laclede Gas anticipates a $1.5 million contribution relative to its non-
qualified pension plans during fiscal year 2009. With regard to the postretirement benefits, the Company
anticipates Laclede Gas will contribute $9.7 million to the qualified trusts and $0.4 million directly to
participants from Laclede Gas’ funds during fiscal year 2009. For further discussion of the Company’s
pension and postretirement benefit plans, refer to Note 3, Pension Plans and Other Postretirement
Benefits, of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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MARKET RISK

Laclede Gas has a risk management policy that allows for the purchase of natural gas financial instruments with the goal
of managing price risk associated with purchasing natural gas on behalf of its customers. This policy prohibits
speculation. Costs and cost reductions, including carrying costs, associated with the Utility’s use of natural gas financial
instruments are allowed to be passed on to the Utility’s customers through the operation of its PGA Clause, through
which the MoPSC allows the Ultility to recover gas supply costs. Accordingly, Laclede Gas does not expect any adverse
earnings impact as a result of the use of these financial instruments. However, the timing of recovery for cash payments
related to margin requirements may cause short-term cash requirements to vary, Nevertheless, carrying costs associated
with such requirements are recovered through the PGA Clause. At September 30, 2008, the Utility held 42.7 million
MMBtu of futures contracts at an average price of $8.93 per MMBtu. Additionally, 16.0 million MMButu of other price
risk mitigation was in place through the use of option-based strategies. These positions have various expiration dates, the
longest of which extends through October 2011.

In the course of its business, Laclede Group’s non-regulated gas marketing affiliate, LER, enters into fixed-price
commitments associated with the purchase or sale of natural gas. As part of LERs risk management policy, LER
manages the price risk associated with these commitments by either closely matching the offsetting physical purchase or
sale of natural gas at fixed-prices or through the use of exchange-traded futures contracts to lock in margins. At
September 30, 2008, LER’s unmatched positions were not material to Laclede Group’s financial position or results of
operations. For details related to LER’s exchange-traded futures contracts at September 30, 2008, see Note 4 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements,

ENVIRONMENTAIL. MATTERS

Laclede Gas owns and operates natural gas distribution, transmission, and storage facilities, the operations of which are
subject to various environmental laws, regulations, and interpretations. While environmental issues resulting from such
operations arise in the ordinary course of business, such issues have not materially affected the Company’s or Laclede
Gas’ financial position and results of operations. As environmental laws, regulations, and their interpretations change,
however, Laclede Gas may be required to incur additional costs. For a description of environmental matters, see Note 15
to the Consolidated Financial Statements. ’
OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

Laclede Group has no off-balance sheet arrangements.

Laclede Gas Company’s Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition is included in Exhibit 99.1 of
this report.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

For this discussion, see the “Market Risk” subsection in Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations, page 36.
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Management Report on Internal Control over Financial Réporting

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal controls over financial reporting. The
Company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Because of its inherent limitations, internal
control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements and can provide only reasonable assurance with
respect to financial statement preparation and presentation. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future
pericds are subject to the risks that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree
of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

The Company’s management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, conducted an
assessment of the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of September 30, 2008. In
making this assessment, management used the criteria in Jmternal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Based on that assessment, management concluded
that the Company’s internal control over financial reporting was effective as of September 30, 2008. Deloitte & Touche
LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, has issued an attestation report on the Company’s internal control
over financial reporting, which is included herein.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
The Laclede Group, Inc.
St. Louis, Missouri

. We have audited the internal control over financial reporting of The Laclede Group, Inc. and its subsidiaries (the
“Company™) as of September 30, 2008, based on criteria established in /nternal Control — Integrated Framework issued
by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. The Company’s management is
responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of
internal control over financial reporting, included in the accompanying Management Report on Internal Control over
Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective
control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of
internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk, and performing such other procedures as
we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed by, or under the supervision of, the
company’s principal executive and principal financial officers, or persons performing similar functions, and effected by
the company’s board of directors, management, and other persennel to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal contro! over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles
and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management
- and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal control over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or
improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may not be prevented or detected
on a timely basis. Also, projections of any evaluation of the effectiveness of the internal control over financial reporting to
future periods are subject to the risk that the controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of
September 30, 2008, based on the criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States), the consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedule as of and for the year ended

September 30, 2008 of the Company and our report dated November 21, 2008 expressed an unqualified opinion on those
financial statements and financial statement schedule and included an explanatory paragraph regarding the Company’s

. adoption of Financial Accounting Standards Board Interpretation No. 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes—
an Interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109, effective October 1, 2007, and Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 158, Emplovers ' Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans — an
amendment of FASB Statements No. 87, 88, 106 and 132 (R), effective September 3¢, 2007.

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP
St. Louis, Missouri

November 21, 2008
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
The Laclede Group, Inc.
St. Louis, Missouri

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and statements of consolidated capitalization of The
Laclede Group, Inc. and its subsidiaries (the “Company™) as of September 30, 2008 and 2007, and the related
consolidated statements of income, common shareholders” equity, comprehensive income, and cash flows for each of the
three vears in the period ended September 30, 2008. Our audits also included the financial statement schedule listed in the
Index at Part 1V, Item 15(a) 2. These financial statements and financial statement schedule are the responsibility of the
Company’s management, Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements and
financial statement schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used
and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We
believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of The
Laclede Group, Inc. and its subsidiaries as of September 30, 2008 and 2007, and the results of their operations and their
cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended September 30, 2008, in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America, Also, in our opinion, such financial statement schedule, when
considered in relation to the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly, in all material
respects, the information set forth therein.

As discussed in Notes | and 3 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company adopted the provisions of Financial
Accounting Standards Board Interpretation No. 48, dccounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes—an Interpretation of
FASB Statement No. 109, effective October 1, 2007, and Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 158,
Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans — an amendment of FASB
Statements No. 87, 88, 106 and 132 (R), effective September 30, 2007.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board {United
States), the Company's internal control over financial reporting as of September 30, 2008, based on the criteria
established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission and our report dated November 21, 2008 expressed an unqualified opinion on the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting.

/s/ DELOITTE & TQUCHE LLP

St. Louis, Missouri
November 21, 2008
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THE LACLEDE GROUP, INC.
STATEMENTS OF CONSOLIDATED INCOME

(Thousand, Except Per Share Amounts)

Years Ended September 30 2008 2007 2006
Operating Revenues: .
Regulated Gas Distribution $ 1,128,287 $  -1.131,554 $ 1,141,011
Non-Regulated Gas Marketing 1,075,845 718,704 689,572
Other 4,841 5,603 4,445
Total Operating Revenues 2,208,973 1,855,861 1,835,028
Operating Expenses:
Regulated
Natural and propane gas 770,097 797,924 821,721
Other operation expenses 144,611 131,798 128,180
Maintenance 25,827 24,306 21,198
Depreciation and amortization 35,303 34,080 30,904
Taxes, other than income taxes 69,023 68,361 71,038
Total Regulated Operating Expenses 1,044,861 1,056,469 1,073,041
Non-Regulatéd Gas Marketing 1,048,162 698,962 662,391
Other 4,603 5,376 5,024
Total Operating Expenses 2,097,626 1,760,807 1,740,456
Operating Income 111,347 95,054 94,572
Other Income and (Income Deductions) — Net 1,881 6,813 5,508
Interest Charges:
Interest on long-term debt 19,851 22,502 22,329
Interest on long-term debt to unconsolidated affiliate trust 486 277 277
Other interest charges 9.140 11,155 10,278
Total Interest Charges 29,477 33,934 32,884
Income from Continuing Operations Before Income Taxes
and Dividends on Laclede Gas Redeemable Preferred Stock 83,751 67,933 67,196
Income Tax Expense 26,190 22,146 21,301
Dividends on Laclede Gas Redeemable Preferred Stock '35 43 48
Income from Conlinuiﬁg Operations 57,526 45,744 45,847
Income from Discontinued Operalions, Net of [ncome Tax (Note 2) 20,396 4,027 3,142
Net Income 3 77,922 $ 49,771 3 48,989
Average Number of Common Shares Outstanding:
Basic 21,657 21,455 21,247
Diluted 21,763 21,503 21,286
Basic Earings Per Share of Common Stock:
Income from Continuing Operations $ 2.66 g 213 s 2.16
Income from Discontinued Operations 0.94 0.19 Q.15
Net Income 3 3.60 3 2.32 3 2.31
Diluted Eamnings Per Share of Common Stock:
Income from Continuing Operations b 2.64 % 2,12 $ 215
Income from Discontinued Operations 0.94 0.19 .15
Net Income S . 3.58 $ 231 $ 2.30

See the accompanying Notes to (Consolidated Financial Statements.
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THE LACLEDE GROUP, INC. )
STATEMENTS OF CONSOLIDATED COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

{Thousands)
Years Ended September 30 2008 2007 2006
Net Income $ 77,922 49,771 g 48,989
Other Comprehensive Income (Loss), Before Tax:
Net gains (losses) on cash flow hedging derivative instruments:
Net hedging gain arising during the period 8,091 7,976 16,449
Reclassification adjustment for (gains) losses included in net income (3,814) (9.451) 1,582
Net unrealized gains (losses) on cash flow hedging
" derivative instruments 4,277 (1,475) 18,031
Defined benefit pension and other postretirement benefit plans:
Minimum pension liability adjustment — 377 479
Net actuarial loss arising during period 271) — —
Amortization of actuarial loss included in net periodic pension and
postretirement benefit cost 171 — —
Net defined benefit pension and other postretirement benefit plans (100} i 479
Other Comprehensive Income (Loss), Before Tax 4,177 (1,098) 18,510
[ncome Tax Expense (Benefit) Related to ltems
of Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) 1,597 (424) 7,152
Other Comprehensive [ncome (Loss), Net of Tax 2,580 (674) 11,358
Comprehensive [ncome $ 80,502 49,097 8 60,347

See the accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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THE LACLEDE GROUP, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

{Thousands)
September 30 2008 2007
ASSETS’
Utility Plant £ 1,229,174 § 1,187.828
Less — Accumulated depreciation and amortization 405,977 394,034
Net Utility Plant 823,197 793,794 |
Nor-utility property (net of accumulated depreciation and
amortization, 2008, $4,035; 2007, $3,725) 3,793 4,065
Other investments 43,314 43635
Property and investments of _discontinueci operations — 42,601
Other Property and Investments 47,107 90,301
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 14,899 52,746
Accounts receivable:
Utility 98,708 103,050
Non-utility 102,389 50,355
Other 10,486 6,680
Allowances for doubtful accounts (12,624) (11,232)
Inventories:
Natural gas stored underground at LIFO cost 206,267 138,256
Propane gas at FIFO cost 15911 19,950
Materials, supplies, and merchandise at average cost 5,301 4,990
Derivative instrument assets 57,210 31,057
Unamortized purchased gas adjustments 33,411 12,813
Prepayments and other h 25950° 27914
Current assets of discontinued operations — 30,756
Total Current Assets 561,908 467,335
Deferred Charges:
Regulatory assets 334,755 285,054
Other 5,688 4,669
Total Deferred Charges 340,443 289,723
Tolal Assets $ 1,772,655 $ 1,641,153
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THE LACLEDE GROUP, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS {Continued)

(Thousands)
September 30 2008 2007
CAPITALIZATION AND LIABILITIES
Capitalization:
Common stock equity i 3 486,479 $ 428,325
Laclede Gas redeemable preferred stock (less current sinking fund requirements) ’ 467 627
Long-term debt to unconsolidated affiliate trust — 46,400
Long-term debt (less current portion) — Laclede Gas 389,181 309,122
Total Capitalization 876,127 784,474
Current Liabilities:
Notes payable 215,900 211,400
Accounts payable " 159,580 99,109
Advance customer billings 25,548 25,440
Current portion of long-term debt and preferred stock 160 40,160
Wages and compensation accrued 12,197 11,532
Dividends payable 8,400 7,970
Customer deposits 14,020 15.899
Interest accrued 10,094 11,103
Taxes accrued 11,387 20922
Deferred income taxes current 11,669 2,644
Other R 10,249 5,756
Current liabilities of discontinued operations — 21,730
Total Current Liabilities 479,204 473,665
Deferred Credits and Other Liabilities:
Deferred income taxes 222,761 223,750
Unamortized investment tax credits 3,973 4,200
Pension and postretirement benefit costs 98,513 63,678
Asset retirement obligations 26,833 26,125
Regulatory liabilities 42,191 39,589
Other 23,053 22,554
Deferred credits and other liabilities of discontinued operations -— 3,118
Total Deferred Credits and Other Liabilities 417,324 383.014
Commitments and Contingencies (Note 15)
Total Capitalization and Liabilities $ 1,772,655 $ 1,641,153

See the accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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THE LACLEDE GROUP, INC.
STATEMENTS OF CONSOLIDATED CAPITALIZATION

(Thousands, Except for Shares and Per Share Amounts)

September 30 2008 2007
Commeon Stock Equity:
Common stock, par value St per share:
Authorized — 2008 and 2007, 70,000,000 shares
Issued — 2008, 21,993,473 shares; and 2007, 21,645,637 shares $ 21,993 $ 21,646
Paid-in capital ' . 147,241 136,061
Retained earnings 312,808 268,761
Accumulated other comprehensive income 4,437 1,857 .
Total Common Stock Equity 486,479 428,325
Laclede Gas Redeemable Preferved Stock par value $25 per share
(1,480,000 shares authorized) issued and outstanding;
5% Series B — 2008, 19,200 shares; and 2007, 25,600 shares 320 480
4.56% Series C — 2008 and 2007, 5,894 shares 147 147
Total Redeemable Preferred Stock 467 627
Long-Term Debt to Unconsolidated Affiliate Trust — 46,400
Long-Term Debt — Laclede Gas: !
First Mortgage Bonds:
6-1/2% Series, due November 15, 2010 " 25,000 25,000
6-1/2% Series, due October 15, 2012 25,000 25,000
5-1/2% Series, due May 1, 2019 50,000 50,000
7% Series, due June 1, 2029 25,000 25,000
7.90% Series, due September 15, 2030 30,000 30,000
6% Series, due May 1, 2034 100,000 100,000
6.15% Series, due June 1, 2036 55,000 55,000
6.35% Series, due October 15, 2038 80,000 —
Total 390,000 310,000
Unamortized discount, net of premium, on long-term debt (819) (878)
Total Long-Term Debt — Laclede Gas 389,181 309,122
Total § 876,127 $ 784,474

Long-term debt and preferred stock dellar amounts are exclusive of current portion.

See the accompanying Notes to Censolidated Financial Statements.
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THE LACLEDE GRQUP, INC.

CONSCLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMMON SHAREHOLDERS® EQUITY

Accum.
Other
Common Stock Issued Paid-in Retained Comp.
(Thousands, Except for Shares and Per Share Amounts)  Shares Amount " Capital Earnings Income Total
BALANCE OCTOBER 1, 2005 2!;] 72,009 3§ 20,172 8 121,505 8 231,551 8§ (7,703) § 366,525
Net income _— — —_ 48,989 | — 48,989
Dividend reinvestment plan 114,255 ° 114 3.604 _ — 3,718
S_lock-based compensation costs _ —_ 1,544 — —_ 1,544
Employee stock options exercised 24,375 25 591 : — — 616
Employee restricted stock awards " 51,000 51 (51} — — —
Non-employee directors’ restricted stock awards — — (145} — — (145)
Tax benefit ~ stock compensation -— — 77 — — T
Dividends declared:

Common stock ($1.41 per share) — — — {30,045} — (30.045)

Other comprehensive income, net of tax — —_ — — 11,358 11,358

BALANCE SEPTEMBER 30, 2006 21,361,639 21,362 127,125 250,495 3,655 402,637
Net income — = — 49771 — 49,771
Dividend reinvestment plan 116,973 117 3.690 — — 3,807
Stock-based compensation costs -—_ — 2,388 — — 2,388
Employee stock options exercised 108.025 108 2,946 — — 3,054
Employee restricted stock awards 59,000 59 (59) — — —
Non-employee directors’ restricted stock awards — — (292) — — (292)
Tax benefit - stock compensation — — 263 — — 263
Dividends declared:

Common stock ($1.46 per share) — — _ {31,505) — (31,505)
Other comprehensive loss, net of tax — — - e (674) (674)
Adoption of SFAS No. 158, net of tax — —_ — — (1,124} (1,124)

BALANCE SEPTEMBER 30, 2007 21,645,637 21,646 136,061 268,761 1,857 428,325
Adoption of FIN 48, as of October 1, 2007 — — — {1,099) — {1,099)
Net income - — — 77,922 — 77,922
Dividend reinvestment plan 106,436 106 3,681 — — 3,787
Stock-based compensation costs — - 2,615 — — 2,615
Employee stock options exercised 178,750 179 4,833 — — 5,012
Employee restricted stock awards 62,650 62 (62) —_ — —
Non-employee directors’ restricted stock awards —_ -— (421) —_ — 421)
Tax benefit - stock compensation — — 534 —_ — 534
Dividends declared:

Common stock ($1.50 per share) — —_ — (32,776} — {32,776)
Other c.omprehcnsive income, net of tax = — — — 2,580 2,580

BALANCE SEPTEMBER 30, 2008 21,993,473 3 21,993 § 147,241 5 312808 § 4437 5§ 486,479

See the accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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THE LACLEDE GROUP, INC,
STATEMENTS OF CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOWS

(Thousands)
Years Ended September 30 2008 2007 2006
Operating Activities:
Net Income 71922 % 4877t § 48,989
Adjustments to reconcile net income to
net cash provided by (used in) operating activities:
(Gain on sale of discontinued operations {44.,401) —_ -
Depreciation, amortization and accretion 36,913 38,308 34,943
Deferred income taxes and investment tax credits 5,786 (16,144) 30,822
Other - net 5,494 2118 1,773
Changes in assets and habilities:
Accounts receivable — net (50,106) (15,927) (4,506)
Unamortized purchased gas adjustments - (20,598) 31,568 (13,120
Deferred purchased gas costs (19,614) 13,381 (114,686)
Accounts payable 59,161 2,181 (36,763)
Advance customer billings — net 108 {6,003) 735
Taxes accrued {6,886) 5,404 (8,655)
Natural gas stored underground (68,011) {780) 22,167
Other assets and liabilities (12,300) (22,586) 30,015
Net cash {used in} provided by operating activities (36,532) 81,291 (8,266)
Investing Activities:
Proceeds from sale of discontinued operations 83,554 _ —
Capital expenditures (56,621) (£8,870) (63,416}
Non-Regulated Services acquisition — _ (5,700)
Other investments {1,393) 153 - {3,212)
Proceeds from unconsolidated affiliate trust's redemption of its common securities 1,400 — —
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 26,940 (58,717) (72,428)
Financing Activities:
Issuance of First Mortgage Bonds 80,000 — 55,000
Maturity of First Mortgage Bonds * (40,000} — (40,000)
Redemption of long-term debt to unconsolidated affiliate trust (46,400} — —
[ssuance of short-term debt - nat 4,500 4,100 136,695
[ssuance of common stock 8,799 6,861 4333
Non-employee directors’ restricted stock awards (421) (292) (145)
Dividends paid (32,430} (31,193} {29,760}
Preferred stock reacquired — Laclede Gas (160} (159) (63)
Other (2,143) 77 (601)
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities (28,255) (20,606) 125,459
Net (Decrease) Increase in Cash and Cash. Equivalents (37,847) 1,968 44,765
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year 52,746 50,778 6,013
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year 14,899 % 52746 § 50,778
Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Paid During the Year for:
Interest ' 32,687 35241 § 35,751
[ncome taxes 47,572 26,191 9,924

See the accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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THE LACLEDE GROUP, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION - The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of The Laclede
Group, Inc. (Laclede Group or the Company) and its subsidiary companies. All subsidiaries are wholly owned. Laclede
Gas Company (Laclede Gas ar the Utility) and other subsidiaries of Laclede Group may engage in related: party
transactions during the ordinary course of business. All intercompany balances have been eliminated from the
consolidated financial statements of Laclede Group except that certain intercompany transactions with Laclede Gas are
not eliminated in accordance with the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 71,
“Accounting for the Effects of Certain Types of Regulation.” Those types of transactions include sales of natural gas from
Laclede Gas to Laclede Energy Resources, Inc. (LER), sales of naturat gas from LER to Laclede Gas, and sales of
propane and transportation services provided by Laclede Pipeline Company to Laclede Gas, These revenues are shown on
the Intersegment revenues lines in the table included in Note 14 under Regulated Gas Distribution, Non-Regulated Gas
Marketing, and Other columns, respectively.

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS - On March 31, 2008, Laclede Group sold 100% of its interest in SM&P
Utility Resources, Inc. (SM&P), its wholly-owned subsidiary, which comprised the Non-Regulated Services segment. In
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, the results of operations for SM&P are reported as
discontinued operations in the statement of income and its associated assets and liabilities are classified separately in the
balance sheet. The operating results of SM&P have been aggregated and reported on the Statements of Consolidated
Income as Income from Discontinued Operations, Net of Income Tax. The Company has reported in discontinued
operations interest expense based on amounts previously recorded by SM&P. Discontinued operations does not include
general corporate overheads previously recorded by SM&P. Prior periods have been reclassified to conform to thé
current-period presentation. For addmonal information relative to the Company’s sale of SM&P, refer to Note 2,
Discontinued Operations.

INVESTMENT IN UNCONSOLIDATED AFFILIATE TRUST - In fiscal year 2003, Laclede Group formed
Laclede Capital Trust I (Trust), its affiliated, nonconsolidated trust, for the sole purpose of issuing trust securities and
investing the gross proceeds of the sale of the trust securities in debt securities of Laclede Group. Alt of the Trust
securities had a liquidation value of $25 per share and a dividend rate of 7.70%, with all of its common securities being
owned by Laclede Group and all of its preferred securities being sold to the public. The Trust’s sole asset was the
Company's $46.4 million aggregate principal amount of 7.70% debentures due December 1, 2032, which had the same
economic terms as the Trust securities and were reflected as Long-term debt to unconsolidated affiliate trust on the
Consolidated Balance Sheets. The Company’s investment in the Trust common securities was included on the Other
investments line on the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

On May 5, 2008, Laclede Group redeemed in full its $46.4 million subordinated debentures, which also triggered
the redemption of all of the Trust common and preferred securitics on the same date. Interest on the debentures and
distributions on the Trust securities ceased on and after the redemption date. Upon redemption, Laclede Group recognized
a pre-tax loss of $1.4 million, primarily attributable to unamortized issuance costs. A portion of the proceeds received
from the sale of SM&P was used to fund the redemption. The Trust was dissolved on June 16, 2008.

NATURE OF OPERATIONS - Laclede Group is a public utility holding company under the Public Utility
-Holding Company Act of 2005. All subsidiaries are wholly owned by Laclede Group. The Regulated Gas Distribution
segment includes Laclede Gas, Laclede Group’s largest subsidiary and core business unit, Laclede Gas is a public utility
engaged in the retail distribution and sale of natural gas. Laclede Gas serves an area in eastern Missouri, with a population
of approximately 2.1 mitlion, including the City of St. Louis and parts of ten other counties in eastern Missouri. As an
adjunct to its gas distribution business, Laclede Gas operates underground natural gas storage fields. The Non-Regulated
Gas Marketing segment includes LER, a subsidiary engaged in the non-regulated marketing of natural gas and related
activities. The activities of other subsidiaries are descnbed in Note 14, Information by Operating Segment, and are -
included in the Other column,

USE OF ESTIMATES - The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting periods. Actual results could differ
from those estimates.

SYSTEM OF ACCOUNTS - The accounts of Laclede Gas are maintained in accordance with the uniform
system of accounts prescribed by the Missouri Public Service Commission (MoPSC or Commission}, which system
substantially conforms to that prescribed by the Federa! Energy. Regulatory Commission (FERC). The accounts of
Laclede Pipeline Company are maintained in accordance with the Uniform System of Accounts prescribed by the FERC.
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UTILITY PLANT, DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION - Utility plaiit is stated at original cost. The
cost of additions to utility plant includes contracted work, direct labor and materials, allocable overheads, and an
allowance for funds used during construction. The costs of units of property retired, replaced, or renewed are removed
from utility plant and are charged to accumulated depreciation. Maintenance and repairs of property and replacement and
renewal of items determined to be less than units of property are charged to maintenance expenses.

Utility plant is depreciated on a straight-line basis at rates based on estimated service lives of the various classes
of property. Annual depreciation and amortization in 2008, 2007, and 2006 averaged 3.1%, 3.1%, and 3.0%, respectively,
of the original cost of depreciable and amortizable property.

Pursuant to the terms of the 2005 rate case settlement, higher depreciation rates became effective ‘
January 1, 2006, reflecting, in part, an’accrual for future removal costs, including costs related to interim retirements.
Concurrent with implementation of new depreciation rates on January 1, 2006, Laclede Gas ceased expensing all removal
costs, net of salvage, as incurred and discontinued an annual $3.4 million negative amortization of a portion of the
Utility’s depreciation reserve, as previously ordered by the MoPSC. Consistent with SFAS No. 71, the Utility records
accruals for asset removal costs that are provided for through depreciation expense with credits to Regulatory Liabilities.
When Laclede Gas retires depreciable utitity plant and equipment, it charges the associated original costs to Accumulated
Depreciation and Amortization, and any related removal costs incurred dre charged to Regulatory Liabilities. The
regulatory liability for accrued asset removal costs represents amounts recovered through rates in excess of actual costs
incurred. In the rate setting process, the regulatory liability is deducted from the rate base upon which the Utility has the
opportunity to earn its allowed rate of return.

The Utility’s capital expenditures were $55.3 million, $56.4 million, and $57.9 million for fiscal years 2008,
2007, and 2006, respectively. Additionally, at September 30, 2008, the Utility had recorded accruals for capital

- expenditures totaling approximately $2.3 million. Accrued capital expenditures at September 30, 2007 and 2006 were not
material. Accrued capital expenditures are excluded from the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows.

ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATIONS - In accordance with SFAS No. 143, “Accounting for Asset
Retirement Obligations,” and Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Interpretation No. (FIN) 47, “Accounting
for Conditional Asset Retirement Obligations,” Laclede Group records legal obligations associated with the retirement of
long-lived assets in the period in which the obligations are incurred, if sufficient information exists to reasonably estimate
the fair value of the obligations. Obligations are recorded as both a cost of the related long-lived asset and as a
corresponding liability. Subsequently, the asset retirement costs are depreciated over the life of the asset and the asset
retirement obligations are accreted to the expected settlement amounts. The Company has recorded asset retirement
obligations associated with certain safety requirements to purge and seal gas distribution mains upon retirement, the
plugging and abandonment of storage wells and other storage facilities, specific service line obligations, and certain
removal and disposal obligations related to components of Laclede Gas’ distribution system and general plant. Asset
retirement obligations recorded by Laclede Group’s non-regulated subsidiaries are not material. As authorized by the
MoPSC, Laclede Gas accrues future removal costs associated with its property, plant and equipment through its
depreciation rates, even if a legal obligation, as defined by SFAS No. 143 and FIN 47, does not exist. The difference
between removal costs recognized in depreciation rates and the accretion expense and depreciation expense recognizable
under SFAS No. 143 and FIN 47 is a timing difference between recovery of these costs in rates and their recognition for
financial reporting purposes. Accordingly, consistent with SFAS No. 71, these differences are deferred as regulatory
liabilities.

Laclede Group first adopted the provisions of FIN 47 on September 30, 2006. Upon adoption, the Utility
recorded Asset Retirement Obligations of $26.0 miilion and increased the carrying value of the related assets by $3.3
million {reflecting an increase in gross plant of $6.8 million reduced by accumulated depreciation totaling $3.5 million).
The remaining $22.7 million represents the cumulative effect of adoption and was recorded as a reduction to Regulatory
Liabilities pursuant to SFAS No. 71.
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The following table presents a reconciliation of the beginning and ending balances of Asset Retirement
Obligations reported in the Consolidated Balance Sheets:

(Thousands)
Balance at September 30, 2006 $ 26,018
" Liabilities incurred during the peried 603
Liabilities settled during the period (2,372}
Accretion . 1,506
Revisions in estimated cash flows 370
Balance at September 30, 2007 26,125
Liabilities incurred during the period 235
Liabilities settled during the period ' (1,035}
Accretion 1,567
Revisions in estimated cash flows : (59}
Balance at September 30, 2008 $ 26,833

REGULATED OPERATIONS - Laclede Gas accounts for its regulated operations in accordance with SFAS
No. 71. This Statement sets forth the application of accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America for those companies whose rates are established by or are subject to approvat by an independent third-party
regulator, The provisions of SFAS No. 71 require, among other things, that financial statements of a regulated enterprise
reflect the actions of regulators, where appropriate. These actions may result in the recognition of revenues and expenses
in time periods that are different than non-regulated enterprises. When this occurs, costs are deferred as assets in the
balance sheet (regulatory assets) and recorded as expenses when those amounts are reflected in rates. Also, regulators can
impose liabilities upon a regulated company for amounts previously collected from customers and for recovery of costs
that are expected to be incurred.in the future (regulatory liabilities).

The following regulatory assets and regulatory liabilities were reflected in the Consolidated Balance Sheets as of
September 30: ' :

(Thousands) 2008 2007
. Regulatory Assets:
Future income taxes due from customers 5 85456 § 85.476
Pension and postretirement benefit costs 182,850 151,163
Unamortized purchased gas adjustments 33411 h 12,813
Purchased gas costs 49,071 29,457
Compensated absences 7,253 7,104
Cold weather rule 6.074 6,952
Other 4,011 4,902
Total Regulatory Assets ’ § 368,166 $§ 297,867
Regulatory Liabilities: .
Unamortized investment tax credits $ 3,973 3 4,200
Accrued cost of removal - 35,922 33,238
Other 6,269 6,351
Total Regulatory Liabilities $ 46,164 § 43,789

As authorized by the MoPSC, Laclede Gas discontinued deferring certain costs for future recovery, as expenses
associated with those specific arcas were included in approved rates effective December 27, 1999. Previously deferred
costs of $10.5 million are being recovered and amortized on a straight-line basis over a fifteen-year period, without return
on investment. Amortization of these costs totaled $6.2 million from December 27, 1999 through September 30, 2008.
Previously deferred costs of $2.1 million are being recovered and amortized on a straight-line basis over a ten-year
period, without return on investment. Amortization of these costs totaled $1.8 million from December 27, 1999 through

.September 30, 2008. : '

NATURAL GAS STORED UNDERGROUND - Inventory of Utility natural gas in storage is priced on a last-
in, first-out (LIFO) basis. The replacement cost of natural gas stored underground for current use at September 30, 2008
was less than the LIFO cost by $21.8 million and at September 30, 2007 exceeded the LIFO cost by $4.3 million. The
inventory carrying value is not adjusted to the lower of cost or market prices because, pursuant to the Laclede Gas
Purchased Gas Adjustment (PGA) Clause, actual gas costs are recovered in customer rates.
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REVENUE RECOGNITION - Laclede Gas reads meters and bills its customers on monthly cycles. The Utility
records its regulated gas distribution revenues from gas sales and transportation services on an accrual basis that includes
estimated amounts for gas delivered, but not yet billed. The accruals for unbilled revenues are reversed in the subsequent
accounting period when meters are actually read and customers are billed. The amounts of accrued unbilled revenues at .
September 30, 2008 and 2007, for the Unlity, were $13.5 million and $11.9 million, respectively.

LER and Laclede Group’s other subsidiaries record revenues when carned, either when the product is delivered
or when services are performed.

In the course of its business, Laclede Group’s non-regulated gas marketmg affi Ilate LER, enters into fixed-price
commitments associated with the purchase or sale of natural gas. LER’s fixed-price energy contracts are designated as
normal purchases and normal sales, as defined in accordance with SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments
and Hedging Activities.” As such, those contracts are accounted for as executory contracts and recorded on an accrual
basis. Revenues are recorded using a gross presentation.

PURCHASED GAS ADJUSTMENTS AND DEFERRED ACCOUNT - The PGA Clause allows Laclede
Gas to flow through to customers, subject to prudence review, the cost of purchased gas supplies. To better match
customer billings with market natural gas prices, the Utility is allowed to file to modify, on a periodic basis, the level of
gas costs in its PGA. Laclede Gas has a risk management policy that allows for the purchase of natural gas financial
instruments with the goal of managing price risk associated with. purchasing natural gas on behalf of its customers. The
MoPSC clarified that costs, cost reductions, and carrying costs associated with the Utility’s use of natural gas financial
instruments are gas costs recoverable through the PGA mechanism. As part of the settlements of the Utility’s 2005 and
2007 rate cases, the following modifications were made to Laclede Gas’ PGA Clause:
e Effective October 1, 2005, the tariffs allow the Utility flexibility to make up to three discretionary PGA changes
during each year, in addition to its mandatory November PGA change, so long as such changes are separated by at
least two months.
« Effective October 1, 2003, the Utility was authorized to implement the recovery of gas inventory carrying costs
through its PGA rates to recover costs it incurs to finance its investment in gas supplies that are purchased during
the storage injection season for sale during the heating season. The MoPSC also approved the application of
carrying costs to all over- or under-recoveries of gas costs, including costs and cost reductions associated with the
use of financial instruments. Previously, carrying costs were applicable only to certain gas cost components
exceeding a predetermined threshold.
o Inits 2002 rate case, the MoPSC approved a plan appllcable to the Utility’s gas supply commodity costs under
which it could retain up to 10% of cost savings associated with the acquisition of natural gas below an established
benchmark level of gas cost. This gas supply cost management program required that if Laclede Gas’ retention of
cost savings reached 35 million, the Utility would retain 1% of any remaining cost savings. The settlement of the
Utility’s 2005 rate case continued the plan, with certain modifications. The settlement of the Utility’s 2007 rate
case provides certain modifications to the plan, including a provision that allows the Utility to retain 10% of cost
savings, up to a maximum of $3,0 million annually, commencing October 1, 2007. The Utility recorded $0.6
million in pre-tax income under the plan in fiscal year 2008. Laclede Gas did not record any income under the plan
during fiscal years 2007 and 2006. Income recorded under the plan is included in the Regulated Gas Distribution
Operating Revenues on the Statements of Consolidated Income.
Pursuant to the provisions of the PGA Clause, the difference between actual costs incurred and costs recovered through
the application of the PGA (including costs and cost reductions associated with the use of financial instruments and gas
inventory carrying costs), amounts due to or from customers related to operation of the gas supply cost management
program, and carrying costs on such over-or under-recoveries are reflected as a deferred charge or credit until fiscal year
end. At that time, the balance is classified as a current asset or current liability and recovered from or credited to
customers over an annual period commencing in November. The balance in the current account is amortized as amounts
are reflected in customer billings. Effective October 1, 2007, the PGA Clause also provides for the treatment of income
from off-system sales and capacity release revenues, as described below.,

OFF-SYSTEM SALES - In conjunction with the settlement of the 2005 rate case, effective October 1, 2005, the
Utility retained all pre-tax income from off-system sales and capacity retease revenues up to $12 million annually. Pre-tax
amounts in excess of $12 million were shared with customers, with the Utility retaining 50% of amounts exceeding that
threshold. Pursuant to the settlement of the 2007 rate case, the pre-tax amounts in excess of $12 million to be shared with
customers resulting from amounts earned in fiscal years 2006 and 2007, totaling approximately $7 million, were flowed
back to customers over an annual period commencing in November 2007, In addition, the portion of pre-tax income to be
shared with customers was increased beginning October 1, 2007. The customer share of such income is determined in
accordance with the table below. The difference between the actual amount allocated to customers for each fiscal year and
the estimated amount assumed in PGA rates is recovered from or credited to customers over an annual period
commencing in the subsequent November.
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Pre-tax Income Customer Share Company Share

First $2 million 85% 15%
Next $2 million 80% 20%
Next $2 million ’ . 75% 25%
Amounts exceeding $6 million 70% 30%

INCOME TAXES - Laclede Group and its subsidiaries have elected, for tax purposes only, various accelerated
depreciation provisions of the Internal Revenue Code. In addition, certain other costs are expensed currently for tax
purposes while being deferred for book purposes. Effective October 1, 2007, generally accepted accounting principles
require that tax benefits be recognized in the financial statements as determined by new recognition and measurement
provisions. These provisions permit the benefit from a tax position to be recognized only if, and to the extent that, it is
more likely than not that the tax position will be sustained upon examination by the taxing authority, based on the
technical merits of the position. Unrecognized tax benefits and related interest and penalties, if any, are recorded as
liabilities or as a reduction to deferred tax assets. Laclede Group companies record deferred tax liabilities and assets
measured by enacted tax rates for the net tax effect of all temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities in the financial statements, and the related tax basis. Changes in enacted tax rates, if any, and certain
property basis differences will be reflected by entries to regulatory asset or regulatory liability accounts for regulated
companies, and will be reflected as income or loss for non-regulated companies.

Laclede Gas’ investment tax credits utilized prior to 1986 have been deferred and are bemg amortized in
accordance with regulatory treatment over the useful life of the related property.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - All highly liquid debt instruments purchased with original maturities of
three months or less are considered to be cash equivalents. Such instruments are carried at cost, which approximates
market value. .

EARNINGS PER COMMON SHARE - Basic earnings per common share is computed by dividing Net
Income by the weighted average number of shares outstanding for the period. Diluted earnings per common share reflects
the potential dilution that could occur if securities or other contracts to issue common stock were exercised or converted
into common stock. The only potentially dilutive securities the Company had outstanding at September 30, 2008, were
stock options and nonvested restricted stock and restricted stock units. The diluted weighted average shares outstanding,
as shown in Note 5, reflects the potential dilution as a result of these stock options and nonvested restricted stock/units as
determined using the Treasury Stock Method. Securities that are antidilutive are excluded from the calculation of diluted
earnings per share.

GOODWILL - The Company previously reported Goodwill separately on the Consolidated Balance Sheets, the
total of which was fully attributable to SM&P, and was included in the Non-Regulated Services operating segment.
During the quarter ended March 31, 2008, the Company sold 100% of its interest in SM&P, thereby reducing Goodwill to

_zero at March 31, 2008. Goodwill for prior periods has been reclassified in the Consolidated Balance Sheets and is
included in the Property and Investments of Discontinued Operations line. For further information on the sale of SM&P
see Note 2, Discontinued Operations.

GROSS RECEIPTS AND SALES TAXES - Gross receipts taxes associated with Laclede Gas’ natural gas
utility service are imposed on the Utility and billed to its customers. These amounts are recorded gross in the Statements
of Consolidated Income. Amounts recorded in Regulated Gas Distribution Operating Revenues were $52.5 million, $51.8
million, and $53.0 million for fiscal years 2008, 2007, and 2006, respectively. Gross receipts taxes are expensed by the
Utility and included in the Taxes, Other Than Income Taxes line.

Sales taxes imposed on applicable Company sales are billed to customers. These amounts are not recorded in the
Statements of Consolidated Income, but are recorded as tax collections payable and included in Other Current Liabilities
in the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

ALLOWANCES FOR DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS - Estimates of the collectibility of trade accounts
receivables are based on historical trends, age of receivables, economic conditions, credit risk of specific customers, and
other factors. The Utility’s provision for uncollectible accounts is dependent on the regulatory treatment provided for such
costs. The Utility was allowed to defer for future recovery uncollectible expenses associated with amendments to the Cold
Weather Rule for fiscal years 2006 and 2007, as approved by the MoPSC.

GROUP MEDICAL AND WORKERS’ COMPENSATION RESERVES - The Company self-insures its
group medical and workers’ compensation costs and carries stop-loss coverage in relation to medical claims and workers’
compensation claims. Reserves for amounts incurred but not reported are established based on historical cost levels and
lags between occurrences and reporting.
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STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION - The Laclede Group 2006 Equity [ncentive Plan (the 2006 Plan) was
approved at the annual meeting of shareholders of Laclede Group on January 26, 2006. The purpose of the 2006 Plan is to
encourage officers and employees of the Company and its subsidiaries to contribute to the Company’s success and align
their interests with that of sharehelders. To accomplish this purpose, the Compensation Committee of the Board of
Directors may grant awards under the 2006 Plan that may be earned by achieving performance objectives and/ar other
criteria as determined by the Compensation Committee. Under the terms of the 2006 Plan, officers and employees of the
Company and its subsidiaries, as determined by the Committee, are eligible to be selected for awards. The 2006 Plan
provides for restricted stock, restricted stock units, qualified and non-qualified stock options, stock appreciation rights,
and performance shares payable in stock, cash, or a combination of both. The 2006 Plan generally provides a minimum
vesting period of at least three years for each type of award. The maximum number of shares reserved for issuance under
the 2006 Plan is 1,250,000. The 2006 Plan replaced the Laclede Group Equity Incentive Plan (the 2003 Plan). Shares
reserved under the 2003 Plan, other than those needed for currently outstanding awards, were canceled upon shareholder
approval of the 2006 Plan. :

The Company’s Restricted Stock Plan for Non-Employee Directors was approved by shareholders in
January 2003. The principal purpose of the plan is to attract and retain qualified persons who are not employees or former
employees of the Company or any of its subsidiaries for service as members of the Board of Directors and to encourage
ownership in the Company by such non-employee directors by granting shares of common stock subject to restrictions.
Shares vest depending on the participant’s age upon entering the plan and years of service as a director. The total number
of shares of common stock that may be issued under the Restricted Stock Plan for Non-Employee Directors is 50,000.

The Company issues new shares to satisfy employee restricted stock awards and stock option exercises. Shares
for non-employee directors are purchased on the open market.

Restricted Stock Awards -

During fiscal year 2008, the Company awarded 74,100 shares of performance-contingent restricted stock to
executive officers at a weighted average grant date fair value of $29.32 per share. This number of shares represents the
maximum shares that can be earned pursuant to the terms of the awards. The shares were awarded on December 5, 2007
and have a performance period ending in September 2010, during which participants are entitled to receive full dividends
and voting rights on 49,400 of these shares based on the target level of performance. The number of shares that will
ultimately vest is dependent upon the attainment of certain levels of earnings and dividend growth performance goals;
further, under the terms of the award, the Compensation Committee (Committee) of the Board of Directors may reduce by
up to 50% the number of shares that vest if the Company’s total shareholder return {TSR) during the performance period
ranks in the bottom quartile relative to a comparator group of companies. This TSR provision is considered a market
condition under generally accepted accounting principles and is discussed further below.

During fiscal year 2008, the Company made a separate award of 15,000 shares of performance-contingent
restricted stock to an executive officer at a weighted average grant date fair value of $33.26 per share. This number of
shares represents the maximum shares that can be earned pursuant to the terms of the award. The shares were awarded on
December 5, 2007 and have a performance period ending in September 2009, during which the participant is entitled to
receive full dividends and voting rights on 10,000 of these shares based on the target level of performance. The number of
shares that will ultimately vest is dependent upon the attainment of certain business development performance metrics
and succession management objectives and is not subject to the aforementioned TSR provision.

The weighted average grant date fair value of performance-contingent restricted stock awarded during fiscal
years 2007 and 2006 was $34.95 and $30.46 per share, respectively.

Performance-contingent restricted stock activity for fiscal year 2008 is presented below:

Weighted
Average

_ Grant Date

Shares Fair Value
Nonvested at September 30, 2007 110,000 3 32.87
Granted 89,100 b 29.99
Vested — $ —
Forfeited i (20,000) $ 33.15
Nonvested at September 30, 2008 179,100 3 31.40
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During fiscal vear 2008, the Company awarded 23,250 shares of time-vested restricted stock to executives and
key employees at a weighted average grant date fair value of $34.25 per share. These shares were awardedon
December 5, 2007 and vest December 5, 2010. In the interim, participants receive full dividends and voting rights.

During fiscal year 2008, the Company made a special award of 15,000 time-vested restricted stock units to an
executive officer at a weighted average grant date fair value of $28.49 per share. Each restricted stock unit represents a
contingent right to receive one share of Laclede Group common stock. The units were awarded on February 14, 2008 and
vest December 1, 2011. The participant is required to retain the shares acquired upon vesting for twelve months from the
date of delivery of the shares. No dividends are paid or accrue during the vesting period. Furthermore, the participant has
no voting rights in the interim.

During fiscal year 2008, the Company awarded 12,500 shares of time-vested restricted stock to non-employee
directors at a weighted average grant date fair value of $33.77 per share. These shares were awarded on January 31, 2008,
The weighted average fair value of restricted stock awarded to non-employee directors during fiscal years 2007 and 2006
was $32.74 per share and $31.80 per share, respectively. These shares vest depending on the participant’s age upon
entering the plan and years of service as a director. The plan’s trustee acquires the shares for the awards in the open
market and holds the shares as trustee for the benefit of the non-employee directors until the restrictions expire. In the
interim, the participants receive full dividends and voting-rights.

Time-vested restricted stock and time-vested restricted stock unit activity for fiscal year 2008 is presented below:

Weighted

Average
Shares/ Grant Date
Units Fair Value

Nonvested at September 30, 2007 9,000 $ 3244

- . Granted : 50,750 5 3243
Vested : (2,900) 3 33.77
Forfeited _ — -5 —
Nonvested at September 30, 2008 56,850 $ 32.36

The total fair value of restricted stock vested during fiscal yeafs 2008, 2007, and 2006 was $98,000, $83,000,
and $87,000, respectively, and the related actual tax benefit realized was $38,000, $32,000, and $34,000, respectively.
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Stock Option Awards

No stock options were granted during fiscal year 2008. The weighted average fair value of stock options granted
during fiscal years 2007.and 2006 was $8.07 and $6.80 per option, respectwely
Stock option activity for fiscal year 2008 is presented below:

Weighted
Average
Weighted Remaining Aggregate
Average Contractua Intrinsic
Exercise Term Value
Shares Price {Years) . ($000)
Outstanding at September 30, 2007 617,100 $ 3004
Granted — $ _
Exercised (178,500) $ 28.05.
Forfeited (15,000) $ 30.88
Expired (7.750) § 31.14
Outstanding at September 30, 2008 415,850 § 3084 6.4 $ 7339
Fully Vested and Expected o Vest
at September 30, 2008 403,205 § 3079 6.4 § 7,138
Exercisable at September 30, 2008 235,225 $ 29.50 5.8 5 4467

Exercise prices of options outstanding at September 30, 2008 range from $23.27 to $34.95. During fiscal year
2008, cash received from the exercise of stock options was $5.0 million, the intrinsic vaiue of the options exercised was
$2.0 million and the related actual tax benefit realized was $0.8 million. During fiscal year 2007, cash received from the
exercise of stock options was $3.1 million, the intrinsic value of the options exercised was $0.8 million and the related
actual tax benefit realized was $0.3 million. During fiscal year 2006, cash received from the exercise of stock options was
$0.6 million, the intrinsic value of the options exetcised was $0.2 million and the related actual tax benefit realized was
$76,000.

The closing price of the Company’s common stock was $48.49 at September 30, 2008.

Equ1ty Compensation Costs

Compensation cost for performance-contingent restricted stock awards is based upon the probable outcome of
the performance conditions. For shares that do not vest or are not expected to vest due to the outcome of the performance
conditions, no compensation cost is recognized and any previously recognized compensation cost is reversed.

The fair value of awards of performance-contingent and time-vested restricted stock and restricted stock units,
not subject to the TSR provision, is estimated using the closing price of the Company’s stock on the date of the grant. For
those awards that do not pay dividends during the vesting period, the estimate of fair value is reduced by the present value
of the dividends expected to be paid on the Company’s common stock during the performance period, discounted using
an appropriate U.S. Treasury yield. For shares subject to the TSR provision, the estimated impact of this market condition
is reflected in the grant date fair value per share of the awards. Accordingly, compensation cost is not reversed to reflect
any actual reductions in the awards that may result from the TSR provision. However, if the Company’s TSR during the
performance period ranks in the bottom quartile relative to a comparator group of companies and the Committee elects
not to reduce the award (or reduce by a lesser amount), this election would be accounted for as a modification of the
original award and additional compensation cost would be recognized at that time. The grant date fair value per share of
the awards subject to the TSR provision awarded during fiscal year 2008 was valued by a Monte Carlo simulation model
that assessed the probabilities of various TSR outcomes. The significant assumptions used in the Monte Carlo simulation

are as follows:
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2008 2007 2006

Risk free interest rate - 2.89%  Notapplicable  Not applicable
Expected dividend yield of stock . —  Not applicable  Not applicable
Expected volatility of stock _ 2496%  Notapplicable  Not applicable
"Vesting period 2.8 years  Notapplicable  Not applicable

The risk free interest rate was based on the yield on U.S. Treasury securities matching the vesting period. The
expected volatility is based on the historical volatility of the Company’s stock. Volatility assumptions were also made for
each of the companies included in the comparator group. The vesting period is equal to the performance period set forth
in'the terms of the award.

The fair value of the options granted during fiscal years 2007 and 2006 was estimated at the date of grant using a
binomial option-pricing model based on the assumptions noted in the following table. Expected volatility was based on
the historical volatility of the Company’s stock. The risk-free rate was based on U.S. Treasury yields at the grant date.
The expected life of options was based on generalized expectations regarding the behavior of option holders since the
Company’s experience was not yet sufficient to develop an assumption specific to its employees.

2008 2007 2006
Risk free interest rate Not applicable 4.60% 4.60%
Expected dividend yield of stock Not applicable 4.20% 4.50%
Expected volatility of stock Not applicable 25.00% 25.00%
Expected life of option Not applicable 96 months 96 months

The amounts of compensation cost recognized for share-based compensation arrangements are presented below:

(Thousands) . 2008 2007 - 2006
Total compensation cost S 2,651 3 2401 § 1,550
Compensation cost capitalized (578) {524) (360)
Compensation cost recognized in net income 2,073 1,877 1,190
Income tax benefit recognized in net income ' (799) (725) (460)
Compensation cost recognized in net income, net of income tax  § 1,274 § 1,152 % 730

As of September 30, 2008, there was $3.9 million of total unrecognized compensation cost related to nonvested
share-based compensation arrangements. That cost is expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of 2.4
years. ,
NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS - In June 2006, the FASB issued FIN 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in
Income Taxes.” FIN 48 clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in an enterprise’s financial
statements in accordance with FASB Statement Na. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes.” Under FIN 48, the Company
may recognize the tax benefit from a tax position only if it is at least more likely than not that the tax position will be
sustained on examination by the taxing authorities, based on the technical merits of the position. The tax benefits
recognized in the financial statements from such a position should be measured based on the largest benefit that has a
greater than fifty percent likelihood of being realized upon settlement with the taxing authorities. FIN 48 also provides
guidance on derecognition, classification, interest and penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclosure, and transition.
The Company adopted the provisions of FIN 48 as of October 1, 2007. For details regarding the cumulative effect of
adoption and other pertinent information, see Note 12, Income Taxes.
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In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements.” This Statement defines fair
value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value in generally accepted accounting principles, and expands
disclosures about fair value measurements. The Statement applies to fair value measurements required under other
accounting guidance that require or permit fair value measurements. Accordingly, this Statement does not require any
new fair value measurements. The guidance in this Statement does not apply to the Company’s stock-based compensation
plans accounted for in accordance with SFAS No. 123(R), *Share-Based Payment.” Except as described below, SFAS
No. 157 is effective for the Company as of the beginning of fiscal year 2009. In February 2008, the FASB issued two
Staff Positions that amend SFAS No. 157. The first FASB Staff Position (FSP), No. FAS 157-1, excludes from the scope
of SFAS No. 157 accounting pronouncements that address fair value measurements for purposes of lease classification
and measurement. The second FSP, No. FAS 157-2, delays the effective date of SFAS No. 157 for nonfinancial assets
and nonfinancial liabilities, except for items that are recognized or disclosed at fair value in the financial statements on a
* recurring basis (at least annually). Application of SFAS No. 157 to these items will be effective for the Company as of the
beginning of fiscal year 2010. In October 2008, the FASB issued FSP No. FAS 157-3, which clarifies the application of
SFAS No. 157 in a market that is not active. The Company anticipates that the adoption of SFAS No. 157, as amended by
these Staff Positions, will not have a material impact on the Company’s financial position or results of operations. The
Company will, however, be required to provide additional disclosures on certain fair value measurements.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 158, “Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and
Other Postretirement Plans.” As discussed in Note 3, Pension Plans and Other Postretirement Benefits, Laclede Group
adopted the recognition and disclosure provisions of this Statement effective September 30, 2007. The Statement also
requires that plan assets and benefit obligations be measured as of the date of the employer’s fiscal year-end statement of
financial position, This requirement is effective for the Company as of the end of fiscal year 2009. In conjunction with
adoption of this provision of SFAS No. 158, the Company will be required to change its valuation date for its pension and
other postretirement plans from June 30 to September 30, Adoption will require certain adjustments to retained earnings
and other comprehensive income, the amounts of which are not yet known. However, the majority of these adjustments,
attributable to the Company’s qualified pension plans and other postretirement benefit plans, are expected to be deferred
with entries to regulatory assets. .

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, “The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities.” The Statement permits entities to choose to measure many financial instruments and certain other items at
fair value that are not currently required to be measured at fair value. SFAS No, 159 also establishes presentation and
disclosure requirements designed to facilitate comparisons between entities that choose different measurement attributes
for similar types of assets and liabilities. This Statement does not affect any existing accounting literature that requires
certain assets and liabilities to be carried at fair value, Upon adoption of SFAS No. 159, entities are permitted to choose,
at specified election dates, to measure eligible items at fair value (fair value option). Unrealized gains and losses on items
for which the fair value option has been elected are reported in eamings at each reporting date. The decision about
whether to elect the fair value option is applied instrument by instrument with few exceptions. The decision is also
irrevocable (unless a new election date occurs) and must be applied to entire instruments and not to portions of
instruments, SFAS No. 159 requires that cash flows related to items measured at fair value be classified in the statement
of cash flows according to their nature and purpose as required by SFAS No. 95, “Statement of Cash Flows” (as
amended). SFAS No. 159 is effective for the Company as of the beginning of fiscal year 2009. The Company does not
intend to elect the fair value option for any instruments not currently reported at fair value. Therefore, the adoption of this
Statement will have no effect on the Company’s financial position or results of operations.

In June 2007, the FASB ratified the consensus reached in Emerging [ssues Task Force (EITF) Issue No. 06-11,
“Accounting for Income Tax Benefits of Dividends on Share-Based Payment Awards.” This Issue addresses how an
entity should recognize the tax benefit received on dividends that are (a) paid to employees holding equity-classified
nonvested shares, equity-classified nonvested share units, or equity-classified outstanding share options and (b) charged
to retained earnings under SFAS No, 123(R). The Task Force reached a consensus that such tax benefits should be
recognized as an increase in additional paid-in capital. This EITF Issue also addresses how the accounting for these tax
benefits is affected if an entity’s estimate of forfeitures changes in subsequent periods. This EITF Issue is effective for
Laclede Group as of the beginning of fiscal year 2009. Adoption of this EITF issue will not have a material effect on the
Company's financial position or results of operations. '

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 160, “Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial
Statements.” This Statement amends Accounting Research Bulletin No. 51, “Consolidated Financial Statements.” A
noncontrolling interest, sometimes called a minority interest, is the portion of equity in a subsidiary not attributable,
directly or indirectly, to a parent. SFAS No. 160 clarifies that noncontrolling interests should be separately reported as
equity in the balance sheet. Additionally, SFAS No. 160 requires certain changes in presentation to income statements,
SFAS No. 160 also addresses accounting for changes in the parent’s ownership interest of a subsidiary, accounting for the
deconsolidation of a subsidiary, and disclosure requirements. This Statement is effective for Laclede Group as of the
beginning of fiscal year 2010. Currently, all of Laclede Group’s consolidated subsidiaries are wholly owned and therefore
adoption of this Statement will not have any effect on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.
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In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141 (revised 2007) (141(R)), “Business Combinations.” This
Statement revises SFAS No. 141 but retains the fundamental requirements in SFAS No. 141 that the acquisition method
(formerly known as purchase method) of accounting be used for all business combinations. SFAS No. 141(R) requires an
acquirer to recognize the assets acquired, the liabilities assumed, and any noncontrolling interest in the acquiree at the
acquisition date, measured at their fair values as of that date, with limited exceptions specified in the Statement. SFAS
141(R) requires acquisition-related costs to be accounted for separately instead of being allocated to the assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. SFAS No. 141(R) also amends the guidance related to the recognition of certain assets acquired
and liabilities assumed that relate to contingencies, research and development assets acquired that have no alternative
future use, and negative goodwill arising from a bargain purchase. Laclede Group is required to adopt SFAS No. 141(R)
prospectively to business combinations with acquisition dates on or after October 1, 2009 (fiscal 2010). Because this
Statement is only applicable to future business combinations, existing amounts reported on the Company’s consolidated
financial statements will not be impacted by adoption of this Statement.

In March 2008, the FASB issued SFAS No. 161, “Disclosures about Derivative Instruments and Hedging [
Activities.” This Staterment amends SFAS No. 133, by requiring enhanced disclosures about {(a) how and why an entity !
uses derivative instruments, (b) how derivative instruments and related hedged items are accounted for under Statement '
133 and its related interpretations, and (c) how derivative instruments and related hedged items affect an entity’s financial
position, financial performance, and cash flows. This Statement will be effective for the Company’s interim and annual
financial statements beginning in the second quarter of fiscal year 2009. This Statement encourages, but does not require,
comparative disclosures for earlier periods at initial adoption. The Company is currently evaluating the provisions of this
Statement.

In May 2008, the FASB issued SFAS No. 162, “The Hlerarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles.” i
SFAS No. 162 identifies the sources of accounting principles and the framework for selecting principles to be used in the
preparation and presentation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. This
statement will be effective in the first quarter of fiscal 2009. The adoption of SFAS No. 162 will not have any effect on
the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

In May 2008, the FASB issued SFAS No. 163, “Accounting for Financial Guarantee Insurance Contracts-an
interpretation of FASB Statement No. 60.” This Statement provides clarification to the guidance in SFAS No. 60,
“Accounting and Reporting by Insurance Enterprises,” and expands disclosure requirements. This Statement is effective
for Laclede Group as of the beginning of fiscal year 2010. Because SFAS No. 163 is primarily applicable to insurance
enterprises that issue financial guarantee insurance contracts, the adoption of this Statement will have no effect on the
Company’s consolidated financial statements.

In June 2008, the FASB issued FSP No. EITF 03-6-1, “Determining Whether Instruments Granted in Share-
Based Payment Transactions Are Participating Securities.” Thns FSP addresses whether instruments granted in share-
based payment transactions are participating securities prior to vesting and, therefore, need to be included in the eamings
allocation in computing earnings per share (EPS) under the two-class method described by SFAS No. 128, “Earnings per
Share.” The guidance in this FSP states that unvested share-based payment awards that contain nonforfeitable rights to
dividends or dividend equivalents (whether paid or unpaid) are participating securities and shall be included in the
computation of EPS pursuant to the two-class method. This FSP is effective for Laclede Group as of the beginning of
fiscal year 2010. The FSP requires that the guidance be applied retrospectively to all prior-period EPS data presented. The
Company is currently assessing the potential impact of this FSP on its EPS calculations.

2. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

On March 31, 2008, the Company completed the sale of 100% of its interest in its wholly-owned subsidiary,

SM&P, to Stripe Acquisition, Inc. (an affiliate of Kohiberg Management V1, LLC) for $85 million in cash, subject to !
certain closing and post-closing adjustments. SM&P is an underground facilities locating and marking business that
comprised Laclede Group’s Non-Regulated Services operating segment. The sales agreement included representations,
warranties, and indemnification provisions customary for such transactions and was fited as an exhibit to the

March 31, 2008 Form 10-Q. For information concerning Laclede Group’s obligations under these provisions, see

Note 15, Commitments and Contingencies.

In accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, the operating results of SM&P have been
aggregated and reported on the Statements of Consolidated Income as Income from Discontinued Operations, Net of
Income Tax. The Company has reported in discontinued operations interest expense based on amounts previously
recorded by SM&P. Discontinued operations includes pre-tax interest expense of $1.6 million for fiscal year 2008 and
$3.3 million per year for fiscal years 2007 and 2006. Discontinued operations does not include general corporate overhead
expense. Income from Discontinued Operations reported in the Statements of Consolidated Income consists of the
following:



(Thousands) . 2008 2007 2006

Operating revenues $ 65423 $ 165733 $ - 162,523
Income (loss) from operations . (9,434) 6,916 5,408 .
Gain on disposal 44,401 — —
Pre-tax income 34,967 6,916 5,408
Income tax expense . 14,571 2,889 2,260
Income from Discontinued Operations $  2039% § 4,027 3 3,142

The assets and liabilities of SM&P have been segregated from continuing operations and have been reported as
assets or liabilities of discontinued operations on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. Assets and liabilities of SM&P
reported in the Consolidated Balance Sheets as discontinued operations consist of the following:

Sept. 30, -
(Thousands) 2007
Assets )
Property and Investments:
Goodwill 5 33,595
Property, plant and equipment — net 7,204
Other investments 1,802
Total Property and Investments 42,601
Current Assets:
Accounts receivable — net 28,816
Other 1,940
Total Current Assets 30,756
Total Assets - 8 73,357
Liabilities )
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable 3 1,720
Wages and compensation accrued 3,950
Other 10,060
Total Current Liabilities 21,730
Deferred credits and other liabilities 3,118
Total Liabilities 5 24,848

Cash flows from SM&P’s operations were not material.
3. PENSION PLANS AND OTHER POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS

In September 2007, the Company adopted SFAS No. 158. This Statement amended FASB Statements No. 87,
“Employers’ Accounting for Pensions,” No. 88, “Employers’ Accounting for Settlements and Curtailments of Defined
Benefit Pension Plans and for Termination Benefits,” No. 106, “Employers’ Accounting for Postretirement Benefits
Other Than Pensions,” and No. 132 {revised 2003), “Employers’ Disclosure About Pensions and Other Postretirement
Benefits.” Staternent No. 158 requires an employer to recognize the overfunded or underfunded status of a defined benefit
postretirement plan as an asset or liability in its statement of financial position. Prior accounting standards allowed an
employer to delay recognition of certain economic events that affected the costs of providing postretirement benefits and
to disclose the overfunded or underfunded status of a plan.in the notes to the financial statements. This Statement
eliminated the delayed recognition of actuarial gains and losses and prior service costs and credits that arise during the
period and requires employers to recognize these items as components of other comprehensive income, net of tax.
Additional minimum pension liabilities.and related intangible assets were derecognized upon adoption of this Statement.
The Statement also requires that plan assets and benefit obligations be measured as of the date of the employer’s fiscal
year-end statement of financial position. This requirement will be effective for the Company as of the end of fiscal year
2009. The Company currently uses a June 30 valuation date for its benefit plans.
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For the Ultility, the amount of expense recognized and the amounts reflected in other comprehensive income are
dependent upon the regulatory treatment provided for such costs. Accordingly, consistent with SFAS No. 71, the impact
of adoption of SFAS No. 158 on accumulated other comprehensive income for the Utility’s qualified pension plans and
postretirement benefit plans was deferred with entries to Regulatory Assets.

The incremental effects of adoption of SFAS No. 158 on individual line items of the Consolidated Balance Sheet
at September 30, 2007 were as follows:

Prior to After
SFAS No. 158 SFAS No. 158

{Thousands) Adoption Adjustments Adoption
Deferred Charges:

Prepaid pension cost h) 51,962 $ (51,962) $ —

Regulatory assets 190,254 54,800 285,054

Other : 5,192 (523) 4,669
Cominon stock equity: ) '

Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) * 2,981 (1,124) 1,857
Current Liabilities:

Other ' 5,056 700 T 5,756
Deferred Credits and Other Liabilities:

Deferred income taxes 224,458 (708) 223,750

Pension and postretirement benelit cosis ] 20,231 43,447 63,678

* Appears on the Statements of Consolidated Capitalization

Pension Plans

Laclede Gas has non-contributory defined benefit, trusteed forms of pension plans covering substantially all
employees. Benefits are based on years of service and the participant’s compensation during the highest three years of the
last ten years of employment. Plan assets consist primarily of corporate and U.S. government obligations and pooled
equity funds.

Pension costs in 2008, 2007, and 2006 amounted to $6.1, $5.5, and $5.4 million, respectively, including amounts
charged to construction.

The net periodic pension costs include the following components:

(Thousands) 2008 2007 2006

Service cost — benefits earned during the period $ 12,970 $ 12,422 $ 14,761

Interest cost on projected benefit obligation ’ 18,680 17,929 16,704

Expected return on plan assets (20,650) (20,295) (20,782)

Amortization of prior service cost 1,088 1,143 1,175 |
Amortization of actuarial loss 3,165 3,673 6,912 |
Sub-total _ 15,253 14,872 18,770 |
Loss on lump-sum settlement . — 803 —

Regulatory adjustment (9,120) (10,131) (13.417) |
Net pepsion cost S 6,133 3 5,544 $ 5,353 J
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Other changes in plan assets and pension benefit obhgatlons recognized in Other Comprehensive Income during
ﬁscal year 2008 include the following:

{Thousands) 2008
Current year actuarial loss 3 18,050
Amortization of actuarial loss {3,165)
Amontization of prior service cost (1,088)
Sub-total 13,797
Regulatory adjustment (13.697)
Total recognized in other comi:rehensive income $ 100

Changes in the minimum pension liability resulted in credits to Other Comprehensive Income of $0.4 million in
fiscal year 2007 and $3.6 million in fiscal year 2006, excluding the effect of regulatory treatment. After the effect of
regulatory treatment, credils recognized in other comprehensive income for fiscal years 2007 and 2006 were $0.4 million
and $0.5 million, respectively.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Laclede Gas pension plans, pension obligations may be satisfied by lump-sum
cash payments. Pursuant to a MoPSC Order, lump-sum payments are recognized as settlements (which can result in gains
or losses) only if the total of such payments exceeds 100% of the sum of service and interest costs. No lump-sum
payments were recognized as settlements during fiscal year 2008. Lump-sum payments recognized as settlements during
fiscal year 2007 were $3.0 million. No lump-sum payments were recognized as settlements in fiscal year 2006.

Pursuant to a MoPSC Order, the return on plan assets is based on the market-reiated value of plan agsets
implemented prospectwely over a four-year period. Gains or losses not yet includible in pension cost are amortized only
to the extent that such gain or loss exceeds 10% of the greater of the projected benefit obligation or the market-related
value of plan assets. Such excess is amortized over the average remaining service life of active participants. The recovery
in rates for the Utility’s qualified pension plans is based on an allowance of $4.1 million annually effective
October 1, 2005 and $4.8 million annually effective August 1, 2007. The difference between this amount and pension
expense as calculated pursuant to the above and that otherwise would be included in the Statements of Consolidated
Income and Consoljdated Comprehensive Income is deferred as a regulatory asset or regulatory liability.

The following table sets forth the reconciliation of the begmnmg and ending balances of the pension benefit
obligation at September 30:

(Thousands} 2008 2007
Benefit obligation at beginning of year $ 293265 § 282,060
Service cost 12,970 12,422
Interest cost 18,680 17,929
Actuarial (gain) loss (19) 1,407
Gross benefits paid * - {16,160) (20,553)
Benefit obligation at end of year . $§ 308,736 § 293,265
Accumulated benefit obligation at end of year | 5 238,769 3 231,719

* Includes $-(3,021) in lump-sum payments recognized as settlements in fiscal year 2007,
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. The following table sets forth the reconciliation of the beginning and ending balances of the fair value of plan
assets at September 30:

| (Thousands) ] 2008 - 2007
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year $ 260280 § 246,136
Actual return on plan assets 2,581 33,515
) Employer contributions : 1,645 1,182
| Gross benefits paid * (16,160) {20,553)
! Fair value of plan assets at end of year $ 248346 § 260,280
Funded status of plans b (60,390) § (32,985)
Fourth quarter contribution adjustment 56 261
Funded status, end of vear $ (60,334) § (32,724)

* Includes $(3,021) in lump-sum payments recognized as settlements in fiscal year 2007.

The following table sets forth the amounts recognized in the Consolidated Balance Sheet at September 30:

{Thousands) 2008 2007
Noncurrent assets $ S —
Current liabilities : (1,460) (400)
Noncurrent liabilities . : {58,874) (32,324)
Total b (60,334) § (32,724)

Pre-tax amounts recognized in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income
not yet recognized as companents of net periodic pension cost consist of:

Net actuarial loss S 82371 % ° 67486

Prior service costs 11,244 12,332
Sub-total . 93,615 79,818

Adjustments for amounts included in Regulatory Assets (90,701} {77,004)
Total £ 2914 § 2,814

At September 30, 2008, the following pre-tax amounts are expected to be amortized from Accumulated Other
Comprehensive Income into net periodic pension cost during fiscal year 2009

{Thousands)

Amortization of net actuarial loss $ 3,096

Amortization of prior service cost 1,035
Sub-total ) 4,131

Reguiatory adjustment (3.932)
Total ) ’ py 199

A ———
’

The pension benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets are based on a June 30 measurement date.
The assumptions used to calculate net periodic pension costs are as follows:

2008 2007 2006
Weighted average discount rate 6.25% 6.25% 5.00%
Weighted average rate of future compensation increase 3.50% 3.50% ' 3.00%
Expected long-term rate of return on plan assets 8.25% 8.25% 8.25%

N
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The weighted average discount rate is based on long-term, high quality bond indices at the measurement date.
The expected long-term rate of return on plan-assets is based on historical and projected rates of return for current and
planned asset classes in the investment portfolio. Assumed projected rates of return for each asset class were selected after
analyzing historical experience and future expectations of the returns. The overall expected rate of return for the portfolio
was developed based on the target allocation for each class. The expected return is a long-term assumption that generally
does not change annualty.

The assumptions used to calculate the benefit obligations are as follows:

2008 2007
Weighted average discount rate 6.60% 6.25%
Weighted average rate of future compensation increase 3.75% 3.50%

Following are the projected benefit obligation, accumulated benefit abligation, and fair value of plan assets for
plans that have a projected benefit obligation and an accumulated benefit obligation in excess of plan assets:

(Thousands) 2008 2007

Projected benefit obligation 8 308,736 3% 293,265
Fair value of plan assets 248,346 260,280
Accumulated benefit obligation . 24,938 24,431
Fair value of plan assets 12,727 12,795

Following are the targeted and actual plan assets by category:

C2009 - 2008 2007
Target Actual Actual
Equity Securities 50% - 46% T 50%
Debt Securities 50% 54% 50%
Total 100% 100% 100%

Laclede Gas’ investment policy is designed to preserve, to the extent possible, the current funded status of the
plan and minimize contributions to the trusts. The policy seeks to maximize investment returns consistent with these
objectives and Laclede Gas’ tolerance for risk. Outside investment management specialists are utilized in each asset class.
Such specialists are provided with guidelines, where appropriate, designed to ensure that the investment portfolio is
managed in accordance with the policy. Performance and compliance with the guidelines is regularly monitored. Laclede
Gas generally rebalances plan assets quarterly if the actual allocation deviates from the target allocation by more than 2%.

Foltowing are expected pension benefit payments for the succeeding five fiscal years, and in aggregate for the
five years thereafter: :

Pensions from

Pensions from Laclede Gas
(Millions) Qualified Trust Funds
2009 -5 147 $ 15
2010 14.7 1.3 ‘
2011 16.7 1.8
2012 - 184 1.0
2013 22.8 0.8
2014 - 2018 182.4 2.7

The funding policy of Laclede Gas is to contribute an amount not less than the minimum required by
government funding standards, nor more than the maximum deductible amount for federal income tax purposes.
Contributions to the pension plans in fiscal year 2009 are anticipated to be $2.2 million into the qualified trusts, and $1.5
million into the non-qualified plans.
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Postretirement Benefits ' |

Laciede Gias provides certain life insurance benefits at retirement. Medical insurance is available after early
retirement until age 65. The Iransition obligation not yet includible in postretirement benefit cost is being amortized over
20 years. Postretirement benefit costs in 2008, 2007, and 2006 amounted to $7.6 million, $7.8 million, and $8.% million,
respectively, including amounts charged to construction, .

Net pertodic postretirement benefit costs consisted of the following components:

{Thousands) . 2008 2007 2006
Service cost - benefits eamed during the period $ 4560 % 4063 % 3,985
Interest cost on accumulated postretirement ’
benefit obligation 3909 3,599 2,959
Expected return on plan assets ) - (2,039) (1,723} (1,358)
Amortization of transition obligation 136 136 327
Amortization of prior service cost (2,328) (2,328) (36)
Amortization of actuarial loss . : . 2,985 3,245 1,273
Sub-total ’ 7,223 6,992 7,150
Regulatory adjustment 419 851 1,713
Net postretirement benefit cost £ 7,642 ° § 7,843 $ 8,863

Other changes in plan assets and postretirement benefit obligations recognized in Other Comprehensive Income
during fiscal year 2008 include the following:

(Thousands) 2008
Current year actuarial loss $ 9,772
Amortization of actuarial loss (2,985)
Amortization of prior service credit 2,328
Amortization of transition obligation ' (136)
Sub-total ) 8,979
Regulatory adjustment (8,979)
Total recognized in other comprehensive income $ —

Pursuant to the Commission’s Qrder in the Utility’s 2002 rate case and affirmed in the 2005 and 2007 rate cases,
the return on plan assets is based on the market-related value of plan assets implemented prospectively over a four-year
period. Gains and lossés not yet includible in postretirement benefit cost are amortized only to the extent that such gain or
loss exceeds 10% of the greater of the accumulated postretirement benefit obligation or the market-related value of plan
assets.-Such excess is amortized over the average remaining service life of active participants. Also in the 2002 and 2005
rate cases, the Commission ordered that the recovery in rates for the postretirement benefit costs be based on the
accounting methodology as ordered in the 1999 rate case, which based the amortization of gains and losses on a five-year
average of gains and losses. The difference between this amount and postretirement benefit expense as calculated
pursuant to the above was deferred as a regulatory asset or regulatory liability. In the 2007 rate case, the Commission
recognized that the recovery in rates is based on an annual allowance of $7.6 million, effective August 1, 2007. The
difference between this amount and postretirement benefit cost based on the above and that otherwise would be included
in the Statements of Consolidated Income and Consolidated Comprehensive Income is deferred as a regulatory asset or
regulatory liability.
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The following table sets forth the reconciliation of the beginning and ending balances of the postretirement

benefit obligation at September 30:

{Thousands) 2008 2007
Benefit obligation at beginning of year 3 60,111 % 55,584
Service cost . 4,560 4,063
Interest cost 3,909 3,599
Actuarial loss 6,356 1,551
Gross benefits paid (5,222) (4,686)
Benefit obligation at end of year $ 69,714 § 60,111

The following table sets forth the reconciliation of the beginning and ending balances of the fair value of plan

assets at September 30:

(Thousands) 2008 2007

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year 3 24997 % 21,179
Actual retun on plan assets (1,378) 2,947
Employer contributions 7,685 5,557
Gross benefits paid ) (5,222) (4,686)
Fair value of plan assets at end of year $ 26,082 § 24,997
Funded status of plans ’ $ (43,632) % (35,114}
Fourth quarter contribution adjustment 4,068 3,460
Funded status, end of year $ (39,564} § (31,654)

The following table sets forth the amounts recognized in the Consolidated Balance Sheet at September 30:

(Thousands) 2008 2007
Noncurrent assets . $ — 5 —
Current liabilities (300) (300)
Norncurrent liabilities (39,264) (31,354)
Total 3 (39,564) § (31.654)

Pre-tax amounts recognized in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income
not yet recognized as components of net periodic postretirement cost

consist of:
Net actuarial loss $ 39957 % 33,170
Prior service credit (9,660) (11,988)
Transition obligation 671 807
Sub-total 30,968 21,989
Adjustments for amounts included in Regulatory Assets {30,968) {21,989)
Total $ — —

At September 30, 2008, the foliowing pre-tax amounts are expected to be amortized from Accumulated Other

Comprehensive Income into net periodic postretirement benefit cost during fiscal year 2009:

(Thousands)

Amortization of net actuarial loss 3 3,509

Amortization of prior service credit (2,328)

Amortization of transition obligation . 136
Sub-total 1,317

Regulatory adjustment (1,317}
Total _ b —_—
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The accumnulated postretirement benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets are based on a June 30
measurement date.

The assumptions used to calcuiate net periodic postretirement benefit costs are as follows:

2008 2007 2006
Weighted average discount rate 6.25% 6.25% 5.00%
Weighted average rate of future compensation increase 3.50% 3.50% 3.00%
Expected long-term rate of return on plan assets B.25% 8.25% 8.25%

The weighted average discount rate is based on long-term, high quality bond indices at the measurement date,
The expected long-term rate of return on plan assets is based on historical and projected rates of return for current and
planned asset classes in the investment portfolio. Assumed projected rates of return for each asset class were selected after
analyzing historical experience and future expectations of the returns, The overall expected rate of return for the portfolio
was developed based on the target allocation for each class. The expected return is a long-term assumption that generally
does not change annually.

The assumptions used to calculate the accurmulated postretirement benefit obligations are as follows:

2008 _2007
Weighted average discount rate : 6.35% 6.25%
Weighted average rate of future compensation increase 3.75% 3.50%
The assumed medical cost trend rates at September 30 are as follows:

2008 2007 .
Medical cost trend assumed for next year 8.50% 8.00%
Rate to which the medical cost trend rate is assumed to decline

(the ultimate medical cost trend rate) 5.00% 5.00%

Year that the rate reaches the ultimate trend 2016 2011

The following table presents the effect of an assumed 1% change in the assumed medical cost trend rate:

(Thousands) 1% Increase 1% Decrease
Effect on net periodic postretirement benefit cost . h3 790 -] (700)
Effect on accumulated postretirement benefit obligation 3,570 (3,240)

Following are the tai'geted and actual plan assets by category:

2009 2008 2007
Target Actual Actual
Equity Securities 60% . 54% 58%
Debt Securities 40% 46% 42%
Total 100% 100% 100%

Missouri state law provides for the recovery in rates of SFAS No. 106 accrued costs provided that such costs are
funded through an independent, external funding mechanism, Laclede Gas established Voluntary Employees’ Beneficiary
Association and Rabbi trusts as its external funding mechanisms. Laclede Gas’ investment policy seeks to maximize
investment returns consistent with Laclede Gas’ tolerance for risk. Outside investment management specialists are
utilized in each asset class. Such specialists are provided with guidelines, where appropriate, designed to ensure that the
investment portfolio is managed in accordance with policy. Performance and compliance with the guidelines is regularly
monitored, Laclede Gas’ current investment policy targets an asset allocation of 60% to equity securities and 40% to debt
securities, excluding cash held in short-term debt securities for the purpose of making benefit payments. Laclede Gas
currently invests in a mutual fund which is rebalanced on an ongoing basis to the target allocation.
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Following are expected postretirement benefit payments for the succeeding five fiscal years, and in aggregate for
the five years thereafter:

. Benefits Paid Benefits Paid
from from Laclede Gas
(Millions) Qualified Trust Funds
2009 $ 46 $ 03
2010 4.8 0.3
2011 4.9 0.3
2012 _ 5.0 0.3
2013 53 0.3
2014 -2018 34.5 18

Laclede Gas’ funding policy is to contribute amounis to the trusts equal to the periodic benefit cost calculated
pursuant to SFAS No. 106 as recovered in rates. Contributions to the postretirement plans in fiscal year 2009 are
anticipated to be $9.7 million to the qualified trusts, and $0.4 million paid directly to participants from Laclede Gas funds.

Other Plans
Laclede Gas sponsors 401(k) plans that cover substantially all employees. The plans allow employees to
contribute a portion of their base pay in acéordance with specific guidelines. Laclede Gas provides a match of such

contributions within specific limits. The cost of the defined contribution plans of Laclede Gas amounted to $3.1 million,
$3.0 million, and $3.0 miltion for fiscal years 2008, 2007, and 2006, respectively.
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4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

In the course of its business, Laclede Group’s non-regulated gas marketing affiliate, LER, enters into fixed-price
commitments associated with the purchase or sale of natural gas. LER manages the price risk associated with these
commitments by either closely matching the offsetting physical purchase or sale of natural gas at fixed prices or through
the use of exchange-traded futures contracts to lock in margins. At September 30, 2008, LER’s unmatched positions were

not material to Laclede Group’s financial position or results of operations.

Settled and open exchange-traded futures positions were as follows at September 30, 2008:

Average
MMBtu Price per
Position Month {millions) MMBtu
Settled short positions October 2008 1.56 § 9.32
Settled long positions October 2008 0.52 7.75
Open short futures positions November 2008 1.39 9.39
December 2008 0.79 9.47
January 2009 0.31 .76
February 2009 0.31 9.74
March 2009 0.27 9.69
April 2009 0.71 8.80
May 2009 0.02 8.11
June 2009 0.08 8.13
November 2009 0.10 8.80
December 2009 0.15 8.83
January 2010 0.15 8.83
February 2010 0.15 8.83
March 2010 0.10 8.80
Open long futures positions November 2008 0.40 8.24
December 2008 0.15 9.04
January 2009 0.11 10.00
February 2009 0.11 10.00
March 2009 0.11 10.00
April 2009 0.41 9.22
May 2009 0.11 10.00

The above futures contracts are derivative instruments, and management has designated these items as cash flow
hedges of forecasted transactions. The fair values of the instruments are recognized on the Consolidated Balance Sheets.
The change in the fair value of the effective portion of these hedge instruments is recorded, net of tax, in Other
Comprehensive Income. Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income is a component of Total Common Stock Equity.
These amounts will reduce or be charged to Non-Regulated Gas Marketing Operating Revenues or Expenses in the
Statements of Consolidated Income as the hedged transactions occur. Based on market prices at September 30, 2008, it is
expected that approximately $8.3 million of pre-tax unrealized gains will be reclassified into the Consolidated Statement
of Income during fiscal year 2009. The ineffective portions of these hedge instruments are charged or credited to Non-
Regulated Gas Marketing Operating Revenues or Expenses. The net amount of pre-tax (losses) gains recognized in
earnings for the ineffective portion of cash flow hedges was $(2.8) million, $(0.5) million, and $0.7 million for fiscal
years 2008, 2007, and 2006, respectively. These losses and gains were primarily due to price volatility and regional
supply/demand imbalances. Cash flows from hedging transactions are classified in the same category as the cash flows
from the items that are being hedged in the Statements of Consolidated Cash Fiows.

68




5. EARNINGS PER SHARE OF COMMON STOCK

SFAS No. 128 requires dual presentation of basic and diluted EPS. Basic EPS does not include potentiaily
dilutive securities and is computed by dividing net income by the weighted average number of common shares
outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS assumes the issuance of common shares pursuant to the Company’s stock-
based compensation plans at the beginning of each respective period, or at the date of grant or award, if later. Shares
attributable to stock options and time-vested restricted stock/units are excluded from the calculation of diluted earnings
per share if the effect would be antidilutive. For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2008 no shares attributable to
antidilutive outstanding stock options were excluded from the calculation of diluted earnings per share. For the fiscal
years ended September 30, 2007, and 2006, 107,500, and 100,500 shares, respectively, attributable to antidilutive
outstanding stock options were excluded from the calculation of diluted eamings per share. Performance-contingent
restricted stock awards are only included in the calculation of diluted earnings per share to the extent the underlying
performance cenditions are satisfied (a) prior to the end of the reporting period or (b) would be satisfied if the end of the
reporting period were the end of the related contingency period and the result would be dilutive. For the years ended
September 30, 2008, 2007, and 2006, 136,100, 110,000, and 51,000 shares, respectively, of nonvested performance-
contingent restricted stock were excluded from the calculation of diluted earnings per share.

(Thousands, Except Per Share Amounts) 2008 2007 2006
Basic EPS:
Income from Continuing Operations ) $ 57,526 3 45,744 3 45,847 -
Weighted Average Shares Outstanding 21,657 21,455 21,247
Eamings Per Share of Common Stock from

Continuing Operations 3 266 % 2.13 3 2.16

Diluted EPS:

Income from Continuing Operations . $ 57,526 3 45,744 3 45,847
Weighted Average Shares Qutstanding 21,657 21,455 21,247
Dilutive Effect of Stock Options

and Restricted Stock/Units ’ 106 48 39
Weighted Average Diluted Shares 21,763 21,503 21,286

Earnings Per Share of Common Stock from
Continuing Operations b 264 % 2.12 3 2.15

6. COMMON STOCK AND PAID-IN CAPITAL

Total shares of common stock outstanding were 21.99 million and 21.65 million at September 30, 2008 and
2007, respectively,

Common stock and paid-in capital increased $11.5 million in fiscal year 2008, The issuance of 106,436 common
shares under the Dividend Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan increased common stock and paid-in capital by $3.8
million. The remaining $7.7 million increase was primarily due to stock-based compensation costs and the issuance of
241,400 shares of common stock under the Equity Incentive Plan. Common stock and paid-in capital increased $9.2
million in fiscal year 2007. The issuance of 116,973 common shares issued under the Dividend Reinvestment and Stock
Purchase Plan increased common stock and paid-in capital by $3.8 million. The remaining $5.4 million increase was
primarily due to stock-based compensation costs and the issuance of 167,025 shares of common stock under the Equity
Incentive Plan.
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On August 23, 2001, Laclede Group declared a dividend of one preferred share purchase right for each
outstanding share of common stock. Each preferred share purchase right entitles the registered holder to purchase from
Laclede Group one one-hundredth of Series A junior participating preferred stock for a purchase price of $90, subject to
adjustment. The value of one one-hundredth of a preferred share purchasable upon the exercise of each right should,
because of the nature of the preferred shares’ dividend, liquidation and voting rights, approximate the value of one
common share. The rights expire on October 1, 2011 and may be redeemed by Laclede Group for one cent each at any
time before they become exercisable. The rights will not be exercisable or transferable apart from the common stock until
ten business days after (i) public announcement that a person or group has acquired beneficial ownership of 20% or more
of the common stock, or (i1) commencement of, or announcement of an intention to make, a tender or exchange offer for
beneficial ownership of 20% or more of the common stock. Following such an event, a right will entitle its holder to
purchase, for the purchase price, the number of shares equal to the purchase price divided by one-half of the market price.
Alternatively, Laclede Group may exchange each right for one one-hundredth of a preferred share. The number of rights
outstanding is the same as the number of shares of common stock outstanding on any date prior to rights becoming
exercisable or transferable apart from the common stock.

Laclede Group has on file a shelf registration on Form S-3, which allows for the issuance of equity securities,
other than preferred stock, and debt securities. Of the $500 million of securities originally registered under this Form S-3,
$362.4 million remain registered and unissued as of September 30, 2008. The amount, timing and type of additional
financing to be issued under this shelf registration will depend on cash requirements and market conditions.

7. LACLEDE GAS REDEEMABLE PREFERRED STOCK

Laclede Gas preferred stock, which is non-voting except in certain circumstances, may be redeemed at the option
of the Laclede Gas Board of Directors. The redemption price is equal to par of $25.00 per share.

During 2008, 6,400 shares of 5% Series B preferred stock were called to meet sinking fund requirements. Dunng
2007, 6,351 shares of 5% Series B preferred stock were called to meet sinking fund requirements.

Any default in a sinking fund payment must be cured before Laclede (Gas may pay dividends on or acquire any
common stock. Sinking fund requirements on preferred stock for the next five years subsequent to September 30, 2008
are $0.2 miilion per year in 2009 through 2011, and none in 2012 and 2013.

8. LONG-TERM DEBT

Maturities on long-term debt, including current portion, for the five fiscai years subsequent to
September 30, 2008 are as follows: :

2009 —
2010 —
2011 $25 million
2012 —
2013 $25 million

On November 1, 2007, Laclede Gas paid at maturity $40 million principal amount of 7 1/2% First Mortgage
Bonds. This maturity was funded through short-term borrowings.
On September 23, 2008, Laclede Gas issued $80 million of First Mortgage Bonds, due October 15, 2038, at an
interest rate of 6.35%. The bonds are callable at par at the Utility’s option on or after October 15, 2013. ;
At September 30, 2008, Laclede Gas had fixed-rate long-term debt totaling $390 million. While these long-term 1
debt issues are fixed-rate, they are subject to changes in fair value as market interest rates change. However, increases or *‘
|
\
\

decreases in fair value would impact eamings and cash flows only if Laclede Gas were to reacquire any of these issues in
the open market prior to maturity.

Laclede Gas has on file with the SEC an effective shelf registration on Form $-3 for issuance of $350 million of
securities, $270 million of which remains available to Laclede (Gas at this time. The Utility has authority from the MoPSC
to issue up to $500 million in First Mortgage Bonds, unsecured debt, and equity securities, of which $412.4 million
remained under this authorization as of September 30, 2008. The amount, timing, and type of additional financing to be
issued will depend on cash requirements and market conditions.
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Substantially all of the utility plant of Laclede Gas is subject to the liens of its mortgage. The mortgage contains
several restrictions on Laclede Gas’ ability to pay cash dividends on its common stock. These provisions are applicable
regardless of whether the stock is publicly held or, as has been the case since the formation of Laclede Group, held solety
by the Utility’s parent company. Under the most restrictive of these provisions, no cash dividend may be declared or paid
if, after the dividend, the aggregate net amount spent for all dividends after September 30, 1953, would exceed a
maximum amount determined by a formula set out in the mortgage. Under that formula, the maximum amount is the sum
of $8 million plus earnings applicable to common stock (adjusted for stock repurchases and issuances) for the period from
September 30, 1953, to the last day of the quarter before the declaration or payment date for the dividends. As of
September 30, 2008 and 2007, the amount under the mortgage’s formula that was available to pay dividends was $273
million and $263 million, respectively. Thus, all of the Utility’s retained earmings were free from such restrictions as of
those dates.

On May 5, 2008, Laclede Group redeemed in fiill its $46.4 million subordinated debentures, which also triggered
the redemption of all of the Trust common and preferred securities on the same date. Interest on the debentures and
distributions on the Trust securities ceased on and after the redemption date. Upon redemption, Laclede Group recognized
a pre-tax loss of $1.4 million, primarily attributable to unamortized issuance costs. A portion of the proceeds received
from the sale of SM&P was used to fund the redemption, The Trust was dissolved on June 16, 2008.

9. NOTES PAYABLE AND CREDIT AGREEMENTS

Throughout fiscal year 2008, Laclede Gas had a line of credit in place of $320 million, which expires in
December 2011. In November 2007, the Utility established a seasonal line of credit of $40 million, which expired in
March 2008. Subsequent to the end of fiscal year 2008, Laclede Gas established a seasonal line of credit of $75 million,
expiring in March 2009. ’

Laclede Gas issues commercial paper that is supported by the bank lines of credit. During fiscal year 2008, the
Utility’s short-term borrowing requirements, which peaked at $328.8 million, were generally met by the sale of
commercial paper. However, due to unfavorable terms in the commercial paper markets near the end of the fiscal year,
Laclede Gas utilized its line of credit as a more economical source of short-term financing. Laclede (Gas had $61.7 mitlion
in commercial paper and $154.2 million of bank line advances outstanding as of September 30, 200%, at a weighted
average interest rate of 4.0% per annum, and $89.2 million of borrowings from Laclede Group. The Utility had $211.4
million of commercial paper outstanding as of September 30, 2007, at a weighted average interest rate of 5.5% per
annum, and no borrowings from Laclede Group.

Laclede Gas’ lines of credit include covenants limiting total debt, including short-term debt, to no more than
70% of total capitalization and requiring earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation, and amortization (EBITDA) to be at
least 2.25 times interest expense. On September 30, 2008, total debt was 66% of total capitalization. For the fiscal year
ended September 30, 2008, EBITDA was 3.97 times interest expense.

Short-term cash requirements outside of Laclede Gas have generally been met with internally-generated funds,
However, Laclede Group has $50 million in working-capital lines of credit, $40 million of which expires in August 2009
and $10 million of which expires in October 2009, to meet short-term liquidity needs of its subsidiaries. These lines of
credit have covenants limiting the total debt of the consolidated Laclede Group to no more than 70% of the Company’s
total capitalization. This ratio stood at 55% on September 30, 2008. These lines were previously used to provide letters of
credit on behalf of SM&P, and have been used to provide for seasonal funding needs of various other subsidiaries from
time to time. Just prior to the SM&P sale, the letters of credit provided on behalf of SM&P totaled $2.8 million. Such
letters have been released and extinguished. There were no borrowings under Laclede Group’s lines during the fiscal year.
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10. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and estimated fair values of financial instruments at September 30, 2008 and 2007 are as

follows:
Carrying Fair
(Thousands} Amount Value
2008:
Cash and cash equivalents . $ 14,899 $ 14,899
Marketable securities 10,059 10,059
Derivative instrument assets 57,210 57,210
Short-term debt 215,900 215,900
Long-term debt 389,181 356,421
Redeemable preferred stock, including current sinking fund requirements 627 431
2007:
Cash and cash equivalents ) 52,746 S 52,7146
Marketable securitics 9,196 9,196
Investment in unconsolidated affiliate trust . 1,400 1,400
Derivative instrument assets ' 31,057 31,057
Short-term debt 211,400 211,400
Long-term debt, including current portion 349,122 356,964
Redeemable preferred stock, including current sinking fund requirements 787 756
Long-term debt to unconsolidated affiliate trust . 46,400 46,400

The carrying amounts for cash and cash equivalents and short-term debt approximate fair value due to the short
maturity of these instruments. Fair values of derivative instrument assets and marketable securities are valued using
quoted market prices. Fair values of fong-term debt, preferred stock, and fong-term debt to unconsolidated affiliate trust
are estimated based on market prices for similar issues.

11. ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

The components of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss), net of income taxes, recognized in the
Consolidated Balance Sheets at September 30 were as follows:

Defined Benefit

Net Unrealized Minimum Pension and Other
Gains (Losses) on  Pension Liability Postretirement

{Thousands) Cash Flow Hedges  Adjustment Benefit Plans Total
Balance, September 30, 2006 $ 4,489 $ (834) $ — 3 3,655
Current-period change (905) 231 — (674)
Adoption of SFAS No. 158 — 603 (1,727) C (124
Balance, September 30, 2007 3,584 — (1,727) 1,857
Current-period change 2,643 — (63) 2,580
Balance, September 30, 2008 $ 6,227 3 — $ (1,790) 3 4,437
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12. INCOME TAXES

, The net provisions for income taxes from continuing operations charged during the years ended
September 30, 2008, 2007, and 2006 are as follows:

(Thousands) 2008 2007 2006

Included in Statements of Consolidated Income:

Federal
Current 5 17,584 $ 32,863 $ (8,186}
Deferred 5,097 (13,454) 26,614
Investment tax credits 227) (237) (241)
State and local
Current 2,743 5427 (1,265)
Deferred 993 {2,453) 4,379
Total Income Tax Expense from Continuing Operations $ 26,190 3 22,146 $ 21,301

For the years ended September 30, 2008, 2007, and 2006, the Company recorded current income tax expense
- totaling $14.6 million, $2.9 million, and $2.2 million, respectively; and deferred income tax expense (benefit) totaling
$(77,000), $(55,000), and $69,000, respectively, related to discontinued operations.
The effective income tax rate varied from the federal statutory income tax rate for continuing operations for each
year due to the following:

2008 2007 2006

Federal income tax statutory rate 315.0% 350% 350%
State and local income taxes, net of federal

income tax benefits ' 29 29 3.1
Certain expenses capitalized on books and

deducted on tax return (3.5) (4.1) {3.1)
Taxes related to prior years (1.0) 0.4 (L.5)
Other items — net 2.1) (1.6) (1.8)
Effective income tax rate 313% 126% 31.7 %

The significant items comprising the net deferred tax liability recognized in the Consolidated Balance Sheets as
of September 30 are as follows:

(Thousands) . 2008 2007

Deferred tax assets:

Reserves not currently deductible $ 18,850 § 18364
Unamortized invesiment tax credits 2,495 2,644
Other 11,071 9,934

' Total deferred tax assets 32,416 30,942

Deferred tax liabilities:

Relating to property 205,362 196,475
Pension and other postretirement benefits 29,732 31,262
Deferred gas costs 10,156 8,220
Other 21,596 21,379
Total deferred tax liabilities - 266,846 257,336
Net deferred tax liability ' 234,430 226,394
Net deferred tax liability — current (11,669} (2,644}
Net deferred tax liability — non-current $ 222,761 $ 223,750
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The Company adopted the provisions of FIN 48, as of October 1, 2007. FIN 48 clarifies the accounting for
uncertainty in income taxes recognized in an enterprise’s financial statements in accordance with FASB Statement No,
109. Pursuant to FIN 48, the Company may recognize the tax benefit from a tax position only if it is at least more likely
than not that the tax position will be sustained on examination by the taxing authorities, based on the technical merits of
the position. The Company records potential interest and penalties related to its uncertain tax positions as interest expense
and other income deductions, respectively. Unrecognized tax benefits, accrued interest payable, and accrued penalties
payable are included in the Other line of the Deferred Credits and Other Liabilities section of the Consolidated Balance
Sheets.

Upon adoption of FIN 48, the Company recognized a reduction to beginning retained eamings as a cumulative-
effect adjustment totaling $1.1 million, reclassified $2.5 million of income tax liabilities from current to non-current
liabilities, and increased its liabilities for accrued interest and penalties (net of income tax benefit) to $1.5 million. A
reconciliation of the beginning and ending amount of unrecognizéd tax benefits is as follows:

{Thousands)

Balance as of October 1, 2007 § 2,134
Decreases related to prior year tax positions (270)
Increases related to current year tax positions 419
Settlements with taxing authorities ' (986)
Reductions due to lapse of applicable statute of limitations {264)
Balance at September 30, 2008 $ 1,033

The entire amount of unrecognized tax benefits at September 30, 2008, if recognized, would affect the
Company’s effective tax rate. The Company does not expect any significant change related to any of the above
unrecognized tax positions within the next twelve months,

Interest accrued assoctated with the Company’s uncertain tax positions as of September 30, 2008 was immaterial
and no penalties were accrued as of that date. During fiscal year 2008, the Company reversed $0.8 million of accrued
interest expense and $0.9 million of accrued penalties in the Consolidated Statement of Income.

The Company is subject to U.S, federal income tax as well as income tax of state and local jurisdictions. The
Company is no longer subject to examination for fiscal years prior to 2005, The federal statute of limitations remains
open until June 15, 2009 and 2010 for fiscal years 2005 and 2008, respectively. However, during fiscal 2008, the
Company effectively settled with the Internal Revenue Service for those periods. Completion of the audit represented an
event requiring the Company to re-evaluate its uncertain tax positions. Also, during fiscal 2008, the statute of limitations
for the Company’s fiscal year 2004 expired.

13. OTHER INCOME AND (INCOME DEDUCTIONS) - NET

{Thousands) 2008 2007 2006
Allowance for funds used during construction $ T(72) 8 (7 3 (45)
- Interest income 4,221 5,703 5,560
Other income 1,323 1,190 887
Other income deductions (3,591) (63) (894)
Other Income and (Income Deductions) — Net $ 1,881 b 6,813 $ 5,508

- The decrease in Other Income and (Income Deductions} — Net in fiscal year 2008 compared with the prior years
is primarily due to higher investment losses, a loss on the redemption of long-term debt (primarily unamortized issuance
costs), lower income associated with carrying costs applied to under-recoveries of gas costs, and an increase in charitable
donations. These factors were partially offset by a reversal of tax-related expenses and additional proceeds related to the
Company’s interest, as a policyholder, in the sale of a mutual insurance company in fiscal year 2008. Carrying costs on
under-recoveries of gas costs are recovered through the Utility’s PGA Clause.

~

74




14, INFORMATION BY OPERATING SEGMENT

All of Laclede Group’s subsidiaries are wholly owned. The Regulated Gas Distribution segment consists of the
regulated operations of Laclede Gas and is the core business segment of Laclede Group. Laclede Gas is a public utility
engaged in the retail distribution and sale of natural gas serving an area in eastern Missouri, with a population of
approximately 2.1 million, including the City of St. Louis and parts of ten other counties in eastern Missouri. The Non-
Regulated Gas Marketing segment includes the results of LER, a subsidiary engaged in the non-regulated marketing of
natural gas and related activities. Other includes Laclede Pipeline Company’s transportation of liquid propane regulated
by the FERC as well as non-regulated activities, including real estate development, the compression of natural gas, and
financial investments in other enterprises. These operations are conducted through five subsidiaries. Other also includes
Laclede Gas’ non-regulated merchandise sales business. Certain intersegment revenues with Laclede Gas are not
eliminated in accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 71. Those types of transactions include sales of natural gas
from Laclede Gas to LER, sales of natural gas from LER to Laclede Gas, and sales of propane and transportation services
provided by Laclede Pipeline Company to Laclede Gas. These revenues are shown on the Intersegment Revenues lines in
the table under Regulated Gas Distribution, Non-Regulated Gas Marketing, and Other columns respectively.

Previously, SM&P fully comprised the Non-Regulated Services segment and its financial information was
presented separately. As discussed in Note 2, Discontinued Operations, the Company sold SM&P on March 31, 2008.
Accordingly, financial information for this segment has been reclassified and reported as discontinued operations in the
Consolidated Financial Statements. Under generally accepted accounting principles, general corporate overhead expenses
may not be reported in discontinued operations. Amounts of such expenses that were previously reported by SM&P but
that are required to be reported in continuing operations are reflected in the Unallocated & Eliminations column of the
table below. Prior periods reported in the table below have been reclassified to conform to the current-period presentation
of segment information. As such, the Non-Regulated Services segment is no longer reported.
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Non-

Regulated Regulated Unallocated
Gas Gas &

(Thousands) Distribution Marketing Other Eliminations Consolidated
FISCAL 2008
Revenues from external

customers $ 1,126,826 1,067,257 3,803 § - $ 2,197886
Intersegment revenues 1,461 8,588 1,038 — 11,087
Total Operating Revenues 1,128,287 1,075,845 4,841 — 2,208,973
Depreciation & amortization 35,303 — —* — 35,303
Interest income 2,133 1,531 2,762 (2,205) 4,221
Interest charges 30,214 {614y 2,222 (2,345} 29,477
[ncome tax expense (benefit) 15,244 11,404 (291) (167) 26,190
Income (loss) from continuing

operations 39,139 19,258 (607) (264) 57,526
Total assets of continuing .

operations 1,624,041 182,750 138,982 (173,118) 1,772,655
Capital expenditures 55,304 41 25 1,251 56,621
FISCAL 2007
Revenues from external

customers $ 1,093372 669,464 4,565 $ — $ 1,767,401
Intersegment revenues 38,182 49240 1,038 — 88,460
Total Operating Revenues 1,131,554 718,704 5,603 — 1,855,861
Depreciation & amortization 34,080 — —* — 34,080
[nterest income 3,499 1,796 2,265 {1,857 5,703
Interest charges 33,603 — 2,105 (1,774) 33,934
Income tax expense 13,853 8,204 561 (472) 22,146
Income (loss) from continuing

operations 32,133 13,334 1,024 {(747) 45,744
Total assets of continuing

operations 1,429.415 115,246 84,953 (61,818) 1,567,796
Capital expenditures 56,434 — 57 2,379 58,870
FISCAL 2006
Revenues from external

customers $ 1,119919 640,419 3,382 5 - $ 1,763,720
[ntersegment revenues 21,092 49,153 1,063 _— 71,308
Total Operating Revenues 1,141,011 689,572 4,445 — 1,835,028
Depreciation & amortization. 30,904 — —* — 30,904
Interest income 4,146 794 1,566 (946) 5,560
Interest charges 32,565 94 1,206 (981) 32,884
Income tax expense (benefit) 10,636 10,762 397 (494) 21,301
Income (loss) from continuing

operations 28,839 17,094 698 (784) 45,847
Total assets of continuing

operations 1,383,703 86,891 86,736 {63,523) 1,493,807
Capital expenditures 57,925 — 630 4,861 63,416

*  Depreciation & amortization for Other is included in the Other Operating Expenses on the Statements of Consolidated Income
($0.3 million per year for fiscal years 2008, 2007, and 2006).
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15. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Commitments

Laclede Gas estimates fiscal year 2009 utility capital expenditures at approximately $59 million. Fiscal year
2009 capital expenditures for non-regulated subsidiaries are estimated at approximately $1 mitlion. There are no material
contractual commitments at September 30, 2008 related to these estimated capital expenditures.

Laclede Gas and LER have entered into various contracts, expiring on dates through 2017, for the storage,
transportation, and supply of natural gas. Minimum payments required under the contracts in place at September 30, 2008
are estimated at approximately $2.1 billion. Additional contracts are generaily entered into prior to or during the heating
season. Laclede Gas estimates that it will pay approximately $95 million annually, at present rate levels, for fixed charges
related to these or other contracts that are expected to be in place for the upcoming year for the reservation of gas supplies
and pipeline transmission and storage capacity. The Utility recovers these costs from customers in accordance with the
PGA Clause.

Laclede Pipeline Company (Pipeline), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Laclede Group, is providing liquid propane
transportation service to Laclede Gas pursuant to an approved FERC tariff and a contractual arrangement between
Pipeline and Laclede Gas. In accordance with the terms of that agreement, Laclede Gas is obligated to pay Pipeline
approximately $1.0 million annually, at current rates, commencing April [, 2006. The agreement renews at the end of
each contract year, unless terminated by either party upon provision of at least six months’ notice.

Leases and Guarantees

The lease agreement covering the headquarters office space of Laclede Gas extends through February 2010 with
options to renew for up to 10 additional years. The aggregate rental expense for fiscal years 2008, 2007, and 2006 was
$891,000, $882,000, and $874,000, respectively. The annual minimum rental payment for fiscal year 2009 is anticipated
to be approximately $900,000 with a maximum annual rental payment escalation of $8,800 per year for each year through
fiscal year 2010. Laclede Gas has other relatively minor rental arrangements that provide for minimum rental payments.
Laclede Gas has entered into various operating lease agreements for the rental of vehicles and power operated equipment.
The rental costs will be approximately $3.7 million in fiscal year 2009, $2.7 million in fiscal year 2010, $1.7 milkion in
fiscal year 2011, $0.8 million in fiscal year 2012, and $0.2 million in fiscal year 2013.

Laclede Gas has several operating leases for the rental of vehicles that contain provisions requiring Laclede Gas
to guarantee certain amounts related to the residual value of the leased property. These leases have various terms, the
longest of which extends through 2014. At September 30, 2008, the maximum guarantees under these leases are $1.8
million. However, the Utility estimates that the residual value of the leased vehicles will be adequate to satisfy most of the
guaranteed amounts. At September 30, 2008, the carrying value of the liability recognized for these guarantees was $0.3
million. o

SM&P has several operating leases for vehicles used in its business. Laclede Group previously had parental
guarantees of certain of those vehicle leases but was released from those guarantees on or before March 31, 2008,
concurrent with the sale of SM&P.

Laclede Group had guarantees totaling $57.5 million for performance and payment of certain wholesale gas
supply purchases by LER, as of September 30, 2008. Since that date, total guarantees issued by Laclede Group on behalf
of LER increased by $10.0 million bringing the total to $67.5 million in guarantees outstanding at November 20, 2008.
No amounts have been recorded for these guarantees in the financial statements.

A consolidated subsidiary is a general partner in an unconsolidated partnership that invests in real estate
partnerships. The subsidiary and third parties are jointly and severally liable for the payment of mortgage loans in the
aggregate outstanding amount of approximately $2.2 million incurred in connection with various real estate ventures.
Laclede Group has no reason to believe-that the other principal liable parties will not be able to meet their proportionate
share of these obligations. Laclede Group further believes that the asset values of the real estate properties are sufficient
to support these mortgage loans,
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Contingencies and Indemnifications

Laclede Gas owns and operates natural gas distribution, transmission, and storage facilities, the operations of
which are subject to'various environmental laws, regulations, and interpretations. While environmental issues resulting
from such operations arise in the ordinary course of business, such issues have not materially affected the Company’s or
Laclede Gas’ financial position and results of operations. As environmental laws, regulations, and their interpretations
change, however, Laclede Gas may be required to incur additional costs.

As with other companies, Laclede Gas faces the risk of environmental liabilities. In the natural gas industry,
these are typically associated with sites formerly owned or operated by gas distribution companies like Laclede Gas
and/or its predecessor companies at which manufactured gas operations took place. At this time, Laclede Gas has
identified three former manufactured gas ptant (MGP) sites: one in Shrewsbury and two in the City of St. Louis.

With regard to the former MGP site located in Shrewsbury, Missouri, Laclede Gas and state and federal
environmental regulators agreed upon certain remedial actions to a portion of the site in a 1999 Administrative Order on
Consent (AQC), which actions have been completed. On September 22, 2008, EPA Region VI issued a letter of
Termination and Satisfaction terminating the AOC. However, if after termination of the AOC, regulators require
additional remedial actions, or additional claims are asserted, Laciede Gas may incur additional costs.

The site in the City of St. Louis, which is currently owned by the City, has been enrolled in the Missouri
Voluntary Cleanup Program (VCP). The VCP provides potential opportunities to minimize the cost of site cleanup while
maximizing possibilities for site development. The City has selected a developer with whom it is negotiating a final site
development contract. Previously, Laclede Gas requested that other former site owners and operators share costs relative
to any remedial actions required, one of whom is participating. No significant costs relative to this site have been incurred
in recent years.

~ The third former MGP site, also located in the City, is not currently and has not been owned by Laclede Gas for
many years. At this time, it is not known whether Laclede Gas will incur any costs in connection with environmental
investigations of or remediation at the site, and if it does incur any such costs, what the amount of those costs would be.

Laclede Gas has notified its insurers that it seeks reimbursement for costs incurred in the past and future
potential liabilities associated with the three MGP sites identified above. In response, the majority of insurers have
reserved their rights. While some of the insurers have denied coverage, Laclede Gas continues to discuss potential
reimbursements with them, with one insurer making a settlement payment in exchange for a release of claims in
June 2007, The Utility’s cutside consultant completed an analysis of the MGP sites to determine cost estimates for a one-
time contractual transfer of risk from each insurer to the Utility of environmental coverage for the MGP sites. That
-analysis demonstrated a range of possible future expenditures to investigate, monitor, and remediate these MGP sites
from $5.8 million to $36.3 million based upon then currently available facts, technology, and laws and regulations. The
actual costs that Laclede Gas may incur could be materially higher or lower depending upon several factors, including
whether remedial actions will be required, final selection and regulatory approval of any remedial actions, changing
technologies and governmental regulations, the ultimate ability of other potentially responsible parties to pay, and any
insurance recoveries. Costs associated with environmental remediation activities are accrued when such costs are
probable and reasonably estimable.

The amount of costs relative to future remedial actions at these and other sites is unknown and may be material.
Laclede Gas anticipates that any costs it may incur in the future to remediate these sites, less any amounts received as
insurance proceeds or as contributions from other potentially responsible parties, would be deferred and recovered in rates
through periodic adjustments approved by the MoPSC. Accordingly, potential liabilities associated with remediating
these sites are not expected to have a material impact on the future financial position and results of operations of Laclede
Gas or the Company.

On December 28, 2006, the MoPSC Staff proposed a disallowance of $7.2 million related to Laclede Gas’
recovery of its purchased gas costs applicable to fiscal 2005. On September 14, 2007, the Staff withdrew its pursuit of
$5.5 million of the disallowance it had originally proposed. Laclede Gas believes that the remaining $1.7 million of the
MoPSC Staff’s proposed disallowance lacks merit and is vigorously opposing the adjustment in proceedings before the
MoPSC, :

On December 31, 2007, the MoPSC Staff proposed a disallowance of $2.8 million related to Laclede Gas’
recovery of its purchased gas costs applicable to fiscal 2006. Laclede Gas believes that the MoPSC Staff’s position lacks
merit and intends to vigorously oppose the adjustment in proceedings before the MoPSC. In addition, the MoPSC’s Staff
raised questions regarding whether certain sales and capacity release transactions subject to the FERC’s oversight were
consistent with the FERC’s regulations and policies regarding capacity release. The Company commenced an internal
review of the questions raised by the MoPSC Staff and notified the FERC Staff that it took this action. Subsequently, as a
result of the internal review, the Company has provided the FERC Staff with a report regarding compliance of sales and
capacity release activities with the FERC’s regulations and policies. On July 23, 2008, the FERC Staff requested
additional information which the Company provided on August 22, 2008 and September 2, 2008.
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As reported in Note 2, Discontinued Operations, during the quarter ended March 31, 2008, the Company sold
100% of its interest in its wholly-owned subsidiary SM&P. The sales agreement (Agreement) includes representations
and warranties customary for such transactions, including, among others, representations and warranties of the parties as
to brokers’ fees; of SM&P as to its financial status, contracts, title to and condition of personal and real property, taxes,
legal compliance, environmental matters, employee benefits, and intellectual property. The Agreement also includes
customary indemnification provisions under which Laclede’s aggregate indemnification obligations are limited to a
maximum of $7.0 million for most claims. Obligations subject to this maximum apply only in the event claims exceed a
stated deductible, both individually and in the aggregate. However, this maximum limitation and deductible do not apply
to obligations associated with taxes, employee benefits, title to personal property, and certain other fundamental
representations and warranties. A maximum potential future payment amount cannot be estimated for these obligations.
The terms of the indemnifications in the Agreement are generally dependent upon the statute of limitations applicable to
the particular representations and warranties made by the Company, although certain representations and warranties have
an indefinite life under the Agreement. As of September 30, 2008, the carrying amount of the liability recognized for
these indemnification obligations was $0.2 million, based on the Company’s assessment of risk.

Laclede Group is involved in other litigation, claims, and investigations arising in the normal course of business.
While the results of such litigation cannot be predicted with certainty, management, after discussion with counsel,
believes that the final outcome will not have a material adverse effect on the consolidated financial position or results of
operations of the Company.
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16. INTERIM FINANCIAL INFORMATION (UNAUDITED)

In the opinion of Laclede Group, the quarterly information presented below for fiscal years 2008 and 2007
includes all adjustments {consisting of only normal recurring accruals) necessary for a fair statement of the results of
operations for such periods. Variations in consolidated operations reported on a quarterly basis primarily reflect the
seasonal nature of the business of Laclede Gas.

{Thousands, Except Per Share Amounts)

Three Months Ended . Dece, 31 March 31 June 30 Sept. 30
2008
Total Operating Revenues i § 503,990 $ 747,706 § 505,488 $ 451,789
Operating income 40,177 51,883 19,259 28
Income (Loss) from Continuing Operations 21,536 30,060 9,101 3.171)
Income (Loss) from Discontinued Operations (633) 21,294 158 (423)
Net Income {Loss) 20,903 51,354 9,259 (3,594)
Basic Eamings (Loss} Per Share of Common Stock:

Income {Loss) from Continuing Operations $ 1.00 $ 1.39 3 0.42 $ (0.14)

Income (Loss) from Discontinued Operations (0.03) 0.99 0.01 (0.02)

Net [ncome {Loss) b 0.97 b 2.38 $ 043 $ {0.16)
Diluted Earnings (Loss) Per Share of Common Stock:

Income {Loss) from Continuing Operations $ 1.00 $ 139 $ 0.41 5 {0.14)

Income (Loss) from Discontinued Operations (0.03) 0.58 0.01 (0.02)

Net income {Loss) $ 0.97 3 2.37 b 0.42 3 (0.16)
Three Months Ended Dec. 31 March 31 June 30 Sept. 30
2007 _
Total Operating Revenues $ 503,132 § 670,700 § 406,220 $ 275,809
Operating income 36,032 45,017 13,155 850
Income (Loss) from Continuing Operations 19,408 24,009 4,763 (2,436)
Income (Loss) from Discontinued Operations (321) (3,190) 4,499 3,039
Net Income 19,087 20,819 9,262 603
Basic Eamings (Loss) Per Share of Common Stock:

Income (Loss) from Continuing Operations - $ 0.91 5 112 $ 0.22 $ ©.11)

Income (Loss) from Discontinued Operations (0.02) (0.15}) 0.21 0.14

Net Income } $ 0.89 3 0.97 $ 0.43 3 0.03
Diluted Eamnings (Loss) Per Share of Common Stock: ‘

Income (Loss) from Continuing Operations b 0.91 $ 1.12 $ 0.22 3 (0.11)

Income (Loss) from Discontinued Operations {0.02) (0.15) 0.21 0.14

Net Income $ 0.89 b 0.97 § 0.43 $ 0.03

Prior period interim financial information has been reclassified to conform to the current-year presentation as a result of
the sale of SM&P on March 31, 2008. Income from discontinued operations for the quarter ended March 31, 2008
included afier-tax earnings of $25.8 million attributable to the gain on the sale of SM&P, net of associated costs of
disposal.

Laclede Gas Company’s Financial Statements and Notes to Financial Statements are included in Exhibit 99.1.
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

There have been no disagreements on accounting and financial disclosure with Laclede’s outside auditors that are
required to be disclosed.

Ttem 9A. Controls and Procedures

As of the end of the period covered by this report, we carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and with
participation of our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness
of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures pursuant to Rule 13a-15¢ and Rule 15d-15¢ under
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. Based upon that evaluation, the Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures are effective.

There have been no changes in our internal control over financial reporting that occurred during our fourth fiscal
quarter that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial
reporting.

The Managemeni Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and the Reports of Independent
Registered Public Accounting Firm are included under Item 8, pages 38 through 40.

item 9B. Other Information

On November 20, 2008, the Board of Directors of Laclede Gas approved the sale of 1,161 shares of Laclede Gas’
common stock to Laclede Group, The proceeds from the sale, totaling $340.0 million, were used to reduce short-term
borrowings. Exemption from registration was claimed under Section 4(2) of the Securities Act of 1933.

On November 20, 2008, Laclede Group executed an amendment to its $40 million line of credit with U.S. Bank
National Association to provide that it would not contribute proceeds to the Utility from any loans under that line of credit
until credit commitments under Laclede Gas’ 120-day line of credit, under which U.S. Bank serves as agent and that
expires on March 16, 2009, have been fully advanced,
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Part 111
Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

Information about:
= our directors is incorporated by reference from the discussion under Proposal 1 of our proxy
statement dated December 22, 2008 (2008 proxy statement);
» our executive officers is reported in Part | of this Form 10-K;
+ compliance with Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act is incorporated by reference from the discussion
in our 2008 proxy statement under the heading “Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting
Compliance™; )
« Financial Code of Ethics is posted on our website, www.thelacledegroup.com, in the Investor
Services section under Governance Documents; and,
« our audit committee, our audit committee financial experts, and submitting nominations to the
Corporate Governance Committee is incorporated by reference from the discussion in our 2008 proxy
statement under the heading “Corporate Governance.” i
In addition to our Financial Code of Ethics, our Code of Business Conduct, Corporate Governance Guidelines,
and charters for our audit, compensation and corporate governance committees are available on our website, and a copy
will be sent to any shareholder upon written request,

Item 11. Executive Compensation

Information about director and executive compensation is incorporated by reference from the discussion in our
2008 proxy statement under the headings: “Directors” Compensation,” “Compensation Discussion and Analysis,” and
“Executive Compensation.” The 2008 proxy statement also includes the “Compensation Committée Report,” which is
deemed furnished and not filed.

Itemn 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters
Information about security ownership of certain beneficial owners and management is incorporated by reference
from the discussion in our 2008 proxy statement under “Beneficial Ownership of Laclede Group Common Stock” and

equity compensation plan information is incorporated by reference from the discussion in our 2008 proxy statement under
“Other Matters.” :
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Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence

Information about:
« our policy and procedures for related party transactions and
« the independence of our directors
is included in our 2008 proxy statement under “Corporate Governance™ and is incorporated by reference. There were no
related party transactions in fiscal year 2008.

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services
Information about fees paid to our independent registered public accountant and our policy for pre-approval of

services provided by our independent registered public accountant is incorporated by reference from our 2008 proxy
statement under “Fees of Independent Registered Public Accountant” and “Corporate Governance,” respectively.
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Part IV

Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules

(@)

1.

2008 10-K Page
Financial Statements:

The Laclede Group, Inc.:
See Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data, filed herewith, for a list of financial statements.

Laclede Gas Company:
For Years Ended September 30, 2008, 2007, and 2006:

Statements of Income Ex. 99.1,p. 18

Statements of Comprehensive Income Ex.99.1,p. 19

Statements of Common Shareholder’s Equity Ex.99.1,p. 23

Statements of Cash Flows Ex.99.1,p. 24
As of September 30, 2008 & 2007:

Balance Sheets Ex. 99.1, pp. 20-21
Statements of Capitalization Ex.99.1,p. 22
Notes to Financial Statements Ex. 99.1, pp. 25-47

Management Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting Ex.99.1,p. 15
Reports of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm Ex. 99.1, p. 16-17

Supplemental Schedules

I — Reserves — The Laclede Group, Inc. - 87
II — Reserves — Laclede Gas Company 88

Schedules not included have been omitted because they are not applicable or the
required data has been included in the financial statements or notes to financial
statements,

Exhibits

Incorporated herein by reference to Index to Exhibits, page 89.

Item 15(a}(3) See the marked exhibits in the Index to Exhibits, page 89.

(b)

Incorporated herein by reference to Index to Exhibits, page 89.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused
this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

THE LACLEDE GROUP, INC.

November 20, 2008 | By /s/  Mark D. Waltermire

Mark D. Waltermire
Chief Financial Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following
persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Date " Signature Title
11/20/08 /s _Douglas H. Yaeger Chairman of the Board,
Douglas H. Yaeger President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Cfficer)
11/20/08 /s/ Mark D. Waltermire Chief Financial Officer
Mark D. Waltermire (Principal Financial and

Accounting Officer)

11/20/08 /s/ Arnold W. Donald Director

Arnold W. Donald

11/20/08 /s/  Edward L. Glotzbach Director

Edward L. Glotzbach

11/20/08 fs/ Anthony V. Leness Director

Anthony V. Leness

11/20/08 /s W. Stephen Maritz Director

W. Stephen Maritz

11/20/08 /s/ William E. Nasser Director

William E. Nasser

11/20/08 /s/ Brenda D. Newberry Director

Brenda D. Newberry

11/20/08 /s/ John P. Stupp, Jr. Director

John P. Stupp, Jr.

11/20/08 /s/  MaryAnn Van Lokeren Director

MaryAnn Van Lokeren
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused
this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

LACLEDE GAS COMPANY

- November 20, 2008 - By/s/  Mark D. Waltermire

Mark D. Waltermire
Senior Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following
persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Date Signature Title
11/20/08 /s/  Douglas H. Yaeger Chairman of the Board,
Douglas H. Yaeger President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)
11/20/08 /s/  Mark D, Waltermire Director, Senior Vice President
Mark D. Waltermire and Chief Financial Officer
{Principal Financial and
Accounting Officer)
11/20/08 /s/  Kenneth J. Neises Director, Executive Vice President

Kenneth J. Neises

11/20/08 /s Michael R. Spotanski Director, Senior Vice President

Michael R. Spotanski Operations and Marketing
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SCHEDULE 11

THE LACLEDE GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

RESERVES

FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2008, 2007, AND 2006

COLUMN A COLUMNB COLUMNC COLUMND COLUMNE
BALANCE
AT ADDITIONS CHARGED DEDUCTIONS BALANCE
BEGINNING TO TO OTHER FROM AT CLOSE
DESCRIPTION OF PERIOD INCOME ACCOUNTS RESERVES OF PERIOD
(Thousands of Dollars)
YEAR ENDED
SEPTEMBER 30, 2008:
DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS $ 11,268 13,100 9850 (a) % 21,594 (b)d) S 12,624
MISCELLANEQOUS:
Injuries and
property damage $ 10,765 7,263 — $ 15216 () 3 2,812
Deferred compensation 10,949 1,446 — 1,231 1,164
Group medical claims
incurred but not reported 2,571 15,777 — 16,848  (cXd) 1,500
TOTAL $ 24,285 24,486 — 3 33,295 $ 15,476 .
YEAR ENDED -
SEPTEMBER 30, 2007:
DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS 3 13,105 9,537 9313 (&) § 20,687 (b) $ 11,268
MISCELLANEOUS:
[njuries and
property damage $ 11,342 12,948 — 3 13,525 (c} $ 10,765
Deferred compensation 10,516 1,399 — 966 10,949
Group medical claims
incurred but not reported 1,940 18,801 — 18,170 (c) 2,571
TOTAL $ 23,798 33,148 — $ 32,601 $ 24,285
YEAR ENDED
SEPTEMBER 30, 2006:
DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS $ 11,813 12,077 7985 f(a) § 18,770 (b) 3 13.105
MISCELLANEOUS:
Injuries and .
property dantage $ 10,544 20,806 _— $ 20,008 () § 11,342
Deferred compensation 9,595 1,802 —_ 281 10,516
Group medical claims
incurred but not reported 2,531 13,760 — 14,551 (¢} 1,940
TOTAL $ 22,670 — 3 35,140 g 23,798

36,368

{a)  Accounts reinstated, cash recoveries, etc.

(b)  Accounts written off.

() Claims settled, less reimbursements from insurance companies.
(d) Deductions include write-off of SM&P reserve balances at March 31, 2008 due 1o the sale of the subsidiary.
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SCHEDULE II
LACLEDE GAS COMPANY

RESERVES

FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2008, 2007, AND 2006

COLUMN A COLUMNB COLUMNC COLUMND COLUMNE
BALANCE
AT ADDITIONS CHARGED DEDUCTIONS BALANCE
BEGINNING TG TO OTHER FROM AT CLOSE
DESCRIPTION OF PERIOD INCOME ACCOQUNTS RESERVES OF PERIOD
{Thousands of Dollars)
YEAR ENDED
SEPTEMBER 30, 2008:
DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS b 10,961 § 13,034 9,850 (a) 21,369 {(b) 12,476
MISCELLANEOQUS:
Injuries and
property damage $ 3,128 % 1,715 — 2,031 (¢) 2,812
Deferred compensation 10,949 1,446 — 1,231 11,164
Group medical claims
incurred but not reported 1,150 12,192 — 11,842 {¢) 1,500
TOTAL $ 15,227 § 15,353 — 15,104 15,476
YEAR ENDED
SEPTEMBER 30, 2007:
DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS $ 12,798 & 9,550 9,313 (a) 20,700 (b} 10,961
MISCELLANEQUS:
Injuries and
property damage $ 4,124 & 1,473 — 2,469 (c) 3,128
Deferred compensation 10,516 1,399 — 966 10,949
Group medical claims
incurred but not reported 300 11,909 — 11,559  (c) 1,150
TOTAL $ 15440 § 14,781 — 14,994 15,227
YEAR ENDED
SEPTEMBER 30, 2006:
DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS $ 11,442 § 12,141 7,985 (a) 18,770 (b) 12,798
MISCELLANEOUS:
Injuries and
property damage 5 4553 8§ 2817 — 3.246 (c) 4,124
Deferred compensation 9,595 1,802 — 881 10,516
Group medical claims
incurred but not reported 1,500 8,625 — 9325 (o) 800
TOTAL 3 15648 % 13,244 — 13,452 15,440

(a)  Accounts reinstated, cash recoveries, etc.

() Accounts written off,

(c) Claims settled, less reimbursements from insurance companies.
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INDEX TO EXHIBITS

Exhibit
No.

2.01* - Agreement and Plan of Merger and Reorganization; filed as Appendix A to
proxy statement/prospectus contained in the Company’s registration
statement on Form S-4, No. 333-48794.

3.01()* - Laclede’s Restated Articles of Incorporation effective March 18, 2002; filed
as Exhibit 3.3 to Form 8-K filed May 29, 2002.

3.01(0* - Bylaws of Laclede effective January 18, 2002; filed as Exhibit 3.4 t0
Laclede’s Form 8-K filed May 29, 2002.

3.020)* - The Company’s Articles of Incorporation, as amended; filed as Exhibit 3.1 to
the Company’s Form 8-K filed January 26, 2006.

3.02(i)* - The Company’s Bylaws, as amended; filed as Exhibit 3.2 to the Company’s
Form 8-K filed January 26, 2006.

4.01* - Mortgage and Deed of Trust, dated as of February 1, 1945; filed as Exhibit
7-A to registration statement No. 2-5586.

4.02* - Fourteenth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of October 26, 1976; filed on
June 26, 1979 as Exhibit b-4 to registration statement No. 2-64857.

4.03* - Twenty-Second Supplemental Indenture dated as of November 15, 1995;
filed on December 8, 1995 as Exhibit 4.01 to Laclede’s Form 8-K.

4.04* - Twenty-Third Supplemental Indenture dated as of October 15, 1997; filed on
November 6, 1997 as Exhibit 4.01 to Laclede’s Form 8-K.

4.05* - Twenty-Fourth Supplemental Indenture dated as of June 1, 1999; filed on
June 4, 1999 as Exhibit 4.01 to Laclede’s Form 8-K.

4.06* - Twenty-Fifth Supplemental Indenture dated as of September 15, 2000; filed
on September 27, 2000 as Exhibit 4.01 to Laclede’s Form 8-K.

4.07* - Twenty-Seventh Supplemental Indenture dated as of April 15, 2004; filed on
April 28, 2004 as Exhibit 4.01 to Laclede’s Form 8-K.

4.08* - Twenty-Eighth Supplemental Indenture dated as of April 15, 2004; filed on
April 28, 2004 as Exhibit 4.02 to Laclede’s Form 8-K.

4.09* - Twenty-Ninth Supplemental Indenture dated as of June 1, 2006; filed on
June 9, 2006, as Exhibit 4.1 to Laclede’s Form §-K

4.10* - Thirtieth Supplemental Indenture dated as of September 15, 2008; filed on
September 23, 2008 as Exhibit 4.1 10 Laclede’s Form 8-K.

4.11* - Laclede Gas Company Board of Directors” Resolution dated August 28, 1986

which generally provides that the Board may delegate its authority in the
adoption of certain employee benefit plan amendments to certain designated
Executive Officers; filed as Exhibit 4,12 to the Company’s 1991 10-K.

4.11a* - Company Board of Directors” Resolutions dated March 27, 2003, updating

: authority delepated pursuant to August 28, 1986 Laclede Gas Company

resolutions; filed as Exhibit 4.19(a) to the Company’s Form 10-K for the year
ended September 30, 2003,

4.12* - Rights Agreement dated as of QOctober 1, 2001; filed as Exhibit 4 to the
Company’s Form 8-A on September 6, 2001.

*Incorporated herein by reference and made a part hereof. Laclede’s File No. 1-1822; the Company’s File No. 1-16681.

Bold items reflect management, contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.
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Exhibit
No.

10.01*

10.01a*

10.01b*

10.01c*

10.02*

10.02a*

10.02b*

10.03*

10.04*

10.04a*

10.04b*

10.05*

10.05a*

*Incorporated herein by reference and made a part hereof. Laclede’s File No, 1-1822; the Company’s File No. 1-16681.

INDEX TO EXHIBITS

Laclede Incentive Compensation Plan, as amended; filed as Exhibit 10.03
to the Company’s 1989 10-K. .

Amendment adopted by the Board of Directors on July 26, 1990 to the
Incentive Compensation Plan; filed as Exhibit 10.02a to the Company’s
1990 10-K.

Amendments adopted by the Board of Directors on August 23, 1990 to
the Incentive Compensation Plan; filed as Exhibit 10.02b to the
Company’s 1990 10-K.

Amendments to Laclede’s Incentive Compensation Plan, effective
January 26, 1995; filed as Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s 10-Q for the
fiscal quarter ended March 31, 1995,

Senior Officers’ Life Insurance Program of Laclede, as amended; filed as
Exhibit 10.03 to the Company’s 1990 10-K.

Certified copy of resolutions of Laclede’s Board of Directors adopted on
June 27, 1991 amending the Senior Officers’ Life Insurance Program;
filed as Exhibit 10.01 to the Company’s 10-Q) for the fiscal quarter ended
June 30, 1991.

Certified copy of resolutions of Laclede’s Board of Directors adopted en
January 28, 1993 amending the Senior Officers’ Life Insurance
Program; filed as Exhibit 10.03 to the Company’s 10-Q for the fiscal
quarter ended March 31, 1993.

Laclede Gas Company Supplemental Retirement Benefit Plan, as
amended and restated effective July 25, 1991; filed as Exhibit 10.05 to the
Company’s 1991 10-K. '

Amended and Restated Storage Service Agreement For Rate Schedule FSS,
Contract #3147 between Centerpoint Energy-Mississippi River Transmission
Corporation (MRT) and Laclede dated March 18, 2008; filed as Exhibit 10.5
to the Company’s 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended March 31, 2008.
Amended and Restated Transportation Service Agreement for Rate Schedule
FTS, Contract #3310 between Laclede and MRT dated March 18, 2008; filed
as Exhibit 10.6 to the Company’s 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended

March 31, 2008.

Amended and Restated Transportation Service Agreement for Rate Schedule
FTS, Contract #3311, between Laclede and MRT dated March 18, 2008; filed
as Exhibit 10.7 to the Company’s 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended

March 31, 2008.

Amendment and Restatement of Retirement Plan for Non-Employee
Directors as of November 1, 2002; filed as Exhibit 10.08¢ to the
Company’s 10-K for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2002,
Amendment to Terms of Retirement Plan for Non-Employee Directors as
of October 1, 2004; filed as Exhibit 10.w to the Company’s Form 10-Q
for the fiscal quarter ended June 30, 2004,

Bold items reflect management, contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.
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INDEX TO EXHIBITS

Exhibit
No.

10.06* - Salient Features of the Laclede Gas Company Deferred Income Plan for
Directors and Selected Executives, including amendments adopted by the
Board of Directors on July 26, 1990; filed as Exhibit 10.12 to the
Company’s 1991 10-K. _
10.06a* - Amendment to Laclede’s Deferred Income Plan for Directors and
Selected Executives, adopted by the Board of Directors on
August 27, 1992; filed as Exhibit 10.12a to the Company’s 1992 10-K.

10.07* - Form of Indemnification Agreement between Laclede and its Directors
and Officers; filed as Exhibit 10.13 to the Company’s 19950 10-K.
10.08* - Laclede Gas Company Management Continuity Protection Plan, as

amended, effective at the close of business on January 27, 1994, by the
Board of Directors; filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s 10-Q for the
fiscal quarter ended March 31, 1994,

10.09* - 2002 Restricted Stock Plan for Non-Employee Directors as of
November 1, 2002; filed as Exhibit 10.12d te the Company’s Form 10-K
for the fiscal year ended September 3¢, 2002.

10.09a* - Amendment to the 2002 Restricted Stock Plan for Non-Employee
Directors as of October 1, 2004; filed as Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s
Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended June 30, 2004,

10.09b* - Amendment to Restricted Stock Plan for Non-Employee Directors as of
January 1, 2006; filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Form §-K filed
November 1, 2005.

10.09¢* - Restricted Stock Plan for Non-employee Directors Amendment effective
January 1, 2007; filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Form 8-K filed
November 2, 2006.

10.094 - Amendment to Restricted Stock Plan for Non-Employee Directors
effective January 1, 2008.

10.10* - Salient Features of the Laclede Gas Company Deferred Income Plan Il

for Directors and Selected Executives adopted by the Board of Directors
on September 23, 1993; filed as Exhibit 10.17 to the Company’s 1993
10-K.

10.11* - Amended and Restated Revolving Credit Agreement between the Company
and U.S. Bank National Association dated August 4, 2005; filed as Exhibit
10.1 to the Company’s 8-K filed August 5, 2003.

10.11a* - First Amendment to Amended and Restated Revolving Credit Agreement
between the Company and U.S. Bank National Assaciation dated
March 31, 2008; filed as Exhibit 10.8 to the Company’s Form 10-Q for the
fiscal quarter ended March 31, 2008, ~

10.11b* - Second Amendment to Amended and Restated Revolving Credit Agreement
between the Company and U.S. Bank National Association executed on
August 1, 2008; filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Form 10-Q for the
fiscal quarter ended June 30, 2008.

10.11¢c - Third Amendment to Amended and Restated Credit Agreement between the
Company and U.S. Bank National Association dated November 21, 2008.

*Incorporated herein by reference and made a part hereof. Laclede’s File No. 1-1822; the Company’s File No. 1-16681.

Bold items reflect management, contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.
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Exhibit
No.

10.12*

10.12a*

10.12b*

10.13*

10.14*
10.14a*
10.14b*

10.14¢*
10.14d*

10.14e*
10.15%

10.16*

10.17*

10.18*

*Incorporated herein by reference and made a part hereof. Laclede’s File No. 1-1822; the Company’s File No. 1-16681.

INDEX TO EXHIBITS

Amended and Restated Loan Agreement dated September 10, 2004 for
Laclede with U.S. Bank National Association as administrative agent and
lead arranger, Bank Hapoalim B.M., as syndication agent, and Southwest
Bank of St. Louis as documentation agent; fited as Exhibit 10.1 on Form 8-K
filed on September 13, 2004,

Amendment to loan agreement in Exhibit 10.12, dated December 23, 2005;
filed as Exhibit 10.1 to Laclede’s Form 8-K filed December 23, 2005.
Second amendment dated February 8, 2008 to syndicated loan agreement of
Laclede Gas Company dated September 10, 2004 and first amended
December 23, 2005; filed as Exhibit 10.1 1o Laclede’s Ferm 10-Q) for the
fiscal quarter ended March 31, 2008.

Stock Purchase Agreement between the Company and Stripe Acquisition, Inc,
dated February 15, 2008 for the sale of SM&P Utility Resources, Inc.; filed as
Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended

March 31, 2008.

The Laclede Group, Inc, 2002 Equity Incentive Plan; filed as Exhibit
10.22 to the Company’s Form 10-K for the year ended

September 30, 2002.

Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Award Agreement with Mandatory
Retirement Provisions; filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Form 8-K
filed November 5, 2004.

Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Award Agreement without
Mandatory Retirement Provisions; filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the
Company’s Form 8-K fited November 5, 2004.

Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement; filed as Exhibit 10.17 to the
Company’s 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended March 31, 2004.

Form of Performance — Contingent Restricted Stock Award Agreement;
filed as Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s Form 8-K filed November 1, 2005,
Form of Performance — Contingent Restricted Stock Award Agreement;
filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Form 8-K filed

November 2, 2006.

Lease between Lactede Gas Company, as Lessee and First National Bank in
St. Louis, Trustee, as Lessor; filed as Exhibit 10.23 to the Company’s Form
10-K for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2002.

Automated Meter Reading Services Agreement executed March 11, 2005;
filed as Exhibit 10.} to the Company’s Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended
March 31, 2005. Confidential portions of this exhibit have been omitted and
filed separately with the Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to a
request for confidential treatment.

Stock Ownership Guidelines and Holding Requirements; filed as Exhibit
10.1 to the Company’s Form 8-K filed November 1, 2005.

The Laclede Group, Inc. Annual Incentive Plan; filed as Appendix 4 to
the Company’s proxy statement filed December 19, 2005.

Bold items reflect management, contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.
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INDEX TO EXHIBITS

Exhibit ‘ ‘
No.

10.19* - The Laclede Group, Inc. 2006 Equity Incentive Plan; filed as Appendix 5
to the Company’s proxy statement, filed December 19, 2005.

10.19a* - Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement; filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the
Company’s Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended December 31, 2007.

10.19b* - Form of Performance Contingent Restricted Stock Award Agreement for
all participants except the Chief Executive Officer and the Executive
Vice President-Energy and Administrative Services; filed as Exhibit 10.2
to the Cempany’s Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended
December 31, 2007.

10.19c* - Forms of Performance Contingent Restricted Stock Award Agreements

for Chief Executive Officer; filed as Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s Form
10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended December 31, 2007.

10.194* - Form of Performance Contingent Restricted Stock Award Agreement for
Exccutive Vice President-Energy and Administrative Services; filed as
Exhibit 10.4 to the Company’s Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended
December 31, 2007.

10.19e* - Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement with Douglas H. Yaeger dated
February 14, 2008; filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Form 10-Q for
the fiscal quarter ended March 31, 2008,

10.20* - Supplemental Pension Agreement between Laclede Gas Company and
Kenneth J. Neises dated March 7, 2008; filed as Exhibit 10.4 to the
Company’s Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended March 31, 2008.

12 - Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges.

21 - Subsidiaries of the Registrant. )

23 - Consents of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.

31 - Certificates under Rule 13a-14(a) of the CEQ and CFO of The Laclede
Group, Inc. and Laclede Gas Company.

32 - Section 1350 Certifications under Rule 13a-14(b) of the CEO and CFO of
The Laclede Group, Inc. and Laclede Gas Company.

95.1 - Laclede Gas Company - Selected Financial Data, Management’s Discussion

and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations, Notes to
Financial Statements, management Report on Internal Control over Financial
Reporting, and Reports of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.

*Incorporated herein by reference and made a part hereof. Laclede’s File No. 1-1822; the Company’s File No. 1-16681.

Bold items reflect management, contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.
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Exhibit 31

CERTIFICATION

I, Douglas H. Yaeger, certify that:

5.

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of The Laclede Group, Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a
material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such
statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report,
fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operattons and cash flows of the
registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s} and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(¢e) and 15d-15(e)) and interna! control over
“financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a)

b)

d}

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and
procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating
to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others
within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

Designed such intemnal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over
financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and
presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls
and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation;
and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial
reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s
fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial
reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of
internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s
board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

4) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal
control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the
registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b} Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have
a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date:  November 20, 2008 Signature: /s/ Douglas H. Yaeger

Douglas H. Yaeger
Chairman of the Board,
President and Chief

Executive Officer



CERTIFICATION

I, Mark D. Waltermire, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of The Laclede Group, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to
state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which
such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report,
fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the
registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this repon;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for estabtishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(¢)) and
internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for
the registrant and have:

a)

b)

<)

d)

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls
and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material
information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the perind in which this
report is being prepared;

Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control
over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provice reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles;

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and
presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure
controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such
evaluation; and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial
reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s
fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial
reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and 1 have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of
internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the
registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a)

b}

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of
internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect
the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information;
and

Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who
have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date:  November 20, 2008 Signature: /s/ Mark D. Waltermire

Mark D. Waltermire
Chief Financial Officer



Exhibit 32
Section 1350 Certification

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to §906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, I,
Douglas H. Yaeger, Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Executive Officer of The Laclede Group,
Inc., hereby certify that

(a) To the best of my knowledge, the accompanying report on Form 10-K for the year
ended September 30, 2008 fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or
15(d} of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and

(b) To the best of my knowledge, the information contained in the accompanying report on

Form 10-K for the year ended September 30, 2008 fairly presents, in all material
respects, the financtal condition and results of operations of The Laclede Group, Inc.

Date: November 20, 2008 /s/ Douglas H. Yaeger

Douglas H. Yaeger
Chairman of the Board, President
and Chief Executive Officer




Section 1350 Certification

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to §906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, 1,
Mark D. Waltermire, Chief Financial Officer of The Laclede Group, Inc., hereby certify that

(a) To the best of my knowledge, the accompanying report on Form 10-K for the year
ended September 30, 2008 fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or
15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and

(b} To the best of my knowledge, the information contained in the accompanying report on

Form 10-K for the year ended September 30, 2008 fairly presents, in all material
respects, the financial condition and results of operations of The Laclede Group, Inc.

Date: November 20, 2008 /s/ Mark D. Waltermire

Mark D. Waltermire
Chief Financial Officer



SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

Annual Meeting

The annual meeting of shareholders of
The Laclede Group will be held at the
Renaissance 5t. Louis Grand Hotel,

800 Washington Avenue, St. Louis, Missouri,
10 a.m. Thursday, January 29, 2009.

In connection with this meeting, proxies
will be solicited by the management of
the Company. A notice of the meeting,
together with a proxy statement and a
farm of proxy, will be mailed on or about
December 22, 2008 to shareholders of
record on December 1, 2008.

Transfer Agent and Registrar
The transfer agent and registrar for

The Laclede Group's common stock and
Laclede Gas Company's preferred stock,
series B and C, is:

Computershare Trust Company, N.A.
P.O. Box 43078

Providence, Rhode Island o02940-3078
1-800-884-4225

The Laclede Group's common stock,
s1 par value, is traded on The New York
Stock Exchange under the symbol “LG.”

Executive Offices
720 Olive Street

St. Louis, Missouri 63101
Telephone: 314-342-0500

Dividend Reinvestment and
Stock Purchase Plan

The Company's Dividend Reinvestment and
Stock Purchase Plan provides common
shareholders the opportunity to purchase
additional common stock by automatically
reinvesting dividends or by making
additional cash payments. Shareholders
who are interested in obtaining more
information, including an enroliment card,
may write or call:

Computershare Trust Company, N.A.
P.O. Box 43078

Providence, Rhode Island 02940-3078
1-800-884-4225

Public Information, SEC Filings
and Certifications

Our latest news and filings are available on
our website, www.thelacledegroup.com.

We make available all of our filings that are
made electronically with the Securities and
Exchange Commission {SEC), including Forms
10-K, 10-Q and 8-K. Also available as

exhibit 991 to our Forms 10-K and 10-Q are
Laclede Gas Company's separate financial
statements. To access these filings, go to the
Company’'s website and click on “Investor
Services,” then click on "SEC Filings.”

Ctherwise, you can obtain public
information, inctuding SEC filings and
annual reports, by writing:

The Lactede Group, Inc.
Corporate Secretary’s Office
720 Olive Street

St. Louis, Missouri 63101

The Chief Executive Officer certified to

the New York Stock Exchange {NYSE) on
February 13, 2008 that as of that date, he was
not aware of any violation by the Company
of the NYSE's corporate governance listing
standards, and the Company has filed with
the SEC, as exhibits 31 and 32 to the annual
report on Form 10-K for the year ended
September 30, 2008, the certificates of the
Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial
Officer of the Company certifying the quality
of the Company’'s public disclosure.

Common Stock Market and
Dividend Information NYSE:LG

Price Range  Dividends

FISCAL 2008 (High) {Low) Declared
1st Qtr. 3572 31.48 $37T%
2nd Qtr. 36.45 31.86 $.37%
3rd Qtr. 41.96 35.36 $.37%
4th Qtr. 50.88 37.78 $.37%
FISCAL 2007

1st Qtr. 3751 3160 $.36%
2nd Qtr. 36.03 29.32 $.36%2
3rd Gtr, 33.24  29.29  $36%

4th Qtr. 3417 28.84 5.36%:



END

This annual report was printed using

Lustro Offset Environmental and Cascades Enviro 100 Print.

The environmental savings from these recycled papers
vs. non-recycled papers are calculated as follows:

Saves the equivalent of 171 mature trees
Reduces solid waste by 10,903 pounds
Reduces the quantity of water used by 102,903 gallons
Reduces suspended particles in the water by 68.9 pounds
Reduces air emissions by 24,874 pounds
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